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DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme Document, the following definitions apply throughout unless otherwise stated or the

context otherwise requires:

Companies within the Group

Company

Group

Other companies,
organisations and entities

ACRA
AVIC Group

AVIC Kairong

AVIC Singapore

CDP
CPF
HLM
MSCI
PwC
SGX-ST
SIC

General

Approved Scheme Claim

Asset Recovery Agreement

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Company
Registration Number 200106480Z), a company incorporated in
Singapore which is under judicial management pursuant to the
Judicial Management Order

The Company and its subsidiaries

The Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority of Singapore
AVIC Singapore and its subsidiaries

AVIC International Kairong Limited (Company Registration
Number 1493834), a limited company incorporated under the
laws of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
AVIC International Investments Limited (Company Registration
Number 201024137N), a company incorporated in Singapore on
11 November 2010 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
Kairong

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

The Central Provident Fund

HLM Consulting Limited

Morgan Stanley & Co International PLC

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The Securities Industry Council of Singapore

The Scheme Claim of any Creditor that has been:

(i) determined for the purpose of the Scheme in accordance
with the provisions of Clause 6.1.10 of the Scheme; or

(i)  in the event of a Disputed Claim, determined by the Court
in accordance with the provisions of Clause 6.1.12 of the
Scheme

and exceeds zero

The asset recovery agreement dated 7 January 2011, entered
into between the Judicial Managers, for and on behalf of the
Company, and HLM, pursuant to which, inter alia, HLM was
appointed to assist the Company in regaining control over and the
recovery of the Company’s assets in the PRC
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DEFINITIONS

AVIC Shares

Books Closure Date

Business Day

Cessation Date

Code

Companies Act

Companies Regulations

Compliance Placement

Compliance Placement Price

Consideration Shares

Convertible Bonds

Court

Court Meeting of Creditors

Court Meeting of Shareholders

Court Meetings

CPF Agent Bank Account

CPF Agent Banks

Ordinary shares in the share capital of AVIC Singapore

The date and time to be determined by the Judicial Managers
that the share transfer books and the register of members of the
Company will be closed to determine the entitlements of
Shareholders to the Shares for the purposes of calculating
entitlements to AVIC Shares under the Scheme which is expected
to be not less than three (3) days and not more than ten (10)
days after the Court sanction of the Scheme

A day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or public holiday) on
which banks are generally open for business in Singapore

The day following the expiry of six (6) calendar months after the
date of the cheque payment of the net proceeds from the sale of
Consideration Shares pursuant to Clauses 5.2.1(ii) and 6.2.4(i) of
the Scheme

The Singapore Code on Take-overs and Mergers
The Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore
The regulations promulgated under the Companies Act

The compliance placement to be undertaken by AVIC Singapore
in connection with the listing and quotation of AVIC Shares on the
Main Board of the SGX-ST

The issue price for each AVIC Share to be issued pursuant to the
Compliance Placement

The AVIC Shares to be allotted and issued and/or transferred by
AVIC Singapore to the Scheme Administrators, pursuant to the
Scheme and the Implementation Agreement, as described under
Clause 3.1 of the Scheme

The 4% convertible bonds due 2013 in an aggregate principal
amount of S$149,000,000, to be issued by the Company
pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into with Morgan
Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte. on 3 June 2008

The High Court or the Court of Appeal (as the case may be) of
the Republic of Singapore

The meeting of Creditors to be convened and held under the
directions of the Court, and any adjournment thereof

The meeting of Shareholders to be convened and held under the
directions of the Court, and any adjournment thereof

The Court Meeting of Creditors and the Court Meeting of
Shareholders collectively

A CPF investment account held by a CPFIS investor with a CPF
Agent Bank under the CPFIS

Agent banks included under the CPFIS



DEFINITIONS

CPFIS

Creditor

Depositor

Depository Register

Directors

Disputed Claim

Encumbrance

ETL
IFA

Implementation Agreement

Information Memorandum

Interim Judicial Managers

Judicial Management Order

Judicial Managers

The Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme

Any person who has or who purports to have a Scheme Claim
against the Company

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 130A of the Companies
Act and for the avoidance of doubt for the purposes of the
Scheme shall exclude persons holding Shares through CPF
Agent Banks

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 130A of the Companies
Act

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Scheme
Document

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 6.1.12 of the Scheme

Any legal, equitable or security interest, including but not limited
to any mortgage, charge (whether fixed or floating), pledge, lien
(including without limitation any unpaid vendor’s lien or similar
lien), assignment of rights and receivables, debenture, right of
first refusal, option, hypothecation, title retention or conditional
sale agreement, lease, hire or hire purchase agreement,
restriction as to transfer, use or possession, easement,
subordination to any right of any other person, and any other
encumbrance or security interest

The eligibility-to-list
Independent financial adviser

The conditional implementation agreement dated 7 January 2011,
entered into between the Judicial Managers, for and on behalf of
the Company, and AVIC Kairong relating to, inter alia, the
Scheme

The information memorandum dated 10 August 2011 issued by
AVIC Singapore in connection with the listing and quotation of the
AVIC Shares on the Main Board of the SGX-ST, containing, inter
alia, information on the AVIC Group, and accompanying this
Scheme Document

The interim judicial managers of the Company, namely Mr
Seshadri Rajagopalan and Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela of Ernst &
Young LLP, who were appointed as interim judicial managers of
the Company pursuant to an Order of Court dated 13 May 2010,
until their appointment as Judicial Managers pursuant to the
Judicial Management Order

The Order of Court dated 4 June 2010 placing the Company
under judicial management and as extended thereafter from time
to time

The judicial managers of the Company, namely Mr Seshadri
Rajagopalan and Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela of Ernst & Young LLP,
who were appointed as judicial managers of the Company
pursuant to the Judicial Management Order



DEFINITIONS

Latest Practicable Date

Liability

Order of Court

Overseas Creditors

Overseas Shareholders

Per cent or %

PRC

Proof of Debt

Proof of Debt Submission
Date

Registrar

Scheme

3 August 2011

Any obligation, liability or indebtedness of a person whether it is
present, future, prospective or contingent, whether its amount is
fixed or unliquidated, whether it arises in contract, tort, restitution
or otherwise, whether or not it involves the payment of money,
which arises at common law, in equity, by statute (in Singapore or
in any other jurisdiction) or which arises pursuant to a valid
assignment or a valid authority to pay any amount on behalf of a
person or in any other manner whatsoever provided that such
expression does not include any obligation or liability which is
barred by statute or one for which no remedy may be granted or
is otherwise unenforceable. For the avoidance of doubt, where
any obligation or liability under a contract or policy is void or,
being voidable, has been duly avoided, no obligation or liability
shall arise in respect of such obligation or liability

An order made by the High Court or the Court of Appeal (as the
case may be) of the Republic of Singapore

Creditors whose addresses according to the records of the
Company are outside Singapore and/or who have not notified the
Company, the Judicial Managers or the Scheme Administrators of
addresses in Singapore

Shareholders whose addresses are recorded in the register of
members of the Company or in the Depository Register
maintained by CDP as being outside Singapore

Percentage or per centum
The People’s Republic of China

The form executed or to be executed by a person who has or
purports to have a Scheme Claim against the Company in
respect of a claim arising out of or having its origin in any matter
occurring on or prior to 4 June 2010, stating the amount and
particulars of its claim against the Company as at 4 June 2010 in
the form annexed as Schedule 1, submitted to the Judicial
Managers at the Specified Address on or before the Proof of Debt
Submission Date; or submitted to the Judicial Managers at the
Specified Address after the Proof of Debt Submission Date and
admitted by the Judicial Managers pursuant to Clause 6.1.1 of the
Scheme; or an equivalent proof of debt form which is admitted by
the Judicial Managers pursuant to Clause 6.1.2 of the Scheme

5.00 p.m. on 15 August 2011, being the latest date for
submission of Proof of Debt by the Creditors for the purposes of
voting at the Court Meeting of Creditors and participating in the
Scheme

The Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority of Singapore

The scheme of compromise and arrangement as set out in
Appendix E



DEFINITIONS

Scheme Administrators

Scheme Claim

Scheme Document

Scheme Effective Date

Scheme Meeting

Securities Account

SGXNET

Share Distribution

Shareholders

Shares

Small Creditor

The Judicial Managers or any persons appointed by the Court to
be the administrators of the Scheme whether in addition to or in
replacement of any person as administrators of the Scheme
provided nevertheless that in the event of the termination of the
judicial management of the Company, then the persons who held
appointment as Scheme Administrators immediately on or before
the termination of the judicial management of the Company shall
continue to be Scheme Administrators unless and until replaced
by the Court, and subject to the provisions of Clause 13 of the
Scheme

In relation to any Creditor means the total amount of Liabilities
(including any Liabilities that had been agreed between the
Company and the respective Creditor but remained unpaid as at
4 June 2010), if any, as at 4 June 2010 for which the Company is
or may be liable to that Creditor (whether contingently or
otherwise) in respect of or arising from any and all acts,
omissions, agreements, transactions, dealings, matters and
events whatsoever effected, occurring or otherwise taking place
at any time prior to 4 June 2010, and which determination shall
be subject to the provisions of the Scheme

This Document including all its Appendices

The date on which the Scheme becomes effective in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme, being the date on which a copy of
the Order of Court sanctioning the Scheme is lodged with the
Registrar pursuant to the Companies Act or such earlier date as
the Court may determine and as may be specified in the Order of
Court sanctioning the Scheme

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Part VIII of the Scheme

Securities account maintained by a Depositor with CDP, but does
not include a securities sub-account or a CPF Agent Bank
Account

A system network used by listed companies to send information
and announcements to the SGX-ST or any other system network
prescribed by the SGX-ST

The proposed allotment and issuance and/or transfer by AVIC
Singapore of the Consideration Shares valued at the aggregate
sum of $$6,000,000.00 to the Scheme Administrators to hold on
trust for the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved
Scheme Claims under the Scheme

Persons who are registered as holders of Shares in the register of
members of the Company as at the Books Closure Date or,
where CDP is the registered holder, the term Shareholders shall,
in relation to such Shares, means the Depositors whose
Securities Accounts are credited with Shares as at the Books
Closure Date

Ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company

A Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim of less than
$$2,000.00



DEFINITIONS

Specified Address :  The office of the Judicial Managers in Singapore at One Raffles
Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583

Swap Agreement :  The swap agreement entered into between the Company and
MSCI on 3 June 2008, concurrently with the Company’s entry into
a subscription agreement with Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore)
Pte. on 3 June 2008 for the issue of the Convertible Bonds,
further details of which are set out in paragraph 2.1.2(ii) of the
Explanatory Statement

Transfer Date :  The date falling one (1) Business Day after the Scheme Effective
Date

Singapore Dollars or S$ or :  Singapore dollars and cents, respectively, being the lawful

$ and cents currency of the Republic of Singapore

Vesting Date :  The date falling ten (10) Business Days after the Scheme

Effective Date and at least two (2) Business Days before the
trading of AVIC Shares on the SGX-ST commences, or such
other period as the Scheme Administrators may determine

Words importing the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa and words
importing the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders and
vice versa. References to persons shall include firms and corporations.

Any reference in this Scheme Document to any statute or enactment or the Listing Manual is a reference
to that statute or enactment or the Listing Manual as for the time being amended or reenacted. Any word
defined under the Companies Act or the Listing Manual, or any modification thereof, and used in this
Scheme Document shall, where applicable, have the meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act or
the Listing Manual or any modification thereof, as the case may be, unless otherwise provided.

Any reference to a time of day or date in this Scheme Document shall be a reference to Singapore time
or date, as the case may be, unless otherwise stated.

Any discrepancies in tables included in this Scheme Document between the sum of the figures stated
and the totals thereof shown are due to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as totals in this Scheme
Document may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures which precede them.



INDICATIVE TIMETABLE

Proof of Debt Submission Date : 5.00 p.m. on 15 August 2011
Last date and time for lodgment® of proxy : 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011
forms® for the Court Meeting of

Creditors

Last date and time for lodgment® of proxy : 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011
Forms® for the Court Meeting of Shareholders

Date and time of the Court Meeting of : 9.30 a.m. on 26 August 2011
Creditors

Date and time of the Court Meeting of : 11.00 a.m. on 26 August 2011

Shareholders

Expected date of the Court hearing of the : 6 September 2011
application to sanction the Scheme

The following events are subject to the approval of the Scheme at the Court Meetings and the
sanction of the Scheme by the Court:

Expected Books Closure Date : To be announced in due course by the Company.
Expected to be 8 September 2011

Expected Scheme Effective Date : To be announced in due course by the Company.
Expected to be 8 September 2011

Expected Transfer Date : One (1) Business Day after the Scheme Effective
Date.
Expected to be 9 September 2011

Expected AVIC Singapore Listing and : One (1) Business Day after the Scheme Effective
Company Delisting Date.
Expected to be 9 September 2011

Expected Vesting Date : Ten (10) days after the Scheme Effective Date and
at least two (2) Business Days before trading of the
Consideration Shares on the SGX-ST commences,
or such other period as the Scheme Administrators
may determine.
Expected to be 22 September 2011

Expected date of CDP notification of the : Approximately three (3) Market Days after the
Shareholders and Creditors with Approved Vesting Date.
Scheme Claims who are Depositors of their Expected to be 27 September 2011

individual entitlements to the Consideration
Shares under the Share Distribution

The following event is subject to, inter alia, the completion of the Compliance Placement:

Expected date for the lifting of the : After completion of the Compliance Placement.
suspension on trading of the AVIC Shares Expected to be no later than 30 September 2011
on the Main Board of the SGX-ST

You should note that, save for the Proof of Debt Submission Date, the last date and time for lodgment of
proxy forms and the date and time of the Court Meetings, the above timetable is indicative only and may
be subject to change. For the events listed above which are described as “expected”, please refer to
future announcement(s) by the Company and/or the SGXNET for the exact dates and times of these
events.



INDICATIVE TIMETABLE

Notes:

(1)

@)

All proxy forms for the Court Meetings must be lodged at the office of the Judicial Managers in Singapore at One Raffles
Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583. The proxy forms for the Court Meetings are requested to be lodged not later
than 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011. Completion and return of a proxy form will not preclude a Shareholder or Creditor from
attending and voting in person at the relevant Court Meeting if they subsequently decide to do so. In such event, the proxy
form will be deemed revoked.

Please use the correct proxy forms for the respective meetings. The relevant proxy forms for the respective meetings are as
follows:

To be completed by Colour of Proxy Form For
Creditors Green Court Meeting of Creditors
Shareholders Yellow Court Meeting of Shareholders
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PRELIMINARY

This Scheme Document has been prepared solely for the purpose of seeking Shareholders’ and
Creditors’ approval for the Scheme and may not be relied upon by any person other than the Creditors
and the Shareholders or for any other purpose.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those
contained in this Scheme Document and the accompanying Information Memorandum in connection with
the Scheme and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorised by the Company, AVIC Singapore, the Judicial Managers or the Scheme Administrators.
Nothing contained herein is, or may be relied upon as, a promise or representation as to the future
performance, financial position or policies of the Company or the AVIC Group. None of the delivery of this
Scheme Document and the accompanying Information Memorandum and the Share Distribution shall,
under any circumstance, constitute a continuing representation, or give rise to any implication or
suggestion, that there has not been or there will not be any change in the affairs of the Company or the
AVIC Group or in the information herein since the Latest Practicable Date. Where any such changes
occur after the date hereof, the Company and/or AVIC Singapore (as the case may be) may make an
announcement of the same on the SGXNET. You should take note of any such announcement and shall,
upon the release of such an announcement, be deemed to have notice of such changes.

The distribution of this Scheme Document, the accompanying Information Memorandum and other
relevant documents, and/or the Share Distribution (if any) may be prohibited or restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. You are required to inform yourself of and to observe any such prohibitions and restrictions.
It is your responsibility in such jurisdictions to satisfy yourself as to the full observance of the laws of the
relevant jurisdiction in connection therewith, including the obtaining of any government, exchange control
or other consents which may be required, the compliance with all necessary formalities which are
required to be observed and/or payment of any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such jurisdiction(s).

Where the Company is of the view that the distribution of this Scheme Document, the accompanying
Information Memorandum and/or any other relevant document to any Overseas Shareholder or Overseas
Creditor of the Company in any jurisdiction(s) may infringe any relevant foreign law or necessitate
compliance with conditions or requirements which the Company regards as onerous or impracticable by
reason of costs, delay or otherwise, the Company reserves the right not to distribute this Scheme
Document, the accompanying Information Memorandum and other relevant documents to Overseas
Shareholders and Overseas Creditors with addresses in such jurisdiction(s). Please also refer to Section
8 of the Explanatory Statement entitled “Overseas Shareholders and Overseas Creditors”.

This Scheme Document, the accompanying Information Memorandum and/or any other related
documents may not be used for the purposes of, and does not constitute, an offer, invitation or solicitation
in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such offer, invitation or solicitation is not authorised or
to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, invitation or solicitation.

You are advised to consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant, tax adviser or other
professional advisers immediately if you are in any doubt as to any aspect of the Scheme, including the
tax implications of approving the Scheme or the holding of AVIC Shares pursuant to the Scheme. It is
emphasised that none of the Company, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme Administrators, AVIC
Singapore, the directors of AVIC Singapore or any other persons involved in the Scheme accept
responsibility for any tax effects of, or such liabilities resulting from, the Scheme and/or the holding of
AVIC Shares.

The SGX-ST assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements made, opinions
expressed or reports contained in this Scheme Document.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements contained in this Scheme Document and the accompanying Information Memorandum,
including statements in press releases and oral statements, that are made or may be made by the
Company or its officers, the Judicial Managers, or employees acting on the Company’s behalf, and/or the
AVIC Singapore, that are not statements of historical fact, constitute “forward-looking statements”. Some

”

of these forward-looking statements can be identified by terms such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “could”,
“estimate”, “expect”, “forecast”, “if”, “intend”, “may”, “plan”, “possible”, “probable”, “project”, “should”, “will”
and “would” or similar words. However, these words are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-
looking statements. All statements regarding AVIC Singapore’s expected financial position, performance,

business strategy, plans and prospects are forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements, including (but not limited to) statements as to AVIC Singapore’s
revenue and profitability, costs measures, expected industry trends, prospects, future plans, planned
strategy and other matters discussed in this Scheme Document and/or the accompanying Information
Memorandum regarding matters that are not historical fact, are only predictions.

These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that
may cause AVIC Singapore’s actual future results, performance or achievements to be materially different
from any future results, performance or achievements expected in, expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, among others, those relating to
AVIC Singapore described in the accompanying Information Memorandum under the section “Risk
Factors”. Additional factors that could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ
materially include, but are not limited to, those discussed under the sections entitled “General
Information on our Group”, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in the accompanying Information Memorandum and other matters not yet
known to the Company and/or AVIC Singapore or not yet currently considered material by AVIC
Singapore and/or the Company.

Given the risks and uncertainties that may cause AVIC Singapore’s actual future results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from those expected in, or expressed or implied by, the forward-
looking statements or financial information set out in this Scheme Document and/or the accompanying
Information Memorandum, undue reliance must not be placed on them. Neither the Company, AVIC
Singapore, the IFA, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme Administrators nor any other party involved in the
Scheme and the Share Distribution represents or warrants that AVIC Singapore’s actual future results,
performance or achievements will be as discussed in those statements or financial information. AVIC
Singapore’s actual results, performance or achievements may differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of, inter alia, the risks faced by them respectively.

Further, the Company, AVIC Singapore, the IFA, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme Administrators and
all parties involved in the Scheme and the Share Distribution disclaim any responsibility to update any of
those forward-looking statements or information or publicly announce any revisions to them to reflect
future developments, events or circumstances for any reason, even if new information becomes available
or other events occur in the future. However, the Company and AVIC Singapore are, or will be, as the
case may be, subject to the relevant provisions of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of
Singapore, and the Listing Manual regarding corporate disclosure.

This Scheme Document may include market and industry data and information that have been obtained
from, inter alia, internal studies, where appropriate, as well as publicly available information and industry
publications. There can be no assurance as to the accuracy or completeness of such information. While
the Company has taken reasonable steps to ensure that the information is extracted accurately, the
Company has not independently verified any of the data from third party sources or ascertained the
underlying bases or assumptions relied upon therein.
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LETTER FROM THE JUDICIAL MANAGERS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND

THE CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY

10 August 2011

To: The Shareholders and Creditors of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under
Judicial Management)

Dear Sir/Madam,

PROPOSED SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTION 210 (READ WITH
SECTION 227X) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, CHAPTER 50 OF SINGAPORE

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.2

2.3

INTRODUCTION

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 2 October
2001 and admitted to the Official List of the SGX-ST on 28 April 2006.

On 23 September 2009, the Company requested for its shares to be suspended from trading. It
was placed under judicial management on 4 June 2010.

On 7 January 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into the Implementation
Agreement with AVIC Kairong and the Asset Recovery Agreement with HLM.

This Scheme is proposed to give full effect to the Implementation Agreement.

An explanatory statement setting out the key terms of, the rationale for and the effect of the
Scheme, and the procedures for the implementation of the Scheme accompanies this letter. The
explanatory statement should be read in conjunction with the full text of the Scheme.

RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

The Company is currently under judicial management. Its assets are essentially its investments in
subsidiaries in the PRC and the realisable value of those assets is much lower than the Company’s
liabilities. The reasons for this are elaborated upon in the Explanatory Statement.

The Scheme provides for Shareholders to receive a pro rata number of AVIC Shares up to a total
value of S$680,000. The value of the AVIC Shares will be calculated by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price. The AVIC Shares will be listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST and
freely tradable. Accordingly, the Scheme offers a potential recovery for, and better return to, the
Shareholders.

Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims will receive a pro rata number of AVIC Shares up to a
value of §$5,320,000 in consideration for the pro rata cancellation of their Approved Scheme
Claims to such total value. The value of the AVIC Shares will be calculated by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price. Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims remain creditors of the
Company for the balance of their Approved Scheme Claims.

THE SCHEME
Share Distribution, Transfer of Shares and Debt Settlement

3.1.1 Pursuant to this Scheme, AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue to
the Scheme Administrators, on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to
distribute on the Vesting Date to the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved Scheme
Claims, in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, such number of Consideration Shares
valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at the aggregate sum of
$$6,000,000.00 free from all Encumbrances.
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3.2

5.2

3.1.2 The Share Distribution shall be apportioned as follows:

(i) Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of S$680,000.00 to be distributed to the Shareholders; and

(i)  Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of S$5,320,000.00 to be distributed to the Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims.

Consideration for the Share Distribution
3.2.1 As to the Shareholders:

(i) they will cease to be Shareholders of the Company and in consideration, they will
receive a proportionate number of Consideration Shares with an aggregate value of
S$$680,000.00 (calculated by reference to the Compliance Placement Price). It is
estimated that Shareholders will receive 1 AVIC Share for every 250 Shares they hold
based on a projected Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50;

(i)  all of their Shares shall be transferred to the Judicial Managers who shall receive full
legal title to the Shares, fully paid, free from any Encumbrance, and who shall
continue to hold the beneficial title to the Shares for and on behalf of the
Shareholders; and

(i)  on or shortly after the Transfer Date, all of the Shares shall be withdrawn from the
Official List of the SGX-ST.

Please refer to Part 11l of the Scheme in Appendix E for further details.

3.2.2 As to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, they will receive a proportionate number
of Consideration Shares with an aggregate value of S$5,320,000.00 (calculated by
reference to the Compliance Placement Price) and in consideration, the Company shall be
completely and absolutely released and discharged to the aggregate value of the
Consideration Shares received by each Creditor under this Scheme in satisfaction of that
Creditor's Approved Scheme Claim.

Please refer to Part IV of the Scheme in Appendix E for further details.

DELISTING

The Company is listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST. If the Scheme becomes effective and
binding, on or shortly after the Transfer Date, the Judicial Managers will hold all the Shares in the
Company and (subject to the approval of the SGX-ST) the Shares will be delisted and withdrawn
from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

TRADING IN AVIC SHARES

Distribution of AVIC Shares

The Scheme Administrators will distribute Consideration Shares to the Shareholders and Creditors
with Approved Scheme Claims on the Vesting Date in accordance with the Scheme.

Trading in AVIC Shares

It is envisaged that AVIC Shares will be traded on the SGX-ST in board lots of 1,000 AVIC Shares.
Following the Share Distribution, the Securities Accounts of Shareholders and Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims may be credited with odd lots of AVIC Shares (i.e. lots other than board
lots of 1,000 AVIC Shares).
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8.2

8.3

OPINION OF THE IFA

The Company has appointed Stirling Coleman Capital Limited as the IFA to advise its
Shareholders in respect of the Scheme and the IFA’s advice is set out in its letter dated 10 August
2011 in Appendix D of this Scheme Document. Having regard to the considerations as set out in
its letter and the information made available to it as at the Latest Practicable Date, the IFA is of the
opinion that, on balance, the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders, when considered in
the context of the prospects of a delisting and the unlikely event that the Shareholders would be
able to recover any value from their Shares in the event of a liquidation, are fair and reasonable.
Accordingly, the IFA recommends that Shareholders vote in favour of the resolution to be tabled at
the Court Meeting of Shareholders in relation to the Scheme to Shareholders. You are advised to
read the letter from the IFA carefully in its entirety.

RECOMMENDATION OF THE JUDICIAL MANAGERS

As the Judicial Managers are deemed to be one of the joint offerors for the Shares, they will
accordingly abstain from making any recommendation to the Shareholders. Notwithstanding the
above, the Judicial Managers would like to refer Shareholders to the IFA’s recommendation as set
out in the IFA’s letter as exhibited in Appendix D. Any Shareholder who may require advice in the
context of his specific investment objectives or portfolio should consult his stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant, tax adviser or other professional advisers immediately.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE JUDICIAL MANAGERS

The Judicial Managers were initially appointed as interim judicial managers on 13 May 2010 and
then as judicial managers on 4 June 2010. Prior to 13 May 2010, the Judicial Managers had no
involvement with the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

To the best of the Judicial Managers’ knowledge and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
this Scheme Document (other than the letter from the IFA set out in Appendix D of this Scheme
Document, and any information relating to the AVIC Group, including but not limited to information
contained in the Information Memorandum) constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts
about the Scheme, the Company and its Subsidiaries (as defined in paragraph 1.3.1 of the
Explanatory Statement), and the Judicial Managers are not aware of any material facts the
omission of which would make any statement in this Scheme Document misleading and they jointly
and severally accept responsibility accordingly.

The Judicial Managers do not have management control of and have not managed the AVIC
Group and have no direct or indirect involvement in the affairs of the AVIC Group. Where
information relating to the AVIC Group has been extracted from the accompanying Information
Memorandum or from published or otherwise publicly available sources or is otherwise based on
information obtained from AVIC Singapore or other relevant persons, the sole responsibility of the
Judicial Managers has been to ensure that such information has been accurately and correctly
extracted from these sources or, as the case may be, reflected or reproduced in this Scheme
Document. The Judicial Managers have not undertaken any independent verification of such
information.
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MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

9.1 By an order of Court dated 28 June 2011 in Originating Summons No. 453 of 2010/P, the High
Court of Singapore granted leave for meetings of the Shareholders and Creditors to be convened
to consider, and if thought fit, to approve (with or without modifications) the Scheme. The meeting
of Creditors will be held at 9.30 a.m. on 26 August 2011 at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One
Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989 and the meeting of Shareholders will be held at 11.00 a.m.
on 26 August 2011 at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore
018989.

9.2 If both meetings approve the Scheme by the requisite statutory majorities, an application will be
made to the High Court of Singapore to sanction the Scheme.

9.3 If the High Court sanctions the Scheme, it will come into effect on the lodgment of the Order of
Court with the Registrar or such earlier date as the Court may specify in its Order of Court.

Yours faithfully,

Mr Seshadri Rajagopalan Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela
Judicial Managers

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited
(Under Judicial Management)
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(In compliance with Section 211 of the Companies Act)

THE ACTION REQUIRED TO BE TAKEN BY THE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS OF SINO-
ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED (UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT) IS SET OUT IN
SECTION 7 OF THIS EXPLANATORY STATEMENT.

THE COURT MEETING OF CREDITORS TO CONSIDER THE SCHEME WILL BE HELD ON
26 AUGUST 2011 AT 9.30 A.M. AT TRAINING ROOM 903, NTUC CENTRE, ONE MARINA
BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE 018989.

THE COURT MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO CONSIDER THE SCHEME WILL BE HELD ON
26 AUGUST 2011 AT 11.00 A.M. AT TRAINING ROOM 903, NTUC CENTRE, ONE MARINA
BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE 018989.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(In compliance with Section 211 of the Companies Act)

To:

Shareholders and Creditors of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under Judicial
Management)

PROPOSED SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTION 210 (READ WITH
SECTION 227X) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, CHAPTER 50 OF SINGAPORE

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

INTRODUCTION

Explanatory Statement

The purpose of this Explanatory Statement is to provide Shareholders and Creditors with
information on the Scheme and to explain the rationale for and effect of the Scheme. It should be
read in conjunction with the full text of the Scheme as set out in Appendix E.

What is a Scheme of Arrangement?

1.2.1

1.2.2

Under Singapore law, a scheme of arrangement of the kind proposed here is a compromise
or arrangement provided for under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies
Act. The arrangement becomes legally binding on all of the shareholders and creditors to
whom it is intended to apply if:

(i) a majority in number representing three-fourths (75%) in value of the shareholders;
and

(i)  atleast three-fourths (75%) in value of the creditors,

present and voting in person or by proxy, vote in favour of it at a meeting of shareholders
and meeting of creditors respectively convened with the leave of the Court; and

(iii)  the Court subsequently approves the scheme of arrangement.

The scheme of arrangement will become effective and binding upon the date of lodgment
with the Registrar of the Order of Court sanctioning the scheme of arrangement (or on such
earlier date as the Court may determine and as may be specified in the Order of Court
sanctioning the scheme of arrangement).

Background

1.3.1

The Company and its Subsidiaries (as defined below)

(i The Company was incorporated in Singapore on 2 October 2001. The Company’s
subsidiaries are:

(a)  Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd (Singapore) (in liquidation);

(b)  Sino-Environment Waste Management Technology Pte Ltd (Singapore) (struck
off);

(c)  China Energy Environment (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong) (deregistered);
(d)  Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co., Ltd (PRC);

(e)  Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian) Co., Ltd (PRC);

() Fujian Weidong EPT Co., Ltd (PRC);

(g) Fujian Weidong Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (PRC);
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(ii)

(iii)

(h)  Chuang-Dong Energy & Env-Tech (Fujian) Co., Ltd (PRC);

() Thumb Waste Management Technology (Nanping) Co., Ltd (PRC);

() Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Protection Co., Ltd (PRC);

(k) Xining Aiyuan Landfill Gas Co., Ltd (PRC); and

U] Chongging Thumb Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (PRC)

(the “Subsidiaries”).

The Company and its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) principally carried on
business as an environmental protection and waste recovery solutions specialist in

the PRC. The Group’s business is split into the following main segments:

(a) industrial waste gas treatment, management and recovery of volatile organic
compounds, in particular toluene;

(b)  dust elimination;

(c) industrial waste gas treatment and management of sulphur dioxide and
oxidised forms of nitrogen for independent power plants, in particular coal-fired
power plants; and

(d)  industrial and municipal waste water treatment and management.

On 28 April 2006, the Company was admitted to the Official List of the SGX-ST.

1.3.2 Events Leading up to the Judicial Management Order

U

(ii)

(iii)

On 17 September 2009, a request for trading halt was made by the Company
pursuant to the identification of certain questionable cash transactions and matters by
PwC during the course of its review of cash transactions for the three-month period
ended 31 March 2009. The identification of certain questionable cash transactions
and matters by PwC was announced on 12 October 2009 and a summary of the
findings of PwC was announced on 4 December 2009. The announcement of 4
December 2009 setting out the summary of PwC’s findings is set out in Appendix H
of this Scheme Document.

On 23 September 2009, the Company requested for its shares to be suspended from
trading.

Between 10 November 2009 and 5 January 2010, there were substantial changes to
the Board and management of the Company as set out below:

(@) Mr. Liang Wee Leong Raynauld, the Financial Controller of Sino-Environment
Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd, was summarily dismissed and his
employment was terminated by the Company on 10 November 2009;

(b)  Mr. Sun Jiangrong, the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. You Shengquan, the Acting
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, and Professor Li Shouxin,
the Chief Technical Officer, resigned as Directors with effect from 2 January
2010;
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1.3.3

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(c) Mr. Sam Chong Keen was appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect
from 5 January 2010;

(d) Mr. In Nany Sing Charlie and Mr. Wong Sek Choon were appointed as
Independent Directors with effect from 5 January 2010; and

(e) Mr. Liang Wee Leong Raynauld was subsequently appointed as Head of
Finance of the Group with effect from 6 January 2010.

Following this, the Board took several steps to restore and turn around the Company.

However, notwithstanding such steps, by 11 May 2010, the Board was of the view
that placing the Company under judicial management would be in the best interest of
all stakeholders. Pending the fixing of date of the hearing of the judicial management
application, the Company applied to Court to appoint Mr. Seshadri Rajagopalan and
Ms. Ee Meng Yen Angela of Ernst & Young LLP as interim judicial managers to, inter
alia, manage the affairs, business and property of the Company.

The Company was placed under interim judicial management on 13 May 2010 and
subsequently under judicial management on 4 June 2010 by the Judicial
Management Order. Mr. Rajagopalan and Ms. Ee were appointed as judicial
managers. As judicial managers, Mr. Rajagopalan and Ms. Ee may exercise their
powers of management to do all things as may be necessary for the management of
the affairs, business and property of the Company, acting in the interest of all
stakeholders, which will include the Creditors and Shareholders.

The Judicial Management Order will expire on 1 January 2012, unless otherwise
extended.

The Memorandum of Understanding dated 2 August 2010, the Implementation Agreement
and the Asset Recovery Agreement

U

The Judicial Managers have actively sought potential investors who were interested
in investing in the Company and/or the Group. Of the interested parties, HLM had
submitted a letter of intention setting out the interest of a consortium of strategic
and/or financial investors to acquire a majority stake in the Company by way of
subscribing for new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company. Subsequent to
discussions with HLM, the Company had on 2 August 2010 entered into the
Memorandum of Understanding with HLM. The Judicial Managers had taken into
account the following main factors prior to entering into the Memorandum of
Understanding with HLM:

(@) HLM referred AVIC Kairong to the Judicial Managers as a potential investor;
and

(b) HLM was able and willing to assist the Judicial Managers to (1) liaise with,
cooperate and work with all relevant government agencies and regulators to
pursue the enforcement of rules and regulations, and; (2) regain control over
and recover the Company’s assets in the PRC.

Please refer to Appendix I for further information on HLM.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Under the non-binding Memorandum Of Understanding, the Judicial Managers and
HLM had agreed to cooperate exclusively and work together to regain control over
and recover the Company’s assets in the PRC, comprising mainly the Company’s
equity interests in its Subsidiaries.

Further to the Judicial Managers’ submission to the SGX-ST on 22 September 2010
for an extension of time to submit a resumption of trading proposal, the SGX-ST had
on 1 October 2010 granted the Company up to 30 November 2010 to submit
information to the SGX-ST for its consideration.

On 7 December 2010, the Company announced that the SGX-ST had granted the
Company an extension of up to 30 June 2011 to implement the resumption of trading
proposal and resume trading.

With a view to achieving the aforementioned timeline, the Judicial Managers
continued to engage in negotiations with HLM and the long-stop date under the
Memorandum of Understanding was extended on several occasions, with the last
extension being a long-stop date of 15 January 2011 as announced by the Company
on 3 January 2011.

On 7 January 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into:
(a) the Implementation Agreement with AVIC Kairong; and
(b)  the Asset Recovery Agreement with HLM.

Pursuant to the Implementation Agreement, the Company and AVIC Kairong have
agreed that AVIC Kairong shall procure the issuance of the Consideration Shares to
the Shareholders and the Creditors, subject to the compromise and settlement of a
portion of the debts owing from the Company to the Creditors, the listing of AVIC
Singapore by way of a transfer of the Company’s listing status to AVIC Singapore and
the concurrent delisting and withdrawal of shares of the Company from the Main
Board of the SGX-ST, all of which are to be implemented by way of the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Asset Recovery Agreement, HLM has agreed to render all assistance
to the Company in connection with the recovery of the Company’s assets in the PRC,
including advising on all possible actions and methods, the formulation of plans and
strategies, and recommending and appointing other third party professionals,
consultants and advisers. In consideration of HLM’s efforts and services to be
rendered to the Company, the Company shall pay to HLM a success fee upon
completion of the recovery of the Company’s assets, subject to the fulfiiment by HLM
of all its obligations under the Asset Recovery Agreement and the approval of the
Creditors. Completion of the asset recovery shall be deemed to have occurred upon
the completion of the sale of the assets to be recovered, and the receipt of the
proceeds of such sale by the Company from the purchaser(s).

The SGX-ST has granted a further extension to 22 July 2011 and subsequently to 30
September 2011 to implement the resumption of trading proposal.

This Scheme is proposed to give full effect to the Implementation Agreement.
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21

RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME AND REASONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS TO
APPROVE THE SCHEME

Rationale for the Scheme

2141

21.2

The Company is currently under judicial management. Being an investment holding
company, the Company’s assets are essentially its investments in its Subsidiaries in the
PRC. Based on the Statement of Affairs as at 13 May 2010 (see Appendix C), the assets
of the Company consist primarily of:

Description Cost / Book Value Estimated
Value Realisable
S$ S$
Cash maintained with a bank in Singapore 3,142,506 3,142,506"
Cash maintained with a bank in China 14,087,143 —@
Investments in Subsidiaries® 147,104,719 —@
Amount owing to Company from Subsidiaries® 60,459,046 —@
Amounts due from Morgan Stanley & Co International PLC® 67,358,026 —@
Notes:

(1)  The amount taken over by the Judicial Managers as at 13 May 2010 is S$3,035,652 and as at the Latest
Practicable Date, this amount is S$1,881,754.22.

(2)  The Directors are unable to provide a realisable value for these assets.

(3) The Subsidiaries are Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd, Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian)
Co., Ltd and Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co., Ltd.

(4)  The Subsidiaries are Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd and Thumb Env-Tech Group
(Fujian) Co., Ltd.

(6)  These amounts are due from Morgan Stanley & Co International PLC pursuant to the Swap Agreement (as
defined below in paragraph 2.1.2(ii)).

Realisable assets

(i) The only assets of the Company that are realisable in the short term are its listing
status on the Official List of the SGX-ST and cash maintained with a bank in
Singapore. The cash in the PRC bank, investments in and receivables from the
Subsidiaries are difficult to realise because of the complicated court and liquidation
procedures in the PRC and the associated time and expense of such procedures.
The control of the PRC Subsidiaries and their assets, including cash in the bank
accounts in the name of the PRC Subsidiaries, are with the legal representatives of
those Subsidiaries. The Judicial Managers have, since their appointment, taken active
steps to replace the legal representatives. The steps have been complicated and
time-consuming, and are continuing. The Judicial Managers understand that there
may continue to be practical difficulties with the actual control of the Subsidiaries and
their assets even after a successful replacement of legal representatives. In the event
that the Company is able to recover the cash in the PRC bank, as well as the
investments in and receivables from the Subsidiaries, the Company will only be
entitled to 85% and 49% respectively, of the net proceeds recovered under the Asset
Recovery Agreement entered into with HLM. Accordingly, it has been separately
agreed with HLM that a 15% success fee is payable to it for the repatriation of the
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cash in the PRC bank, which shall be payable out of the net proceeds recovered in
respect of such cash, and HLM will receive 51% of the net proceeds recovered in
respect of the investments in and receivables from the Subsidiaries as the success
fee related thereto. The Judicial Managers’ and their lawyers’ fees and expenses shall
be paid out of the net proceeds received by the Judicial Managers. The quantum of
such fees and expenses will depend upon the duties and services to be performed in
respect of the recovery of the assets and be subject to the approval of the Creditors.

(i)  On or about 3 June 2008, the Company entered into the Swap Agreement. The Swap
Agreement evidenced a swap transaction for Shares for a value of $S$67,358,026. The
Swap Agreement was entered into to facilitate the issue of the Convertible Bonds, by
allowing investors in the Convertible Bonds to hedge their exposure to the Shares
arising from their investment in the Convertible Bonds. The equity swap was intended
to provide the Company with economic exposure to the fluctuation in the value of
36,856,000 notional Shares, and during the life of the equity swap, the Company
would receive an amount equal to any dividends paid on the 36,856,000 notional
Shares.

(i)  Since the submission of the Statement of Affairs, MSCI has served notice of
termination of the Swap Agreement on the basis of the Company being under judicial
management. The Judicial Managers are advised that the termination is valid.

(iv)  The Implementation Agreement and the Scheme are means for the Company to
extract value from the Company’s listing status for the benefit of Shareholders and
Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims.

(v)  Given that the Shares have been suspended from trading since 23 September 2009
and that the Shareholders are unlikely to realise any value from the Shares upon a
winding up of the Company as the liabilities of the Company far exceed its assets,
and in light of the fact that the Company will be delisted in any event if the
Implementation Agreement fails to complete, the Scheme is likely to represent the
final opportunity for Shareholders to unlock the value of their investment in the
Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total of the proofs of debt (net of
Small Creditors) received amounted to S$311,545,972. The proofs are subject to
review and assessment by the Judicial Managers (and adjudication by the Court, if
any, in the event of any dispute by Creditors) but it is very likely that the liabilities will
far exceed any recovery of assets.

(vi) In addition, in the event the Company is unable to complete the Scheme, the
Company is likely to be delisted and liquidated. Any returns to the Creditors in such
a situation would be from the Company’s assets in the PRC, if any and if recoverable.

(viij  The Scheme offers a potential recovery for the Shareholders and Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims.

2.1.3 The total amount of liabilities of the Company as at 13 May 2010 amounts to

S$$195,868,160, of which approximately S$154.96 million is due to the holders of the
Convertible Bonds.
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2.2

23

3.2

Shareholders

In consideration of the surrender of their Shares, the Shareholders will receive a pro rata number
of AVIC Shares up to a total value of S$680,000.00. The value of the AVIC Shares will be
calculated by reference to the Compliance Placement Price. Based on a projected Compliance
Placement Price of S$0.50, the Shareholders will receive an aggregate of 1,360,000 AVIC Shares,
amounting to 0.59% of a total of 232,000,000 AVIC Shares in the capital of AVIC Singapore prior
to the completion of the Compliance Placement. The AVIC Shares will be listed on the Official List
of the SGX-ST and freely tradable. In the event that the Company is liquidated, it is unlikely that
there will be any residual value available for distribution to the Shareholders after payment to the
creditors of the Company. As such, the Scheme, offers a potential recovery for, and better return
to the Shareholders.

Creditors

Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims will receive a pro rata number of AVIC Shares up to a
value of $$5,320,000.00 in consideration for the pro rata cancellation of their Approved Scheme
Claims to such total value. The value of the AVIC Shares will be calculated by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price. Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims remain creditors of the
Company for the balance of their Approved Scheme Claims.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME
Share Distribution, Transfer of Shares and Debt Settlement

3.1.1 Pursuant to the Scheme, AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue to
the Scheme Administrators, on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to
distribute on the Vesting Date to the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved Scheme
Claims, in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, such number of Consideration Shares
valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at the aggregate sum of
$$6,000,000.00 free from all Encumbrances.

3.1.2 The Share Distribution shall be apportioned as follows:

(i) Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of S$680,000.00 to be distributed to the Shareholders; and

(i)  Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of S%$5,320,000.00 to be distributed to the Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims.

Consideration for the Share Distribution
3.2.1 As to the Shareholders:

(i) they will cease to be Shareholders of the Company and in consideration, they will
receive a proportionate number of Consideration Shares with an aggregate value of
S$680,000.00 (calculated by reference to the Compliance Placement Price). It is
estimated that Shareholders will receive 1 AVIC Share for every 250 Shares they hold
based on a projected Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50;

(i)  all of their Shares shall be transferred to the Judicial Managers who shall receive full
legal title to the Shares, fully paid, free from any Encumbrance, and who shall
continue to hold the beneficial title to the Shares for and on behalf of the
Shareholders; and
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

(i)  on or shortly after the Transfer Date, all of the Shares shall be withdrawn from the
Official List of the SGX-ST.

Please refer to Part 11l of the Scheme in Appendix E for further details.

3.2.2 As to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, they will receive a proportionate number
of Consideration Shares with aggregate value of $$5,320,000.00 (calculated by reference to
the Compliance Placement Price) and in consideration, the Company shall be completely
and absolutely released and discharged to the aggregate value of the Consideration Shares
received by each Creditor under this Scheme in satisfaction of that Creditor’s Approved
Scheme Claim.

Please refer to Part IV of the Scheme in Appendix E for further details.

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore Undertaking

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore have agreed to appear by counsel at the Court hearing of the
application to sanction this Scheme and to consent thereto, and to undertake to the Court to be
bound thereby and to execute and do and procure to be executed and done all such documents,
acts and things as may reasonably be necessary to be executed and done by them for the purpose
of giving effect to this Scheme.

Delisting

The Company is listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST. If the Scheme becomes effective and
binding, on or shortly after the Transfer Date, the Judicial Managers will hold all the Shares in the
Company and (subject to the approval of the SGX-ST) the Shares will be delisted and withdrawn
from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

Risk Factors

In considering whether to vote in favour of the Scheme, each Shareholder and Creditor should
carefully consider the terms of the Scheme. The following summary of risk factors is not
exhaustive and Shareholders and Creditors should also consider all other risks relevant in the
circumstances.

3.5.1 Risk of Scheme not being approved by the Court

Even if the appropriate level of support is obtained from Shareholders and Creditors (which
cannot be assured) at the respective Court Meetings, approval of the Scheme is at the
discretion of the Court. Whilst the Company believes that the relevant statutory formalities
have been complied with, the Court could determine that this Scheme is inadequate, and/or
for other reasons, determine that the Scheme fails to meet various other requirements, and
require amendments or modifications which might not be acceptable to the Company, its
Shareholders or its Creditors or might not be able to be accomplished in a timely manner.

3.5.2 AVIC Shares

Shareholders and Creditors must appreciate that no representation as to the information
relating to AVIC Singapore is made by the Judicial Managers. Information on the AVIC
Group is set out in full in the accompanying Information Memorandum.

For the avoidance of doubt, shares that are held by the Company that are in treasury shall have no
rights attached to them under the Scheme.
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3.7

3.8

Further Information
The resulting shareholding structure if the Scheme becomes effective is as follows:

Judicial Creditors with Shareholders AVIC Kairong Others®
Managers Approved
Scheme
The Company AVIC Singapore

Notes

(1)  Excludes Small Creditors.

(2)  Persons subscribing for and allotted and issued AVIC Shares under the Compliance Placement.

Conditions Precedent

The implementation of the Scheme is subject, inter alia, to the following conditions precedent being

satisfied or waived (as the case may be):

3.8.1 the approval of the Scheme by the Shareholders and the Creditors in compliance with the

requirements of Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act;

3.8.2 the grant of the Order of Court pursuant to Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the

Companies Act, and such Order of Court having become effective;

3.8.3 no injunction or other order being issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other
legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Scheme or the transactions

proposed herein or any part thereof;

3.8.4 obtaining all necessary consents, approvals, waivers, exemptions or other acts from any
foreign or Singaporean government or governmental, semi-governmental, administrative,
regulatory, fiscal or judicial agency, authority, body, commission, department, exchange,
tribunal or entity (including without limitation, the SGX-ST, the SIC and the Monetary
Authority of Singapore) as reasonably required to implement the Scheme and at the
consummation, execution and completion of the Implementation Agreement, such consents
and approvals having been duly authorised or obtained or otherwise completed and being in

full force and effect on the Scheme Effective Date;

3.8.5 written confirmation by AVIC Kairong and/or AVIC Singapore to the Company that
completion of any restructuring exercise is in accordance with and as described in the

listing application submitted by AVIC Kairong; and

3.8.6 receipt of the ETL from the SGX-ST for the admission and listing and quotation of AVIC
Shares on the Main Board of the SGX-ST on or before 30 June 2011 and such ETL not
having been revoked or withdrawn, and all conditions to such ETL (save in respect of

shareholding spread) being satisfied.
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4.2

5.2

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE SCHEME

The Judicial Managers do not propose to set out the illustrative financial effects of the Scheme for
the following reasons:

4.1.1 the last audited consolidated financial statements of the Company was for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008 (the “FY2008 Audited Accounts”), a period more than two (2)
years ago. In addition, the Judicial Managers understand that the then auditors of the
Company issued a disclaimer of opinion in respect of the FY2008 Audited Accounts, and
also expressed concerns over the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern;
and

4.1.2 the Judicial Managers had written to the Subsidiaries for information (including financial
information) but had not received any response to such requests.

In light of the foregoing, the Judicial Managers believe that the presentation of any financial effects
of the Scheme will be misleading to Shareholders and will not serve any illustrative purposes.

TRADING IN AVIC SHARES

Distribution of AVIC Shares

The Scheme Administrators will distribute Consideration Shares to the Shareholders and Creditors
with Approved Scheme Claims on the Vesting Date in accordance with the Scheme.

Trading in AVIC Shares

It is envisaged that AVIC Shares will be traded on the SGX-ST in board lots of 1,000 AVIC Shares.
Following the Share Distribution, the Securities Accounts of Shareholders and Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims may be credited with odd lots of AVIC Shares (i.e. lots other than board
lots of 1,000 AVIC Shares).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
Interests of Directors in the Scheme

6.1.1 The interests of the Directors in the Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out
below:

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Number of Shares % Number of Shares %

Directors

Dr In Nany Sing Charlie - - - -
Mr Sam Chong Keen - - - —
Mr Wong Sek Choon - - - —
Mr Goh Chee Wee - - — -

Dr Wong Chiang Yin - - - -

6.1.2 In addition, the Judicial Managers have considered and accepted a claim for a sum of
$$300,255.73 in relation to services rendered by Mr. Sam Chong Keen in his capacity as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from February to May 2010.

6.1.3 Save as disclosed above and as far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors has
any direct or indirect interests in the Scheme.
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6.2

7.2

7.3

Effect of the Scheme on such interests

The effect of the Scheme on such interests (if any) of the Directors does not differ from that of
other Shareholders and Creditors.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN BY SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
Shareholders
7.1.1 Shareholders (not being Depositors)

Shareholders and persons with beneficial ownership of Shares (not being Depositors) who
wish to have their Consideration Shares credited into their Securities Account shall take all
necessary action to (i) open a Securities Account with an address in Singapore and deposit
with CDP their share certificates in respect of their Shares together with the duly executed
instruments of transfer in favour of CDP and (ii) notify the Judicial Managers in writing of the
details of their Securities Account not later than five (5) Business Days after the Court
Meeting for Shareholders.

7.1.2 Shareholders (being Depositors)

Shareholders (who are Depositors), whose Shares are deposited with CDP as at the Books
Closure Date need not take any further action unless otherwise informed by the Judicial
Managers and/or the Scheme Administrators. The Scheme Administrators will arrange with
CDP to facilitate the debiting of the Shares from and the crediting of the relevant number of
Consideration Shares into their Securities Accounts pursuant to the Scheme.

Court Meeting of Shareholders

Shareholders who are unable to attend the Court Meeting of Shareholders and who wish to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on their behalf should complete, sign and return the relevant
enclosed proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and in
any event so as to arrive at the office of the Judicial Managers at One Raffles Quay, North Tower
Level 18, Singapore 048583 (Attention: Mr. Seshadri Rajagopalan/Ms. Ee Meng Yen Angela) not
later than 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011. The completion and submission of the proxy form by a
Shareholder will not preclude him/her from attending and voting in person at the Court Meeting of
Shareholders in place of his/her proxy if he/she so wishes. In such event, the relevant proxy form
will be deemed to be revoked.

Creditors

7.3.1 Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims who wish to have their Consideration Shares
credited into their Securities Account or securities sub-account shall take all necessary
action to (i) open a Securities Account or securities sub-account with an address in
Singapore and/or (ii) notify the Judicial Managers in writing of the details of their Securities
Account or securities sub-account not later than five (5) Business Days after the Court
Meeting of Creditors.

7.3.2 In order to vote at the Court Meeting of Creditors, each Creditor must have submitted a
Proof of Debt with the Judicial Managers at the Specified Address on or before the Proof of
Debt Submission Date.

7.3.3 For the purpose of the Scheme, a Creditor shall be deemed to have submitted a Proof of
Debt if such Creditor had previously submitted to the Judicial Managers any Proof of Debt
(in a form as may be accepted by the Judicial Managers) in the course of the judicial
management of the Company. Such Proof of Debt shall constitute such Creditor's Proof of
Debt for the purpose of this Scheme, save that such Creditor may submit a revised Proof of
Debt on or before the Proof of Debt Submission Date to update its Scheme Claim.
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7.4

7.5

7.3.4 If the Judicial Managers do not receive any revised Proof of Debt from such Creditor by the
Proof of Debt Submission Date, the Proof of Debt submitted by that Creditor to the Judicial
Managers at any time on or before the Proof of Debt Submission Date in the course of the
judicial management of the Company shall be deemed to be the Proof of Debt submitted by
the Creditor for the purpose of this Scheme.

7.3.5 A Creditor shall have no right after the Proof of Debt Submission Date to revise or amend
its Proof of Debt.

7.3.6 A Creditor who has submitted or is deemed to have submitted a Proof of Debt under this
Scheme shall forthwith notify the Judicial Managers or the Scheme Administrators of all
amounts (other than that stated in the said Proof of Debt) paid to or received by such
Creditor, on or after 4 June 2010 and up to and including the date the Court sanctions this
Scheme, in reduction of any amount which the Company is liable or indebted as at 4 June
2010 to that Creditor.

Court Meeting of Creditors

Creditors who are unable to attend the Court Meeting of Creditors and who wish to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on their behalf should complete, sign and return the relevant enclosed proxy
form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and in any event so
as to arrive at the office of the Judicial Managers at One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18,
Singapore 048583 (Attention: Mr. Seshadri Rajagopalan/Ms. Ee Meng Yen Angela) not later than
5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011. The completion and submission of the proxy form by a Creditor will
not preclude him/her from attending and voting in person at the Court Meeting of Creditors in place
of his/her proxy if he/she so wishes. In such event, the relevant proxy form will be deemed to be
revoked.

Application to Court for Sanction

7.5.1 At the Court Meetings, the Scheme must be approved by at least three-fourths (75%) in
value of the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims present and voting, either in person or
by proxy, and by a majority in number of the Shareholders representing not less than three-
fourths (75%) in value of Shares held by those present and voting, either in person or by

proxy.

7.5.2 An application will be made by the Company to the Court for the sanction of the Scheme if
the requisite votes are attained.

OVERSEAS SHAREHOLDERS AND OVERSEAS CREDITORS
Overseas Shareholders and Overseas Creditors

8.1.1 The allotment and issue and/or transfer or distribution of Consideration Shares pursuant to
the Scheme will be made only to Shareholders whose addresses recorded in the register of
members of the Company or in the Depository Register maintained by CDP (as the case
may be) are in Singapore and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims with registered
addresses in Singapore, or such other address in Singapore as any such Creditor may
notify to the Company, the Judicial Managers or the Scheme Administrators.

8.1.2 This Scheme Document shall not constitute an offer or an invitation in any place outside
Singapore where, or to any person to whom, it would be unlawful to make such an offer or
invitation. Due to such potential restrictions, this Document shall not be sent to any
overseas jurisdictions. Notwithstanding this, the Scheme is proposed to all Shareholders
and Creditors and applies to all Shareholders and Creditors, including those to whom this
Scheme Document has not been and will not be sent. All Shareholders and Creditors
(including Overseas Shareholders and Overseas Creditors) shall be bound by the Scheme if
the Scheme becomes effective.
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8.2

9.
9.1

Entitlement to Net Proceeds of Sale of Consideration Shares

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Scheme, the Company, the Judicial
Managers and/or the Scheme Administrators shall not at any time be under any obligation
to allot, issue and/or transfer or procure the transfer of any Consideration Shares to
Overseas Shareholders or Overseas Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, whether by
crediting their Securities Accounts (or, in the case of Overseas Creditors, securities sub-
accounts) with the relevant number of Consideration Shares or by the despatch of physical
share certificates for the Consideration Shares.

In any case where the Scheme Administrators are, in their sole discretion, of the view that
the distribution of the Consideration Shares to any Overseas Shareholder or Overseas
Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim may infringe any relevant foreign law or
necessitate compliance with conditions or requirements which they regard as onerous or
impracticable by reason of costs, delay or otherwise, the Scheme Administrators may, in
their sole discretion, determine that such Consideration Shares shall not be transferred to
such Overseas Shareholder or Overseas Creditor (as the case may be) who would
otherwise have been entitled thereto, but shall be transferred to such nominee(s) as the
Scheme Administrators may, in their sole discretion, appoint, who shall sell the same as
soon as practicable at the sole discretion of such persons, and thereafter distribute the
aggregate amount of the net proceeds, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in
connection therewith, proportionately amongst such Overseas Shareholders or Overseas
Creditors as the case may be, in accordance with their respective entitlements to the
Consideration Shares, in full satisfaction of their rights to the Consideration Shares to which
they would otherwise have become entitled, provided that where the net proceeds to which
any such Overseas Shareholder or Overseas Creditor is entitled shall be less than S$10.00,
such net proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the Company, and no such Overseas
Shareholder or Overseas Creditor shall have any claim whatsoever against the Company,
the Judicial Managers, the Scheme Administrators and/or CDP in connection therewith.

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, if any Overseas Shareholder and/or Overseas
Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim does not claim his sale proceeds prior to the
Cessation Date or if for any reason whatsoever any payment made to an Overseas
Shareholder or Overseas Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim pursuant to the Scheme
is not received by that Overseas Shareholder or Overseas Creditor, such Overseas
Shareholder or Overseas Creditor shall be deemed to have waived, released and
discharged all his rights to such sale proceeds with effect from the Cessation Date.
Accordingly, with effect from the Cessation Date, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme
Administrators and the Company shall be released from any further obligation to make any
payments under the Scheme and the Scheme Administrators shall retain for the benefit of
the Company the balance (if any) of the sums outstanding (including any accrued interest)
subject, if applicable, to the deduction of interest, tax or any withholding tax or any other
deduction required by law and subject to the deduction of any expenses incurred by the
Company in connection with such sale proceeds, and no Overseas Shareholder or
Overseas Creditor with Approved Scheme Claims shall have any claim whatsoever against
the Company, the Judicial Managers and/or the Scheme Administrators in connection
therewith.

REGULATORY APPROVALS
SIC’s Ruling

9.1.1

The SIC has confirmed, inter alia, that:

0] the Scheme is exempted from complying with Rules 14, 15, 16, 17, 20.1, 21, 22, 28,
29, 33.2 and Note 1(b) on Rule 19 of the Code, subject to the following conditions:
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9.1.2

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(@) AVIC Singapore and the Judicial Managers (the “Relevant Parties”) and their
concert parties as well as the common substantial shareholders of the
Relevant Parties and the Company (if any) abstain from voting on the Scheme;

(b) the Relevant Parties and their concert parties abstain from making a
recommendation on the Scheme to Shareholders; and

(c) the Company appoints an independent financial adviser to advise
Shareholders on the Scheme.

it has no objections to the conditions precedent to the Scheme as set out in Section
3.8 of this Explanatory Statement;

it regards the Relevant Parties to be concert parties with respect to and joint offerors
for the Company;

AVIC Singapore as one of the joint offerors should comply with Rule 23.4 of the
Code;

the Board need not make a recommendation or state its views pursuant to Rule 24.1
(a) and Rule 24.2 of the Code respectively. The Judicial Managers are also exempted
from making any recommendations to Shareholders as they face a conflict of interest
being one of the joint offerors. The responsibility for making a recommendation to
Shareholders shall reside primarily with the IFA; and

it has no objections to the following proposed disclosures:

(a) only the last transacted closing price of Shares on the SGX-ST prior to the
suspension of trading would be required to be disclosed in the Scheme
Document under Rule 23.10 of the Code;

(b) only the financial information of the Company in its last published accounts
would be required to be disclosed in the Scheme Document under Rule 24.4 of
the Code; and

(c) only material contracts with interested persons (not being a contract entered
into in the ordinary course of business) entered into by the Company during
the period beginning with the appointment of the Judicial Managers as interim
judicial managers on 13 May 2010 and up to the date of the Scheme
Document would be required to be disclosed in the Scheme Document under
Rule 24.6 of the Code.

In respect of 9.1.1(i)(a) above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Judicial Managers and
their concert parties, and AVIC Singapore and its concert parties, do not have any voting
rights in the Company nor are the Creditors and as such will not be able to vote on the
Scheme.

9.2 SGX-ST

9.2.1

The Company is listed on the Main Board of the SGX-ST. If the Scheme becomes effective
and binding, on or shortly after the Transfer Date, the Judicial Managers or a person
nominated by the Judicial Managers will own all the Shares in the Company and (subject to
the approval of the SGX-ST) the Shares will be delisted and withdrawn from the Official List
of the SGX-ST.
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10.

11.

12
12.1

12.2

12.3

9.2.2 As stated in Part Il of the Scheme, the Scheme is also conditional on the ETL for the listing
of the AVIC Shares on the Main Board of the SGX-ST not having been revoked or
withdrawn. The SGX-ST has by a letter dated 21 June 2011 granted ETL for the listing and
quotation of the AVIC Shares.

OPINION OF THE INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVISER

The Company has appointed Stirling Coleman Capital Limited as the IFA to advise its
Shareholders in respect of the Scheme and the IFA’s advice is set out in its letter dated 10 August
2011 in Appendix D of this Scheme Document. Having regard to the considerations as set out in
its letter and the information made available to it as at the Latest Practicable Date, the IFA is of the
opinion that, on balance, the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders, when considered in
the context of the prospects of a delisting and the unlikely event that the Shareholders would be
able to recover any value from their Shares in the event of a liquidation, are fair and reasonable.
Accordingly, the IFA recommends that Shareholders vote in favour of the resolution to be tabled at
the Court Meeting of Shareholders in relation to the Scheme to Shareholders. You are advised to
read the letter from the IFA carefully in its entirety.

RECOMMENDATION OF THE JUDICIAL MANAGERS

As the Judicial Managers are deemed to be one of the joint offerors for the Shares, they will
accordingly abstain from making any recommendation to the Shareholders. Notwithstanding the
above, the Judicial Managers would like to refer Shareholders to the IFA’s recommendation as set
out in the IFA’s letter as exhibited in Appendix D. Any Shareholder who may require advice in the
context of his specific investment objectives or portfolio should consult his stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant, tax adviser or other professional advisers immediately.

OTHER INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the other information in the Appendices of this Scheme Document,
including the General Information on the Company in Appendix A. The Appendices form part of
this Explanatory Statement.

Your attention is also drawn to the accompanying Information Memorandum prepared by AVIC
Singapore for further information on the AVIC Group, including the section entitled “Risk Factors”
of the accompanying Information Memorandum.

This Explanatory Statement should be read in conjunction with the full text of this Scheme
Document, including the Scheme as set out on pages E-1 to E-29 of this Scheme Document, and
the Information Memorandum in its entirety.

Yours faithfully

Mr Seshadri Rajagopalan Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela

Judicial Managers
Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited
(Under Judicial Management)
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DIRECTORS

Based on the records maintained by ACRA, the names and addresses of the Directors of the
Company are as follows:

Name Address

Dr In Nany Sing Charlie 268B Compassvale Link #14-33
Singapore 542268

Mr Sam Chong Keen 16 Balmoral Park
#01-11 The Balmoral
Singapore 259847

Mr Wong Sek Choon 12 Jalan Gendang
Faber Garden
Singapore 578170

Mr Goh Chee Wee 28 Kew Walk
Singapore 465976

Dr Wong Chiang Yin 50A Toh Tuck Road
#09-12 Signature Park
Singapore 596742

DIRECTORS’, SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND THE COMPANY’S INTERESTS AND
DEALINGS IN SHARES

The interests of the Directors and substantial Shareholders in the Shares as at the Latest
Practicable Date, based on the Company’s register of Directors’ shareholdings and register of
substantial Shareholders, are set out below:

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Number of Number of
Shares % Shares %

Directors

Dr In Nany Sing Charlie - - - —
Mr Sam Chong Keen - - - -
Mr Wong Sek Choon - - - —
Mr Goh Chee Wee - - - -
Dr Wong Chiang Yin - - - -
Substantial Shareholders

(other than Directors)

Raffles Nominees (Pte) Ltd 22,795,300 6.73 - -
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. - — 21,397,771 6.31

JUDICIAL MANAGERS’ INTERESTS AND DEALINGS IN SHARES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Judicial Managers do not own or control any Shares. The
Judicial Managers have not dealt for value in any Shares during the period commencing six (6)
months prior to 10 August 2011.
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4.2

IFA’S INTERESTS AND DEALINGS IN SHARES

Based on information provided by the IFA, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the IFA and funds
whose investments are managed by the IFA on a discretionary basis do not own or control any
Shares.

The IFA and funds whose investments are managed by the IFA on a discretionary basis have not
dealt for value in any Shares during the period commencing six (6) months prior to 10 August
2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has only one class of shares in the capital of the
Company being the Shares.

(a) As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company is as follows:
0] 338,932,180 Shares in issue (net of Shares held in treasury); and

(i)  based on the latest unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
FY2008, the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2008 is
RMB742,597,000 (net of Shares held in treasury).

(b)  The rights of Shareholders in respect of capital, dividends and voting are contained in the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). For ease of reference, selected texts of
the Articles relating to the rights of Shareholders in respect of capital, dividends and voting
have been reproduced in Section 6 of this Appendix.

(c)  There are no changes to the number of Shares issued since 31 December 2008.

(d) As at the Latest Practicable Date, save for S$149,000,000 aggregate principal amount of
4.0% Convertible Bonds due 2013 issued by the Company on 8 July 2008, there are no
outstanding instruments convertible into, rights to subscribe for, and options in respect of,
securities being offered for or which carry voting rights affecting shares in the Company.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL, DIVIDENDS AND VOTING

The rights of Shareholders in respect of capital, dividends and voting have been extracted from the
Articles of Association of the Company and are set out as follows:

Rights in respect of capital

“ISSUE OF SHARES

3. (A)  Subject to the Act and these Articles, no shares may be issued by the Directors
without the prior approval of the Company in General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Act,
but subject thereto and the terms of such approval, and to Article 5, and to any special rights
attached to any shares for the time being issued, the Directors may allot (with or without conferring
a right of renunciation) or grant options over or otherwise dispose of the same to such persons on
such terms and conditions and for such consideration and at such time and whether or not subject
to the payment of any part of the amount thereof in cash or otherwise as the Directors may think
fit, and any shares may, subject to compliance with Sections 70 and 75 of the Act, be issued with
such preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges, conditions or restrictions, whether
as regards dividend, return of capital, participation in surplus assets and profits, voting, conversion
or otherwise, as the Directors may think fit, and preference shares may be issued which are or at
the option of the Company are liable to be redeemed, the terms and manner of redemption being
determined by the Directors in accordance with the Act, Provided Always that no options shall be
granted over unissued shares except in accordance with the Act and the Designated Stock
Exchange’s listing rules.
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(B) The Directors may, at any time after the allotment of any share but before any person
has been entered in the Register of Members as the holder, recognize a renunciation thereof by
the allottee in favour of some other person and may accord to any allottee of a share a right to
effect such renunciation upon and subject to such terms and conditions as the Directors may think
fit to impose.

(C) Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these Articles, all
new shares shall be issued subject to the provisions of the Statutes and of these Articles with
reference to allotment, payment of calls, lien, transfer, transmission, forfeiture or otherwise.

4. The Company shall not exercise any right in respect of treasury shares other than as
provided by the Act. Subject thereto, the Company may hold or deal with its treasury shares in the
manner authorised by, or prescribed pursuant to, the Act.

5. (A)  Subject to any direction to the contrary that may be given by the Company in General
Meeting or except as permitted by the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange, all new shares
shall before issue be offered to such persons who as at the date (as determined by the Directors)
of the offer are entitled to receive notices from the Company of General Meetings in proportion, as
far as the circumstances admit, to the number of the existing shares to which they are entitled. The
offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares offered, and limiting a time within
which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to be declined, and, after the expiration of that time,
or on the receipt of an intimation from the person to whom the offer is made that he declines to
accept the shares offered, the Directors may dispose of those shares in such manner as they think
most beneficial to the Company. The Directors may likewise so dispose of any new shares which
(by reason of the ratio which the new shares bear to shares held by persons entitled to an offer of
new shares) cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be conveniently offered under this Article 5(A).

(B) Notwithstanding Article 5(A) above, the Company may by Ordinary Resolution in
General Meeting give to the Directors a general authority, either unconditionally or subject to such
conditions as may be specified in the Ordinary Resolution, to:

@ () issue shares in the capital of the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights,
bonus or otherwise; and/or

(i)  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that
might or would require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the
creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other
instruments convertible into shares; and

(b)  (notwithstanding the authority conferred by the Ordinary Resolution may have ceased
to be in force) issue shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the
Directors while the Ordinary Resolution was in force,

Provided that:

(1) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the Ordinary Resolution
(including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant
to the Ordinary Resolution) shall be subject to such limits and manner of calculation
as may be prescribed by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited;

(2) in exercising the authority conferred by the Ordinary Resolution, the Company shall
comply with the provisions of the listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited for the time being in force (unless such compliance is waived by the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited) and these Articles; and
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(8)  (unless revoked or varied by the Company in General Meeting) the authority conferred
by the Ordinary Resolution shall not continue in force beyond the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company next following the passing of the Ordinary
Resolution, or the date by which such Annual General Meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held, or the expiration of such other period as may be prescribed
by the Act (whichever is the earliest).

(C) The Company may, notwithstanding Articles 5(A) and 5(B) above, authorize the
Directors not to offer new shares to members to whom by reason of foreign securities laws, such
offers may not be made without registration of the shares or a prospectus or other document, but
to sell the entitlements to the new shares on behalf of such members on such terms and conditions
as the Company may direct.

6. The Company may pay commissions or brokerage in respect of any issue of or subscription
for shares at such amount or rate and in such manner as the Directors may deem fit. Such
commissions or brokerage may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or
partly paid shares or partly in one way and partly in the other.

7. Where any shares are issued for the purpose of raising money to defray the expenses of the
construction of any works or buildings or the provision of any plant which cannot be made
profitable for a lengthened period, the Company may pay interest on so much of that share capital
as is for the time being paid-up for the period and charge the same to capital as part of the cost of
the construction of the works or buildings or the provision of the plant, subject to the conditions and
restrictions mentioned in the Act.

8. (A)  The rights attached to shares issued upon special conditions shall be clearly defined
in the Memorandum of Association of the Company and these Articles and the rights attaching to
shares of a class other than ordinary shares shall be expressed. Preference shares may be issued
subject to such limitation thereof as may be prescribed by the Designated Stock Exchange. In the
event of preference shares being issued, the total number of issued preference shares shall not at
any time exceed the total number of the issued ordinary shares and preference shareholders shall
have the same rights as ordinary shareholders as regards receiving of notices, reports and
balance sheets and attending General Meetings of the Company, and preference shareholders
shall also have the right to vote at any meeting convened for the purpose of reducing capital or
winding-up or sanctioning a sale of the undertaking of the Company or where the proposal to be
submitted to the meeting directly affects their rights and privileges or when the dividend on the
preference shares is more than six months in arrear.

(B) The Company has power to issue further preference capital ranking equally with, or in
priority to, preference shares already issued.

VARIATION OF RIGHTS

9. (A)  Whenever the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares,
the variation or abrogation of the special rights attached to any class may, subject to the provisions
of the Act, be made either with the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters of the total
number of the issued shares of the class or with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a
separate General Meeting of the holders of the shares of the class (but not otherwise) and may be
so made either whilst the Company is a going concern or during or in contemplation of a winding-
up. To every such separate General Meeting all the provisions of these Articles relating to General
Meetings of the Company and to the proceedings thereat shall mutatis mutandis apply, except that
the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons holding at least one-third of the total number
of the issued shares of the class present in person or by proxy or attorney and that any holder of
shares of the class present in person or by proxy or attorney may demand a poll and that every
such holder shall on a poll have one vote for every share of the class held by him where the class
is a class of equity shares within the meaning of Section 64(1) of the Act or at least one vote for
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every share of the class where the class is a class of preference shares within the meaning of
Section 180(2) of the Act, Provided Always that where the necessary majority for such a Special
Resolution is not obtained at such General Meeting, the consent in writing, if obtained from the
holders of three-quarters of the total number of the issued shares of the class concerned within
two months of such General Meeting, shall be as valid and effectual as a Special Resolution
carried at such General Meeting.

(B) The provisions in Article 9(A) shall mutatis mutandis apply to any repayment of
preference capital (other than redeemable preference capital) and any variation or abrogation of
the rights attached to preference shares or any class thereof.

(C) The special rights attached to any class of shares having preferential rights shall not
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue thereof be deemed to be varied by the
creation or issue of further shares ranking as regards participation in the profits or assets of the
Company in some or all respects pari passu therewith but in no respect in priority thereto.

ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL
10. The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:

(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its shares;

(b)  subject to the provisions of the Statutes, sub-divide its shares, or any of them; so
however that the proportion of the amount paid to the amount unpaid (if any) on each
sub-divided share is the same as on the original share from which it was derived; and
the resolution whereby any share is sub-divided being otherwise permitted to
determine that, as between the holders of the shares resulting from such sub-division,
one or more of the shares may, as compared with the others, have any such preferred,
deferred, qualified or other special rights, or be subject to any such restrictions, as the
Company has then the authority to attach to unissued or new shares; and/or

(c) subject to the provisions of these Articles and the Statutes, convert or exchange any
class of shares into or for any other class of shares.

11.  (A) The Company may reduce its share capital or other undistributable reserve in any
manner permitted, and with, and subject to, any incident authorized, and consent or confirmation
required, by law. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon cancellation of any
share purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company pursuant to these Articles and the
Statutes, the number of issued shares of the Company shall be diminished by the number of
shares so cancelled, and, where any such cancelled share was purchased or acquired out of the
capital of the Company, the amount of share capital of the Company shall be reduced accordingly.

(B) The Company may purchase or otherwise acquire its issued shares subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of the Statutes and any other relevant rule, law, regulation or
guidelines enacted, promulgated or issued by any relevant competent authority (including the
Designated Stock Exchange (if applicable)) from time to time (hereafter, the “Relevant Laws”), on
such terms and subject to such conditions as the Company may in general meeting prescribe in
accordance with the Relevant Laws. Any shares purchased or acquired by the Company as
aforesaid shall, unless held in treasury in accordance with the Act, be deemed to be cancelled
immediately on purchase or acquisition by the Company. On the cancellation of any share as
aforesaid, the rights and privileges attached to that share shall expire. In any other instance, the
Company may hold or deal with any such share which is so purchased or acquired by it in such
manner as may be permitted by, and in accordance with the Relevant Laws.
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VOTES OF MEMBERS

62. Subject to Article 4 and any special rights or restrictions as to voting attached by or in
accordance with these Articles to any class of shares, each member entitled to vote may vote in
person or by proxy. On a show of hands every member who is present in person or by proxy shall
have one vote (provided that in the case of a member who is represented by two proxies, only one
of the two proxies as determined by that member or, failing such determination, by the chairman of
the meeting (or a person authorised by him), shall be entitled to vote on a show of hands), and on
a poll every member who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of
which he holds or represents. For the purposes of determining the number of votes which a
member, being a Depositor, or his proxy may cast at any General Meeting on a poll, the references
to shares held or represented shall, in relation to shares of that Depositor, be the number of shares
entered against his name in the CDP register as at 48 hours before the time of the relevant
General Meeting as certified by CDP to the Company. A member who is bankrupt shall not, while
his bankruptcy continues, be entitled to exercise his rights as a member, or attend, vote or act at
any meeting of the Company.

63. In the case of joint holders of a share, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders and for
this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of
Members or, as the case may be, the order in which the names appear in the Depository Register
in respect of the joint holding.

64. Where in Singapore or elsewhere a receiver or other person (by whatever name called) has
been appointed by any court claiming jurisdiction in that behalf to exercise powers with respect to
the property or affairs of any member on the ground (however formulated) of mental disorder, the
Directors may in their absolute discretion, upon or subject to production of such evidence of the
appointment as the Directors may require, permit such receiver or other person on behalf of such
member, to vote in person or by proxy at any General Meeting, or to exercise any other right
conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company.

65. No member shall be entitled in respect of shares held by him to vote at a General Meeting
either personally or by proxy or to exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to
meetings of the Company if any call or other sum payable by him to the Company in respect of
such shares remains unpaid.

66. No objection shall be raised as to the admissibility of any vote except at the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is or may be given or tendered and every vote not
disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection shall be referred to
the chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

67. On a poll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a person entitled to more
than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

68. (A) A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend and vote at
the same General Meeting, Provided that if a member is a Depositor, the Company shall be
entitled and bound:

(a) to reject any instrument of proxy lodged if the Depositor, is not shown, to have any
shares entered against his name in the CDP register as at 48 hours before the time of
the relevant General Meeting as certified by CDP to the Company; and

(b)  to accept as the maximum number of votes which in aggregate the proxy or proxies
appointed by the Depositor is or are able to cast on a poll a number which is the
number of shares entered into against the name of that Depositor in the CDP register
as at 48 hours before the time of the relevant General Meeting as certified by CDP to
the Company, whether that number is greater or smaller than the number specified in
any instrument of proxy executed by or on behalf of that Depositor.
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(B) Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the member shall specify the
proportion of his shares to be represented by each such proxy, failing which the nomination shall
be deemed to be alternative.

(C) A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

69. (A) An instrument appointing a proxy for any member shall be in writing in any usual or
common form or in any other form which the Directors may approve and:

(2) in the case of an individual member, shall be signed by the member or his attorney
duly authorized in writing; and

(b) inthe case of a member which is a corporation shall be either given under its common
seal or signed on its behalf by an attorney duly authorized in writing or a duly
authorized officer of the corporation.

(B) The signatures on an instrument of proxy need not be witnessed. Where an instrument
appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of a member by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney
or a duly certified copy thereof shall (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with
the instrument of proxy pursuant to the next following Article, failing which the instrument of proxy
may be treated as invalid.

70. An instrument appointing a proxy must be left at such place or one of such places (if any)
as may be specified for that purpose in or by way of note to or in any document accompanying the
notice convening the meeting (or, if no place is so specified, at the Office) not less than forty-eight
hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting or (in the case
of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) for the
taking of the poll at which it is to be used, and in default shall not be treated as valid. The
instrument shall, unless the contrary is stated thereon, be valid as well for any adjournment of the
meeting as for the meeting to which it relates, Provided that an instrument of proxy relating to more
than one meeting (including any adjournment thereof) having once been so delivered for the
purposes of any meeting shall not require again to be delivered for the purposes of any
subsequent meeting to which it relates.

71.  An instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to include the right to demand or join in
demanding a poll and to speak at the meeting.

72. A vote cast by proxy shall not be invalidated by the previous death or insanity of the principal
or by the revocation of the appointment of the proxy or of the authority under which the
appointment was made provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity or revocation
shall have been received by the Company at the Office at least one hour before the
commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than
at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) the time appointed for the taking of
the poll at which the vote is cast.

72A. Subject to these Articles and the Statutes, the Directors may, at their sole discretion, approve
and implement, subject to such security measures as may be deemed necessary or expedient,
such voting methods to allow members who are unable to vote in person at any general meeting
the option to vote in absentia, including but not limited to voting by mail, electronic mail or facsimile.

DIVIDENDS

122. The Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare dividends but no such dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.
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123. If and so far as in the opinion of the Directors, the profits of the Company justify such
payments, the Directors may declare and pay the fixed dividends on any class of shares carrying a
fixed dividend expressed to be payable on fixed dates on the half-yearly or other dates prescribed
for the payment thereof and may also from time to time declare and pay interim dividends on
shares of any class of such amounts and on such dates and in respect of such periods as they
think fit.

124. Unless and to the extent that the rights attached to any shares or the terms of issue thereof
otherwise provide, all dividends shall (as regards any shares not fully paid throughout the period in
respect of which the dividend is paid) be apportioned and paid pro rata according to the amounts
paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is
paid. For the purposes of this Article, no amount paid on a share in advance of calls shall be
treated as paid on the share.

125. No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits available for distribution under the
provisions of the Statutes. Any dividend unclaimed after six (6) years from the date of declaration
shall be made forfeit and revert to the Company.

126. No dividend or other monies payable on or in respect of a share shall bear interest as
against the Company.

127. (A) The Directors may retain any dividend or other monies payable on or in respect of a
share on which the Company has a lien and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of the
debts, liabilities or engagements in respect of which the lien exists.

(B) The Directors may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any
person is under the provisions as to the transmission of shares hereinbefore contained entitled to
become a member, or which any person is under those provisions entitled to transfer, until such
person shall become a member in respect of such shares or shall transfer the same.

128. The waiver in whole or in part of any dividend on any share by any document (whether or
not under seal) shall be effective only if such document is signed by the member (or the person
entitled to the share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder) and delivered to the
Company and if or to the extent that the same is accepted as such or acted upon by the Company.

129. The Company may upon the recommendation of the Directors by Ordinary Resolution direct
payment of a dividend in whole or in part by the distribution of specific assets (and in particular of
paid-up shares or debentures of any other company) and the Directors shall give effect to such
resolution. Where any difficulty arises with regard to such distribution, the Directors may settle the
same as they think expedient and in particular, may issue fractional certificates, may fix the value
for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof, may determine that cash payments shall
be made to any member upon the footing of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all
parties and may vest any such specific assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the Directors.

130. Any dividend or other moneys payable in cash on or in respect of a share may be paid by
cheque or warrant sent through the post to the registered address appearing in the Register of
Members or (as the case may be) the Depository Register of the member or person entitled
thereto (or, if two or more persons are registered in the Register of Members or (as the case may
be) entered in the Depository Register as joint holders of the share or are entitled thereto in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder, to any one of such persons) or to such
person and such address as such member or person or persons may by writing direct. Every such
cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent or to such
person as the holder or joint holders or person or persons entitled to the share in consequence of
the death or bankruptcy of the holder may direct and payment of the cheque or warrant by the
banker upon whom it is drawn shall be a good discharge to the Company. Every such cheque or
warrant shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled to the money represented thereby.
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10.

11.

131. If two or more persons are registered in the Register of Members or (as the case may be)
the Depository Register as joint holders of any share, or are entitled jointly to a share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder, any one of them may give effectual receipts
for any dividend or other moneys payable or property distributable on or in respect of the share.

132. Any resolution declaring a dividend on shares of any class, whether a resolution of the
Company in General Meeting or a resolution of the Directors, may specify that the same shall be
payable to the persons registered as the holders of such shares in the Register of Members or (as
the case may be) the Depository Register at the close of business on a particular date and
thereupon the dividend shall be payable to them in accordance with their respective holdings so
registered, but without prejudice to the rights infer se in respect of such dividend of transferors and
transferees of any such shares”

MARKET QUOTATION

The closing price of the Shares on the SGX-ST on 22 September 2009, being the last trading day
prior to the suspension of trading in the Shares, was S$0.135 per Share.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH INTERESTED PERSONS

The Judicial Managers are not aware of any contracts (other than those entered into in the ordinary
course of business) which have been entered into by the Company with interested persons during
the period commencing 13 May 2010, being the date the Company was placed under interim
judicial management, and ending on the Latest Practicable Date.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save for legal proceedings initiated by the Company’s subsidiary, Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian)
Co., Ltd., in the Fujian Intermediate People’s Court in the PRC for unpaid capital, the Judicial
Managers are not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings against the Company as at the
date hereof or in the twelve (12) months before the date of this Scheme Document.

JUDICIAL MANAGERS’ INTENTIONS FOR THE COMPANY

As disclosed elsewhere in the Scheme Document, the Company has entered into the Asset
Recovery Agreement on 7 January 2011 with HLM, pursuant to which, inter alia, HLM was
appointed to assist the Company in regaining control over and the recovery of the Company’s
assets in the PRC. The Judicial Managers intend to continue pursuing the process of asset
recovery with the assistance of HLM.

OTHER MATTERS

As far as the Judicial Managers are aware, based on the documents made available to them:

11.1 save as disclosed in this Scheme Document and/or the accompanying Information
Memorandum, there is, as at the Latest Practicable Date, no agreement or arrangement
made between the Judicial Managers and any Director or any other person in connection
with or which is conditional upon the outcome of the Scheme;

11.2 there are no arrangements in connection with the Scheme for any payment or other benefit
to be made or given to any Director or any director of any related corporation of the
Company as compensation for loss of office;

11.3 there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding existing between the Judicial

Managers and any Directors of the Company or Shareholders of the Company having any
connection with or dependence upon the Scheme;
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12.

13.

11.4 there are no service contracts with any Directors or proposed directors of the Company with
more than twelve (12) months to run and which cannot be terminated by the employing
company within the next twelve (12) months without payment of compensation. No service
contracts were entered into or amended between any of the Directors or proposed directors
of the Company in the six (6) months immediately preceding 10 August 2011;

11.5 there are no material contracts entered into by the Judicial Managers in which any Director
has a material personal interest, whether direct or indirect.

CONSENTS

Stirling Coleman Capital Limited has given and has not withdrawn its consent to the issue of this
Scheme Document with the inclusion herein of its name and its letter dated 10 August 2011 in
relation, inter alia, its advice to the Shareholders in relation to the Scheme, and all references
thereto to its name, in the form and context in which they appear in this Scheme Document.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company at One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583, during normal business
hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted) from the date of this Scheme Document up to the
date of the Court Meetings:

13.1 the memorandum and articles of association of the Company;

13.2 the qualified consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for FY2008;

13.3 the Statement of Affairs of the Company;

13.4 the announcement of the Company on 7 January 2011 in relation to the Implementation
Agreement;

13.5 the Implementation Agreement;
13.6 the letter from the IFA containing the IFA’s advice in relation to the Scheme;
13.7 the Information Memorandum; and

13.8 the letter of consent referred to in Section 12 above.
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

The directors present their report fo the members together with the audited financial statements of Sino-
Environment Technolegy Group Limited {the "Company™) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group™ for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008 and the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2008,

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr Sun Jiangrong
Mr You Shengquan
Professor Li Shouxin
Mr Tan Tar Wuei

Mr Goh Chee Wee
Dr Wong Chiang Yin
Mr Pan Jinquan

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement
whose object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, other than as discussed under
“Employee Share Cption Scheme and Performance Shares Plan”.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

(a) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of
the financial year had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related
corporations, except as follows:

Holdings registered in name of Holdings in which director is
director or nominee deemed to have an interest
At At At At
31.12.2008 1.1.20608 31.12.2008 1.1.2008
Company
{No. of Ordinary shares)
Mr Sun Jiangrong - - 190,788,000 190,638,000
Mr Tan Tar Wuei 100,000 100,000 - -
{b) The directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 21 January 2009 were the same

as those as at 31 December 2008.

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit
by reason of a coniract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which
he is a member or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements and in this report, and except that Mr Sun Jiangrong, Mr You Shengquan
and Professor Li Shouxin have employment relationships with the Company and a subsidiary, and Mr Tan Tar
Wuei has employment relationships with the Company.
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Share Option and Shares Plan

The Employee Share Option Scheme ("ESOS"} and Performance Shares Plan (“PSP") for key management
personnel and employees of the Group was approved by members of the Company at an Extraordinary
General Meeting on 28 April 2008.

The £ES0S and PSP Committee consist of:
Mr Goh Chee Wee (Chairman)

Dr Wong Chiang Yin

Mr Pan Jinquan

Mr Tan Tar Wuei

Emplovee Share Option Scheme (*ESOS™

Under the T£S0S, options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company are granted to key
management personnel and employees. The exercise price of the options is determined at the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s ordinary shares as quoted on the Singapore Exchange for five market days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting of the options is conditional on the key management
personnel or employees completing at least a year of service to the Group. If options are granted at a
discount, the vesting pericd is at least 2 years. Once the options are vested, they are exercisable for a period
of ten years. The options may be exercised in full or in part in respect of 1,000 shares or a multiple thereof, on
the payment of the exercise price. The persons to whom the options have been granted have no right to
participate by virtue of the options in any share issue of any other company. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

As of the date of this report, no employee share options have been granted.
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNCLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Share Option and Shares Plan {continued)

Performance Shares Plan ("PSP™)

Under the PSP, the Company granted 3,000,000 share awards on 20 August 2008 (2008 PSP") representing
the right to receive fully paid ordinary shares of the Company, their equivalent cash value or combinations
thereof, free of charge. The closing share price of the Company's shares as of the date of grant was $$1.25.
After the end of a specific performance period, the Company shall deliver shares of the Company or pay the
cash value or combinations thereof. The value of each share is determined by reference to average of the
closing prices of the Company’s ordinary shares as quoted on the Singapore Exchange for three market days
immediately preceding the date of delivery, The 2008 PSP shares will be delivered on 20 August 2009, which
is the end of the performance period for the 2008 PSP.

The aggregate number of shares over which the options may be granted on any date under the ESOS and
the number of shares which may be issued pursuant to the PSP, when added to the number of shares issued
and issuable in respect of all options granted under the ESOS and all shares granted under the PSP, shali
not exceed 15% of the issued share capital of the Company on the day preceding that date.

No PSPs have been granted to controlling shareholders of the Company or their associates {as defined in the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited). PSP shares have been granted to the
following directors: Mr Goh Chee Wee, Dr Wong Chiang Yin, Mr Pan Jinquan, Mr Tan Tar Wuei, Mr You
Shengquan and Professor Li Shouxin. The aggregate number of shares which have not been dalivered as at
31 December 2008 amounted to 3,000,000.

P8P granted to directors and other employees of the Company as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Granted in the Aggregate outstanding
financial year ended  as at 31 December

31 December 2008 2008

Directors
Goh Chee Wee 50,000 50,000
Wong Chiang Yin 40,000 40,000
Pan Jinquan 10,000 10,000
Tan Tar Wuei 75,000 75,000
You Shengquan 300,000 300,000
Li Shouxin 200,000 200,000

675,000 675,000
Non-directors 2,325,000 2,325,000
Total ordinary shares 3,000,000 3,000,000
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPCRT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee at the end of the financial year were as follows:
Mr Goh Chee Wee (Chairman)

Dr Wong Chiang Yin

Mr Pan Jinquan

All members of the Audit Committee were non-executive directors and were independent.

The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Singapore
Companies Act. In performing those functions, the Committee reviewed:

. The scope and the resuits of internal audit procedures with the internal auditor;

. The audit plan of the Company's independent auditor and its report on the weaknesses of internal
accounting controls arising from the statutory audit;

. The assistance given by the Company's management to the independent auditor; and

. The balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008 before their submissicn to the Board of Directors, as well as
the independent auditor’s report on the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that the independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP, be nominated for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual Generai Meeting of the Company.

Independent Auditor

The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-
appointment.

On behalf of the directors

A el

Sui Jiangrong ! Tafl Tar Wuei
Executive Director and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

24 March 2009
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

In the opinion of the directors,

(a} save for any adjustments that may be required as a result of the subsequent event described in Note
38, the accompanying financial statements comprising the balance sheets, the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
together with the notes thereon are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, Cap. 50 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2008 and of the results,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2008; and

(b) at the date of this statement, subject to the successful resolution on the matters described in Note 38,
there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

On behalf of the directors

™
W‘%j ’ \ //
Sun Jiangrong Tayf Tar Wuei
Executive Director and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

24 March 2009
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of Sino-Erwironment Technology Group
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”} set out on pages 7 to 80, which comprise the
balance sheets of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the
Group for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with the provisions of the Singapcre Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial

Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:

(a) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting control sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain
accountability of assets;

(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(c} making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on conducting the audit in
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Because of the matter described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

As set out in Note 38 o the financial statements, there may be a change in control of the Company as the
Company's Controlling Shareholder may be faced with forced sale of part or all of its ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company arising from the Controlling Shareholder's default of certain financial obligations. This
change in control would give the Bondholders who bought the $$149,000,000 convertible bonds issued by
the Company in July 2008 the right to request for immediate conversion and/ or redemption of the outstanding
$$140,000,000 bonds existing at the balance sheet date. The Company may not be able to make payment
for such unscheduled redemption by the Bondholders if called upon fo do so.

The matter set out in the paragraph above indicates the existence of material unceriainties which may affect
the validity of the going concern assumpticn on which the accompanying financial statements of the Company
and the Group are prepared. In the event that the geing concern assumption is inappropriate, adjustments will
have to be made to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, and to restate the camrying values of the assets to their recoverable amounts and to
provide for further liabilities which may arise. No such adjustments have been made in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Disclaimer of Opinion
Because of the significance of the matter referred to in the preceding paragraphs, we are not in a position to,
and do not, express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Company and the Group.

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

k@@t‘p\& L 6
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants
Singapore, 24 March 2002
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Note 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Sales 4 775,798 463,842
Cost of sales (479,568) (241,666)
Gross profit 296,230 222,176
Other income 7 13,114 19,511
Other losses - net 8 (227,352) (781)
Expenses
- Distribution and marketing (13,415) (9,583)
- Administrative (65,251) (58,495)
- Finance 9 {31,969) (943)
(Loss) / Profit befcre income tax {28,643) 171,885
Income tax expense 10(a) (16,351) (681
Total (loss) / profit {44,994) 171,204
Atfributable to:
Equity holders of the Company {44,994) 147,150
Minority interests - 24,054
(44,994) 171,204
{Losses) [ earnings per share for (loss) / profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company
(RMB per share)
- Basic 11(a) (0.13) 0.43
- Diluted 11(b) {0.13) 0.43

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements.



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINC-ENVIRCNMENT TECHNOLCGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2008

Group Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'G00
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 727,883 689,157 133,817 185,703
Trade and other recejvables 13 276,473 210,656 285,813 61,407
Other current assets 14 113,316 2,979 615 280
Inveniories 15 5,104 4,982 “ -
1,122,776 807,774 420,245 247,400
Non-current assets
Transferable club memberships 16 354 354 354 354
Investments in subsidiaries 19 - - 720,192 588,201
Financial assets, available-for-sale 20 1,935 - 1,935 -
Derivative financial instrument
- Equity swap derivative 21 130,026 - 130,026 -
Long-term prepayment 22 1,889 4,609 - -
investment properties 23 468 485 - -
Property, plant and equipment 24 154,319 104,193 1,229 757
Intangibie assets 25 228,089 218,753 - -
517,080 328,394 853,736 589,312
Total assets 1,639,856 1,236,168 1,273,981 836,712
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabies 26 116,351 76,918 12,423 8,601
Current income tax liabilities 10(b) 3,976 712 17 471
Borrowings 27 9,200 11,000 - -
129,527 88,630 12,440 9,072
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instrument
- Embedded derivative 28 112,768 - 112,768 -
Borrowings 27 622,636 1,000 622,636 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 29 23,827 11,523 - -
759,231 12,523 735,404 -
Totai liabilities 888,758 101,153 747,844 9,072
NET ASSETS 751,098 1,135,015 526,137 827640
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital 30 793,316 793,316 793,316 793,316
Treasury shares 30 {50,719) - {60,719) -
Other reserves 31 (148,042) 34,458 - -
Retained earmnings / (Accumulated loss) 32 156,543 224,337 {216,460) 34,324
751,098 1,052,111 526,137 827640
Minority interests - 82,904 - -
Total equity 751,098 1,135,015 526,137 827,640

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSGLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUTY
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Attributable to equity
4—————holders of the Company ———»

Share Treasury Other Retained Minority Total
Note capital shares reserves  Earnings Total interests equity
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'CC0 RMB'OG0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'Q00
2008
Begirning of financial
year 793,316 - 34,458 224,337 1,052,111 82,904 1,135,015
Currency translation
differences 31X - - (1} - (1) - 4]
Net loss - - - {44,994)  (44,994) - {44,984)
Total recognised loss - - {1} {44,994) {44,995) - {44,995)
Increase in investment
in subsidiary 31(b)(H) - - (205,299) - {205,299) (B2,904) (288,203)
Transfer to statutory
reserves 31(b)() - - 22,800 (22,800} - - -
Purchase of treasury
shares 30 - (60,719) - - {50,719) - {50,719)
End of financial year 793,316 {60,719} (148,042} 156,543 751,098 - 751,098
2007
Beginning of financial
year
- As previously
reported 222,754 - 15,029 96,546 334,329 3,277 337,606
- Adjustment for prior
period - - 336 (336) - - -
As restated 222,754 - 15,365 96,210 334,329 3.277 337,608
Currency translation
differences 31{b)(iii) - - 1 - 1 - 1
Net profit - B B 147,150 147,150 24,054 171,204
Disposal of subsidiary - - - (764) (764) (617) (1,381)
Total recognised
income - - 1 146,386 146,387 23,437 169,824
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - 59,413 59,413
Increase in investment
in subsidiary 31(b){H) - - 122 711 833 (3,223) (2,390)
Issue of shares 30 580,950 - - - 590,950 - 590,950
Share issue expenses 30 (20,388) - - - {20,388) - (20,388)
Transfer to statutory
resemnves 31(b)() - - 18,970 {18,970) - - -
End of financial year 763,316 - 34,458 224,337 1,062,111 82,904 1,135,015
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial staterments.
9



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUF LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

Group
Note 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Total (loss) / profit (44,994) 171,204
Adjustments for
- Income tax expense 16,351 681
- Amortisation and depreciation 9,263 14,799
- Falr value changes on derivative financial instruments 226,386 -
~ Gain on disposals of property, plant and eguipment (2} 4)
- Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment 3
- Gain on disposai of a subsidiary - (5,625)
- Gain on disposal of financial assets designated as
fair value through profit or foss at initiai recognition - {156)
- Interest income - banks (7,456) (9,527)
- Interest expense — banks 1,106 943
- Interest expense ~ Converiible bonds 30,863 -
- Unrealised exchange gains {11,753) (63)
- Unrezlised translation {gains} / losses {1 1
219,766 172,255
Change in working capital, net of effects from acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries
- Inventories {122) (666)
- Trade and other receivables {62,077) (78,164)
- Other current assets {424) 8,701
- Trade and other payables 28,749 53,351
- Long term prepayments 2,720 (4,609)
- Restricted cash and cash eguivalents (36,803) (2,871}
Cash generated from operations 161,808 147,997
Interest received from banks 3,866 9,527
Income tax paid (862} (11)
Net cash provided by operating activities 154,713 157,613
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 12(a)(ii) - (61,817)
Increase in investment in subsidiary 12(a)(i) & (b} {277,216) (3,223)
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash disposed of 12(c) - (5,631}
Financial assets, avaiiable-for-sale 20 (1,835) -
Purchases and construction of property, ptant and equipment 24 (55,544) (85,860)
Purchases of intangible assets 25(d) {13,686} -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment 521 5
Payment for de-nitrogenation catalyst production plant 14 {109,943} -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets, available-for-sale - 4,526
Net cash used in investing activities (457,803) {152,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of Convertible Bonds 28 708,373 -
Proceeds used to enter into Equity Swap 21 (338,653) -
Purchase of treasury shares 30 {50,719} -
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - 432,386
Repayment of borrowings {2,800} (500)
Interest paid {1,106) (943)
Net cash provided by financing activities 316,098 430,943
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,005 436,456
Effect of currency fransiation on cash and cash equivalents (11,082} 63
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 12 586,286 249,767
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 12 688,209 686,286
The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1. General information

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (the “Company") is listed on the Singapore Exchange
and incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office is 9 Temasek
Boulevard, #32-02 Suntec Tower Two, Singapore 038989.

The principal aclivity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are described in Note 41 of the financial statements.

2, Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of
certain crifical accounting estimates and assumptions. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 3.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2008

On 1 January 2008, the Group adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations to FRS (INT
FRS") that are mandatory for application from that date. Changes to the Group’s accounting policies
have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS
and INT FRS.

The following are the new or amended FRS and INT FRS that are relevant to the Group:

INT FRS 111 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The adoption of the above INT FRS did not result in any substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies nor any significant impact on these financial statements,

11
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE

COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2.2

23

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the construction of
specialised equipment in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Sales are presented, net of
value-added fax, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and related cost can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when the specific
criteria for each of the Group's activities are met as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

()

(e}

Consiruction of specialised equipment

Please refer to the paragraph “Construction Contracts” for the accounting policy for revenue
from construction contracts.

Interest income

interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Rental income

Rental income from operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is
recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Govemment grant income

Government grant income is recognised at fair value when there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with attached conditions, if any.

Group accounting

{a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to a majority of the
voling rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
The cost of an acqguisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the dates of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
value on the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of minority inierest. Please refer
to the paragraph "Intangible assets - Goodwill" for the accounting policy on goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

12



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Group accounting (confinued)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued}

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unreafised
gains on transactions befween group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are aiso
eliminated but are considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Minarity interests are that part of net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the Group. They are
measured at the minocrities’ share of fair value of the subsidiaries’ identifiable assets and
fiabilities at the date of acquisition by the Group and the minorities’ share of changes in equity
since the dale of acquisition, except when the mincrities’ share of losses in a subsidiary
exceeds its interests in the equity of that subsidiary. In such cases, the excess and further
losses applicable to the minerities are attributed to the equity holders of the Company, unless
the minorities have a binding obligation to, and are able to, make good the losses. When that
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the profits applicable to the minority interests are
attributed to the equity holders of the Company until the minorities’ share of losses previously
absorbed by the equity holders of the Company are fully recovered.

Please refer to the paragraph "Investments in subsidiaries” for the accounting policy on
investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company.

(b) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with
equity holders. Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control is accounted for by adjusting the carrying amount of minority interests to reflect
changes in the Group's interest in the subsidiary’s net assets. The difference between the
amount of adjustment to minority interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received, if any, is brought to other reserves.

24 Property, plant and equipment
(a) Measurement
' Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold land and buildings are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
carried at the revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,

Leasehold land and buildings are revalued by independent professional valuers
whenever their carrying amounts are likely to differ materially from their revalued
amounts. When an asset is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset. The net
amount is then restated fo the revalued amount of the asset.

(if) Other property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes
its purchase price and any cost that is direcily atfributable to bringing the asset to
the iocation and condition necessary for it fo be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SING-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

(b) Depreciation

Construction in progress is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of property, plant
and equipment is calculaied using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable
amounts over their estimated useful fives as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land Over the lease period of 50 years
Leasehold buildings 30 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Office equipment 1- Syears
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture and fittings 3- Syears

The residuat values, estimated useful fives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The
effects of any revision are recognised in the income statement when the changes arise.

{c} Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, pfant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the Group and the cost of the item

can be measured reliably, All other repair and maintenance expense is recognised in the
income statement when incurred,

(d) Disposal

On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the
disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

2.5 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill on acquisitions

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets, liabilties and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiaries at the date of agquisition.

Goodwill on subsidiaries is recognised separately as intangible assets and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains and losses on the disposal of subsidiaries include the carrying amount of goodwill
refating to the entity sold. Such goodwill was adjusted against retained earnings in the year of
acquisition and not recognised in the income statement on disposal.

14
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE

COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2.

2.5

2.6

2.7

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
(b} Patents, technical know-how, fechnology and customer backiog

Patents, technical know-how, technology and customer backlog acquired are initially
recognised at cost and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to the income statement using
the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and periods of
contractual rights as follows:

Useful jives
Patents 10 years
Technical know-how 10 years
Technology 15 years
Customer backlog 1 year

The amortisation period and amortisation method of intangible assets other than goodwill
are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are
recognised in the income statement when the changes arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method.
Contract to construct specialised equipment (“Construction contracts”)

When the oulcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, confract revenue and
contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet dale (“percentage-of-completion method").
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, confract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in the
contract work and claims that can be measured reliably. A variation or a claim is recognised as
contract revenue when it is probable that the customer will approve the variation or negotiations have
reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim.

The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs for the contract. Costs incurred during the financial year in connection with
future activity on a confract are excluded from costs incurred to date when deiermining the stage of
completion of a contract. Such costs are shown as construction confract work-in-progress on the
balance sheet unless it is not probable that such contract costs are recoverable from the customers,
in which case, such costs are recognised as an expense immediately.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregated costs incurred plus recognised profit (less recognised
loss) on each contract is compared against the progress billings. Where costs incurred plus the
recognised profits {less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the balance is presented as due
from customers on construction confracts within “trade and other receivables”. Where progress
billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses), the balance is
presented as due to customers on construction contracts within “trade and other payables”,

Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retentions are included within “trade and other
receivables”. Advances received are included within “trade and other payables”.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Investment properties

Investment properties comprise leasehold buildings that are held for long-term rental yieids and/for
capital appreciation and are not occupied by the Group.

Investiment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is caiculated using a
straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of 30 years.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusied as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are included in the
income statement when the change arises.

Investment property is subject to renovations or improvements at regular intervais. The cost of major
renovations and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced components
are written off to the income statement when incurred. On disposal of an investment property, the

difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.

29 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company's
balance sheef. ©On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounts of the subsidiaries are recognised in the income statement,

210 Impairment of non-financial assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is indication that the goodwill
may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating-units ("CGU") expected to benefit from synergies arising from the
business cambination.

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of a CGU, including the
goodwill, exceeds the recoverable amount of the CGU. Recoverable amount of a CGU is
the higher of the CGU’s fair value less cosi to sell and value-in-use.

The total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
goodwili allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amcunt of each asset in the CGU.

An impairment loss on goodwill is recognised in the income statement and is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

(b) Intangible assets
Praperty, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries are tested
for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets may
be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. [f this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which
the asset belongs.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINC-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets {continued)

(b) Infangible assels
Property, plant and equipment
investments in subsidiaries (continued)

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount,

An impairment ioss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised, The carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill
is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation
or deprecfation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than geodwill is recognised in the income
statement.

211 Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. The designation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is irrevocable.

0] Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for frading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at
inception are those that are managed and their performances are evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented Group investment strategy.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are presented as current assets if they are either
beld for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance
sheet date,

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after
the balance sheet date which are presented as non-current assets, Loans and
receivables are presented as “rade and other receivables", "cash and cash
equivalents” and "borrowings” on the balance sheet.

(iii) Financial assets, available-for-sale

Financial assets, available-for-sale, are non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are presented
as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose off the assets within
12 months after balance sheet date.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE

COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNCLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2.1

Significant accounting poelicies {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

{h)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sale proceeds is recognised in the income statement.

Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cosis except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value,
Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, both available-for-sale and at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carmied at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of financial assets, available-for-sale, at fair value through profit
or loss including the effects of currency transiation, interest and dividend, are recognised in
the income statement when the changes arise.

Interest and dividend income on financial assets are recognised separately in the income
statement. Changes in the fair values of available for sale debt securities {i.e. monetary
items) denominated in foreign currencies are analysed into currency translation differences
on the amortised cost of the securities and other changes; the currency translation
differences are recognised in the income statement and the other changes are recognised
in the fair value reserve. Changes in fair values of available-for-sale equity securities (i.e.
non-monetary items) are recognised in the fair value reserve, together with the related
currency translation differences.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and recognises an allowance for
impairment when such evidence exists.

)] Loans and receivables

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptey, and default or significant delay in payments are objective evidence
that these financial assets are impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment
allowance account which is calculated as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated fuiure cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. When the asset becomes uncoliectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsecuent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised against the same [ine item in the income statement.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE

COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GRCUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDJARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2.

21

212

2.13

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(e}

impaiment (continued)
() Loans and receivables (continued)

The allowance for impairment loss account is reduced through the income
statement in a subsequent period when the amount of impairment Joss decreases
and the related decrease can be objectively measured. The carrying amount of
the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent that the new carrying
amount does not exceed the amortised cost had no impairment been recognised
in pricr periods.

(i) Financial assets, available-for-sale
Significant and prolonged declines in the fair value of the security below its cost

and the disappearance of an active trading market for the security are objective
evidence that the security is impaired.

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their
carrying amounts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditionat right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(@)

(b)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest methed.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds denominated in a currency other than the Group's functional currency are
accounted for as a liability. On issuance of foreign currency convertible bonds, the total proceeds
are allocated fo the liability component and the embedded derivatives, which are separately
presented on the balance sheet. At inception, the embedded derivatives are recognised as fair
value, while the difference between the total proceeds and the fair value of the embedded
derivatives is recognised as the convertible bond iiability compenent within “borrowings”.

The embedded derivatives are subsequently camied at its fair value with fair value changes
recognised in the income statement within "other gains / losses” in the financial year in which the
changes in fair value arises.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until the liability extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds.

When the conversion option is exercised, the carrying amounts of the embedded derivatives
and the liability component are derecognised with a corresponding recognition of share capital
account. When the conversion option is allowed to lapse, the carrying amount will be taken to
retained earnings.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 37 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Derivative financial instruments

A derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at its fair value on the date the contract is entered
into and is subseqguently carried at its fair value,

The fair values of derivative financial instruments traded in active markets (such as exchange-traded
and over-the-counter securities and derivatives) are based on quoted market prices at balance sheet
date. The quoted market prices used for financial assets are the current bid prices; the appropriate
quoted market prices for financial liabilities are the current asking prices.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Where appropriate, quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for simitar instruments are used. Valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analyses, are also used to determine the fair values of the financial instruments.

215 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequenily carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Leases
0} Lessee - Operating leases

Leases of buildings where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in the income statement when incurred.

(iy Lessor - Operating leases

Leases of investment properties where the Group retains substantially all risk and rewards
incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating
leases {net of incentives given fo the lessees) is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term,

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging operating leases are
added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expense in the
incore statement over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Contingent rents are recognised as income in the income statement when earned.
217 Research costs
Research costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

218 Inventories

inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normai operating capacity)
but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

218 Club memberships

investment in club memberships is stated at cost less provision for diminution in value based on a
review at the balance sheet date. A provision for diminution in value is made where, in the opinion of
the directors, there is a decline other than temporary in the value of such investment. Where there
has been a decline other than temporary in the value of such investment, such a decline is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in which the decline is identified. On disposal of an
investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is taken to the
income statement.

2.20 Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to
or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income
tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction.

A deferred income tax liability is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is measured:

0] at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the reiated deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is seftled, based on tax rafes and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date; and

(i) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at
the balance sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred income taxes are recoghised as income or expense in the income statement,
except to the extent that the tax arises from a business combination or a transaction which is
recognised directly in equity. Deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against
goodwill on acquisition.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Employee compensation

The Group's coniributions are recognised as employee compensaticn expense when they are due,
uniess they can be capitalised as an asset.

(a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund Scheme in
Singapore and certain retirement plans stipulated by the PRC regulations on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group's contributions are recognised as employee
compensalion expense when they are due.

{s)] Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled and a cash-settled share-based compensation plan.

Under the equity settled share-based compensation plan, the fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of options is recognised as an expense in the
income statement with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve over the
vesting period. The total amount to be recognised over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted on the date of the grant. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares under cptions that
are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date. At each balance sheet date, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of shares under options that are expected to
become exercisable on the vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the
estimates in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve over the remaining vesting period. When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received (net of transaction costs) and the related balance previously recognised in the
share option reserve are credited to share capital account when new ordinary shares are
issued, or to the "treasury shares” account when treasury shares are re-issued to the
employees.

Under the cash-settled share-based compensation plan, the fair value of the employee
service received in exchange for the grant of options or awards is recognised as an
expense in the income statement with the recognition of a corresponding liability over the
vesting period. Until the liability is setfled, it is re-measured at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

2.22 Currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB").

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (*foreign currency”) are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Currency translation differences from the settiement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and jiabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the closing rates at the balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair values are determined.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNCOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
222 Currency translation (continued)
(c) Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows;

(i Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rates at the date of the
balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions}; and

iii} All resulting currency translation differences are recognised in the currency
translation reserve,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and
translated at the closing rates at the date of the balance sheet. For acquisitions prior to 1
January 2005, the exchange rates at the dates of acquisition are used.

2.23 Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and retums that are different from those of other business
segments, A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Group engaged in
providing producis or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
inchude cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, and excludes restricted cash.

225 Share capital and treasury shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital account.

When any entity within the Group purchases the Company's ordinary shares ("treasury shares”), the
consideration paid including any directly attributable incremental cost is presented as a component
within equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders, until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.

When treasury shares are subsequently cancelled, the cost of treasury shares are deducted against
the share capital account if the shares are purchased out of capital of the Company, or against the
retained earnings of the Company if the shares are purchased out of earnings of the Company.

When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to the employee share option
scheme, the cost of treasury shares is reversed from the freasury share account and the realised gain
or loss on sale or reissue, net of ahy directly attributable incremental transaction costs and related
income tax, is recognised in the capital reserve of the Company.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.26 Dividends to Company's shareholders

Dividends to Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are approved for
payments.

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed fo be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is indication that the goodwill
may be impaired. The recoverable amounts of goodwill have been based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates Note 25(a).

i the management’s estimated gross margin at 31 December 2008 is lowered by 10%

(2007: 10%), the recoverable amount of goodwill will stil be higher than the carrying
amount of goodwill.

If the management's estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flows at
31 December 2008 is raised by 1% (2007: 1%), the recoverable amount of goodwill will still
be higher than the carrying amount of goodwili.

(b} Construction contracts

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method to account for its contract revenue,
The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred to date
compared to the estimated total costs for the contract. Significant assumptions are required
to estimate the total contract cosis and the recoverable variation works that will affect the
stage of completion and the contract revenue respectively. In making these estimates,
management has relied on past experience.

(c) Valuation of derivative financial instruments

The Group and the Company carry derivative financial instruments at fair value, The
derivative financial instruments arise from the equity swap derivative, and embedded
derivatives in the convertible bonds (Note 21 and Note 28). The fair values of the derivative
financial instruments were determined by independent professional valuer on a market
basis. In arriving at the fair values of the derivative financial instruments, extensive
accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements were used. The amount of equity swap
derivative, embedded derivatives and the convertible bends liability at initial recognition and
subsequent measurement would differ if the independent valuer uses a different
methodology and parameter values such as volatility of the share price of the Company,
dividend yield and annual risk free interest rates for their valuations. Should there be
changes in the methedology and parameters used, the fair values of these embedded
derivatives and the corresponding amount of the convertible bond, and the related interest
expense and exchange gains/losses of the equity swap and convertible bonds would be

changed accordingly, and hence, will have an impact to the Group's and the company’s
profitability.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
(c} Valuation of derivative financial instruments (continued)

If the management’s estimated interest rate at 31 December 2008 is higher or lower by 100
basis poinis with all cther parameter values remaining constant, the Group's net profit after
tax would have been RMB 23,384,000 higher and RMB 22,274,000 lower, arising mainly as
a result of higher and lower market interest rate respectively in arriving at the fair value of
the liability component of Convertible Bonds

If the management’s estimated volatifity in share price at 31 December 2008 is increased or
decreased by 10% with all other parameter values remaining constant, the Group's net
profit after tax would have been RMB 3,742,000 higher and RMB 4,709,000 lower,

If the management’s estimated arithmetic weighted average share price at 31 December
2008 is increased or decreased by 20% with all other parameter values remaining constant,
the Group's net profit after tax would have been RMB 23,513,000 higher and RMB
25,837,000 lower.

{d} Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the capital allowances and deductibility of certain expenses during
the estimation of the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Deferred income tax liabilities

The Group follows the guidance of FRS 12 in recognising deferred income tax liabilities on
all taxable temporary differences in respect of foreign-secured income not remitted to
Singapore. At 31 December 2008, management expects to repatriate profits by Foreign
investment Enterprise (‘FIE") based on projected cash requirements on maturity of the
convertible bonds on 5 July 2013 and factoring the remote event being the early redemption
of the convertible bonds on § July 2010, Accordingly, management assessed and provided
for deferred tax liabilites on undistributed 2008 profits arising from the Group's China
subsidiaries in relation fo withholding tax imposed by China tax authorities on profits
repatriated by FIE. To the extent the Group does not repatriate profits or repatriate profits in
the foreseeable future, the deferred income tax liabilities will have to be written back
accordingly.

25

B-27
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

4, Revenue
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
Construction revenue 775,798 463,842
5. Expenses by nature
Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Purchases of inventories 193,620 146,364
Other direct cosis 81,312 685
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 25(g)) 4,350 11,083
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 24) 4,898 3,703
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 23) 17 13
Total amortisation and depreciation 9,263 14,799
Employee compensation (Note 6) 27,826 21,999
Sub-contract cost 200,577 92,713
Directors’ fees (Note 36(a)) 1,112 1,144
Research and developrment expenditure 2,971 2,832
Rental expense on operating lease 1,711 1,580
Other expenses 39,964 28,294
Changes in inventories {122) (666)
Total cost of sales, distribution and n'ia;keting costs and
administrative expenses 558,234 309,744
6. Employee compensation
Group
2008 2007
RMBE’000 RMB'000
Woages and salaries 22,199 20,240
Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans 1,167 1,211
Share-based compensation 3,074 -
Other personnel expenses 1,386 548
27,826 21,289

Share-based compensation relates to the Company's Performance Shares Plan. On 20 August
2008, the Company granted 3,000,000 share awards to the directors and employees of the Group
(2007: Nil), representing the right to receive fully paid ordinary shares of the Company, their
equivalent cash value or combinations thereof, free of charge.
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

7. Other income

Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Note 12{c))
Gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment
Interest income - bank deposits

Government grant

Currency translation gain - net
Rental income from investment property

Other rental income
Others

Group
2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB’000
- 5,625

2 4
7,456 9,527
2,884 3,900
2,365 -
49 33

97 -

261 422
13,114 19,511

Certain subsidiaries of the Group enjoy discretionary government subsidies as support to the
development and expansion of the People's Republic of China ("PRC’s") industry.

In 2007, the Group disposed of its 92% interest in Fujian Thumb Env-Prot Water Works Co,, Ltd.
(*Fujian Water") for a cash consideration of RMB 12,880,000. According to the sale and purchase
agreement, the disposal was effective 1 November 2007, The carrying value of identifiable net
assets disposed of amounted to RMB 7,255,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of RMB 5,625,000.
Please refer to Note 12 for the effect of the disposal on the Group's cash flows.

8. Other iosses - net

Fair value losses on equity swap (Note 21)

Fair value losses on embedded derivatives (Note 28)
Currency franslation loss - net

Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment

Others

9. Finance expenses

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on convertible bonds

Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB 000
189,401 -
36,985 -
- 699
3 2
963 80
227,352 781
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,106 943
30,863 -
31,969 943
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOL.OGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

10. Income taxes
(&} Income tax expense
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000
Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:
- Profit from current financial year:
Current income tax
- Singapore 17 469
-PRC 4,110 252
4,127 721
Deferred income tax (Note 10(c) and Note 29) 12,304 (42)
16,431 679
(Over) / under provision in prior financial years:
Current income tax (credit) / expense {80} 2
16,351 681

Some subsidiaries of the Group enjoy tax concession in the PRC made available to foreign
investment production enterprise. Pursuant to the Income Tax Law of the PRC, these subsidiaries
are exempted from faxation for the first two profitable years and a 50% relief from the normal PRC
income tax applicable to the subsidiaries for the next three years. The subsidiaries are stil! enjoying
their tax exemption or concession years and the details are set out below:

(i Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (*Fujian Thumb™) is subjected to income tax at a
rate of 12.5% (2007 : Nil) with effect from 1 January 2008 for a period of 3 years.

{ii) Fujian Weidong EFT Co., Ltd. ("Fujian Weidong") enjoys tax-free status from 1 January
2007 for 2 years and will be subject to 12.5% tax from 2009 for a period of 3 years.

Gii Fujian Weidong Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. is entitied to full exemption from
income tax from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

{iv) Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co., Ltd. ('Fujian Facilities”) enjoys tax-free status
from 1 January 2007 for 2 years and is subjected to 12.5% tax from 2009 for a period of 3
years,

v} Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (‘Fuda Desai") enjoys tax-free status
from 1 January 2008 for 2 years and is subjected to 12.5% tax from 2008 for a period of 3
years.

The Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC. The statutory tax rate applicable to entities
incorporated in the PRC and the Company is 25% (2007: 33%) and 18% (2007: 18%) respectively.
The tax expense on profit differs from the amount that would arise using the PRC standard rate of
income tax is as explained below:

Group
2008 2007
RMBE’000 RMB'000
(Loss) / Profit before tax (28,643) 171,885
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% (2007: 33%) (7,161) 56,722
Effects of
- different tax rates in Singapore (6) (390}
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 69,957 7,742
- income not subject to tax (59,380) (63,978)
- deferred tax not recognised 697 583
- effect of additional 10% withholding tax on interest income 2,084 -
- effect of additional 5% withholding tax on undistributed profits 10,220 -
- {Over) [ under provision in prior financial years 180) 2
Tax charge 16,351 681
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10. Income taxes {continued)
(b) Movement in current income tax liabilities
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RME'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Beginning of financial year 712 - 471 -
Income tax paid {962) (1) (391) -
Tax expense 4,127 721 17 469
(Over) / under provision in
prior financial years (80} 2 (80) 2

Tax recoverable 179 - - -
End of financial year 3,976 712 17 471

(c) Withholding taxes
(i) Withholding tax on undistributed profits

The China Tax Authority imposed a 5% withholding tax on profits repatriated by Foreign Investment
Enterprise (FIE) to its foreign investors with effect 1 January 2008. The Group will incur a 5%
withholding tax when its China subsidiaries declare and remit dividends back to Singapore.

(i} Withholding tax on interest

Under the Double Tax Treaty (DTT) between the PRC and Singapore, interest arising in a
contracting state and paid to a resident of the other contraciing state may be taxed in that other
state. Such interest will be subject to a 7% withhalding tax if received by any bank or financial
institution, or 10% of the gross amount of the interest in all other cases, effective from 1 January
2008.
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11 Earnings per share
(&) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

2008 2007
Net (loss} / profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
{(RMB’000) (44,994} 147,150
Weighted average number of erdinary shares outstanding for basic
earnings per share ('000) 340,549 342 406
Basic {losses) / earnings per share (RMB per share) {0.13) 0.43

(b} Dituted earnings per share

FFor the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit atiributable to equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares are
the Convertible Bonds. Convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary
shares at issuance and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense, fair value losses
and foreign exchange gains less the tax effect.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the convertible bonds are not included in the calculation of
diluted earnings because they are anti-dilutive for the period from their issuance to 31 December

2008.
2008 2007

Net {loss) / profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

{RMB'000}) (44,994) 147,150
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for basic

earnings per share {000} 340,549 342,406
Diluted (losses) / earnings per share (RMB per share) {0.13) 0.43
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12. Cash and cash equivalents
Croup Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB™000
Cash at bank and on hand 633,365 506,655 39,299 3,201
Shori-term bank deposits 94,518 182,502 94,518 182,502
727,883 589,157 133,817 185,703

Short-term bank deposits at the balance sheet date had an average maturity of 11 months (2007: 4
months) from the end of the financial year with a weighted average effective interest rate of 0.56%
per annum {2007: 2,95% per annum).

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Cash and bank balances 727,883 689,157
Less: Restricted cash and cash equivalents (39,674) (2,871
Cash and cash equivalents per
consolidated cash flow statement 688,209 686,286

The restricted cash and cash equivalents refate 1o deposits as at 31 December 2008 placed for
project tenders.

Acqguisitions and disposal of subsidiaries

On 1 January 2007, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Sino-Environment Clean Power
Technology Pte. Ltd. (“Clean Power") acquired 60% of the issued share capital of Fujian Weidong for
a consideration of RMB 265,676,000. Effective 1 January 2008, Clean Power acquired the
remaining 40% of the issued share capital of Fujian Weidong for a cash consideration of RMB
288,203,000.

On 1 October 2007, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian Thumb acquired the remaining
21% interest in Fuda Desai for a cash consideration of RMB 3,223,000.

On 24 December 2007, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian Thumb disposed of its 92%
interest in Fujian Water for a cash consideration of RMB 12,880,000,

The effects of the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries on the cashflows of the Group were:
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12, Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(a) Acquisition of Fujian Weidong
(i) Increase in investment in existing subsidiary - acquisition of remaining 40% minority interest in
2008
Group
Carrying
amount in
acquiree’s
hooks
RMB'000
[dentifiable net assets acquired 82,904
Total consideration (including direct costs) (288,203}
Difference between consideration and identifiable assets — adjusted against other
reserves (205,299}
Total consideration per above 288,203
Less: Payable to former shareholders of subsidiary (Note 26) (10,987)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 277,216

Effective 1 January 2008, the Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Clean Power, acquired
the remaining 40% of Fujian Weidong. Subsequent to this acquisition, Fujian Weidong is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Clean Power and of the Group.

The total cash consideration for the acquisition is RMB 288,203,000.
The difference between the total consideration and the amount of adjustment to the minority
interest, RMB 205,299,000, was brought to equity according to the Group’s significant accounting

policies.

On 7 August 2008, the Company completed its sale and purchase agreement with the former
shareholders of Fujian Weidong.
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12, Cash and cash equivaients (continued)

(a} Acquisition of Fujian Weidong (continued)

(i) Acquisition of 0% interest in Fujian Weidong in 2007

Identifiable assets and liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment excluding leasehold land
(Note 24}

Leasehold land (Note 24)

intangibles - Technology (Note 25(b})

Intangibles - Customer backlog (Note 25(c))

Investment properties (Note 23)

Financial assets, available-for-sale

Other current assets

Total assets

Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29)
Borrowings

Total liabilities

|dentifiable net assets
Less: Minority interests
Identifiable net assets acquired

Goodwill (Note 25(a))

Total consideration (including direct costs)

l.ess: Fair value of consideration paid via shares of the
Company

Cash consideration paid

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired

Net cash outflow on acquisition

Al fair values

Carrying amounts in
acquiree’s books

RMB'000 RMB'000
65,683 65,683
57,889 57,889

2,725 2,725
13,350 10,852
7,439 886
38,000 -
7,500 .
498 420
1,870 1,870
2,595 2,595

197,549 142,920
(24,952) (24,952)
(11,565) -
(12,500} {12,500)
(49,017) (37,452)

148,532 105,468
(59,413) (42,187)
89,119 63,281

176,557

265,676

(138,178)

127,500

(65,683)
61,817

The goodwill was attributable to the earning potential of Fujian Weidong and the synergies from Fujian

Weidong to aid the Group to provide one-stop environmental soiutions to customers.

The acquired subsidiary confributed revenue of RMB 181,374,550 and net profit of RMB 58,727,365
to the Group for the period from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007. The subsidiary's assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2007 were RMB 234,780,810 and RMB 70,585,055 respectively.
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12, Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(b) Acquisition of remaining 21% in Fuda Desai in 2007
Group
Carrying amounts
in acquiree's
At fair values books
RMB'000 RMB’000
Identifiable assets and liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 2,905 2,905
Trade and other receivables 749 749
Inventories 10 10
Property, plant and equipment 54 54
Total assets 3,718 3,718
Trade and other payables (495} (495)
Total liabilities (495) (495)
identifiable net assets acquired 3,223 3,223
Cash consideration paid 3,223
Net cash outflow on acqguisition 3,223
(c) Disposal of Fujian Water in 2007
Group
Disposal carrying
amount
RMB'000
Identifiable assefs and liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 5631
Trade and other receivables 7256
Property, plant and equipment 10,564
Total assets 23,451
Trade and other payables (15,579)
Total liabilities {15,679}
ldentifiable net assets 7,872
Less: Minority interests B817)
|dentifiable net assets disposed 7,255
Gain on disposal (Note 7} 5,625
Disposal consideration 12,880
Less: Sales proceeds receivable (Note 13) (12,880)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary disposed (5,831)
Net cash outflow on disposal (5,631)
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13, Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Trade receivables 35,713 30,336 - -
Less : Allowance for impairment of
receivables {1,210) - - -
Trade receivables — net 34,503 30,336 - -
Construction contracts
- Retentions 51,629 35,383 “ -
Less: Allowance for impairment {(429) - - -
Retentions — net (Note 17) 51,200 35,383 - -
- Due from customers (Note 17) 146,276 55,091 - -
197,476 90,474 - -
Sales proceeds receivable (Note
12(c)) - 12,380 - -
Staff loans (Note 18) 2,253 2,847 - -
Advances fo suppliers 21,371 28,976 - -
Tax recoverable 179 - - -
Dividends receivable from a
subsidiary - - 50,000 50,000
Due from subsidiaries (non-trade) - - 232,163 11,300
Tender deposits 6,990 14,551 - -
Amount due from former subsidiary - 15,549 - -
Other receivables 13,701 15,043 3,650 107
276,473 210,656 285,813 61,407

Amounts due from subsidiaries {non-trade) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

14, Other current assets

Prepayments and other assets
Other deposits

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RME’G00 RMB’000
112,837 2,851 184 187
479 128 4314 103
113,316 2,979 615 290

As at 31 December 2008, included in prepayments is RMB 109,943,000 for the Group's de-
nitrogenation catalyst plant (2007: Nil).

15, Inventories
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
Raw materials 5,104 4,982

The cost of inveniories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to RMB
193,497,325 (2007: RMB 145,697 ,390).
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16.

17.

18.

Transferable club memberships

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Transferable club memberships at
cost 354 354 354 354
Construction contracts
Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB000
Aggregate costs incurred and profits recognised (less losses
recognised) to date 347,751 109,283
Less: Progress billings {205,276) (54,192)
142,475 55,091
Presented as:
Due from customers on construction contracts (Note 13) 146,276 55,091
Due to customers on construction contracts (Note 26) (3,801) -
142 475 55,091
Advances received on construction contracts (Note 26) 21,710 38,491
Retentions on construction contracts (Note 13) 51,200 35,383
Staff locans
Group
2003 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
Receivables due
- Not later than 1 year (Note 13} 2,253 2,847

Staff loans include loans of RMB 68,000 (2007: RMB 18,000) made to key management of the
Group. The loans are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.
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19.

20.

Investments in subsidiaries

Company
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB’000
Equity investments at cost
Beginning of financial year 588,201 175,343
Acqguisitions 131,991 412,858
End of financial year 720,192 588,201

Details of significant subsidiaries are included in Note 41.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

On 18 July 2008, the Company made a capital injection of RMB 51 million {2007: RMB 40 million) to
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian Thumb.

On 21 May 2008 and 15 July 2008, the Company made a capital injection of RMB 31 million (2007:
Nify and RMB 5C million (2007: Nil) to its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian Facilities respectively.

In 2007, the Company made a capital injection of RMB 250 million to its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Clean Power.

In 2007, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Clean Power, transferred all of its 100%
shareholding in Fujian Facilities to the Company for a cash consideration of RMB 117 million.

In 2007, the Company incorporated a new wholly-owned subsidiary, Sino-Environment Waste

Management Technology Pte. Ltd. ("Waste Management”). The issued share capital of Waste
Management is RMB 5 million.

Financial assets, available-for-sale

Group and Company

2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB000
Unlisted securities 1,935 -

fn 2008, the Company invested in unlisted equity securities in Malaysia. Management bhelieves the
carrying amounts recorded at the balance sheet date approximate the corresponding fair value.
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21,

22,

23.

Derivative financ¢ial instrument - Equity swap derivative

On 8 July 2008, concurrent with the issuance of the Convertible bonds (see Note 28), the Company
entered into a cash-seftled equity swap transaction ("Equity Swap™) with Morgan Stanley & Co.
International Plc (Equity Swap Counterparty) for the Company's shares for a value of $$67,358,026
{equivalent to approximately RMB 338.7 million). The reference price used was set at $$1.8276. The
Equity Swap derivative will provide the Company with economic exposure to the fluctuation in the
Company’s share price which will result in a gain to the Company if the Company's share price rises
and loss to the Company if the Company’s share price falls over the life of the Equity Swap.

The movement of Equity swap derivative for the year is set out below:

Group and

Company
2008

RME’000

CGash seftled Equity Swap on inception date on 8 July 2008 338,653
Fair value losses on Equity Swap derivative (Note 8) {189,401)

Currency translation losses (19,226)
End of financial year 130,026

Long-term prepayment
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMBE’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Long-term prepayment 1,889 4,600 - -

In 2007, the Group made a prepayment to an advertising company for advertising services to be
rendered for 3 years.

Investment properties

Group
2008 2007

RMB'000 RMB'000
Beginning of financial year 485 -
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 12(&)ii)) - 498
Depreciation {17} (13)
End of financial year 488 485
Cost . 580 580
Accumulated depreciation {112} (98}
Carrying amount at end of year 468 485
Fair value 468 498

investment properties are leased to non-related parties under operating leases (Note 34(c)) and the
fair values at balance sheet dales are determined by director's valuation. The following amounts are
recognised in the income statement.

Group
2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Rental income 49 33
Direct operating expense arising from investment properties that
generated rental income 16 15
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24, Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Plant

tand and and Office Motor Furniture  Construction

buildings machinery eguipment vehicles and fiitings in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'00C RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

Group
2008

Cost
Beginning of financial

year 48,493 7,521 2,626 6,147 3,109 43,210 111,106
Additions 542 413 1,308 3,639 744 48,898 55,544
Transfer from

consiruction in

progress £0,850 - - - - {90,850) -
Disposals and write-offs - - (57) (711) 3) - (771}
End of financial year 139,885 7.934 3,877 8,075 3,850 1,258 165,879
Accumuiated depreciation
Beginning of financial

year 573 1,202 ,1,038 2,079 2,021 - 6,913
Depreciation charge 1,762 362 641 820 811 - 4,896
Disposals and write offs - - (55) (192) (2) - (249)
End of financial year 2,335 2,064 1,624 2,707 2,830 - 11,560
Net book value
End of financial year 137,550 5,870 2,253 6,368 1,020 1,258 154,319
2007
Cost
Beginning of financial

year - 3,439 1,128 4,427 2,529 3,604 15,127
Additions 30,991 2,762 1,030 822 229 50,026 85,860
Acquisition of subsidiary

(Note 12(a)}ii}) 17,502 1,320 515 1,101 351 - 20,789
Disposal of subsidiary

{Note 12) - - {13} (203) - (10,420} {10,636)
Disposals and write-offs - - (34) - - - (34)
End of financial year 48,493 7,521 2,626 6,147 3,108 43,210 111,106
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial

year - 679 479 1,576 579 - 3,313
Depreciation charge 573 523 594 571 1.442 - 3,703
Disposal of subsidiary

(Note 12) - - (4) (68} - - (72)
Disposals and write offs - - (31) - - - (31)
End of financial year 573 1,202 1,038 2,079 2,021 - 8,913
Net book value
End of financial year 47,920 6,319 1,588 4,068 1,088 43,210 104,193

As at 31 December 2007, a leasehold land of net book value RMB 7,277,000 has been pledged to
secure a shori-term bank loan {Note 27} of RMB 2,000,000. No assets were held as collateral as at
31 December 2008.
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24, Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Office Motor Furniture
equipment vehicles and fittings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Company
2008
Cost
Beginning of financial year 159 711 69 939
Additions 56 1,199 42 1,297
Disposais and write offs (57) (711) (3) (771}
End of financial year 158 1,199 108 1,465
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 101 52 29 182
Depreciation charge 20 200 13 303
Disposals & write offs (565) (192) (2} (249)
End of financial year 136 80 40 236
Net book value
End of financial year 22 1,139 68 1,229
2007
Cost
Beginning of financial year 95 711 69 875
Additions 98 - - a8
Disposals and write offs (34) - - (34)
End of financial year 159 711 69 939
Accumuiated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 33 15 17 65
Depreciation charge 99 37 12 148
Disposals & write offs 31 - - (31)
End of financial year 101 52 29 182
Net baok value
End of financial year 58 659 40 757
25. intangible assets
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
Composition:
Goodwill arising on consolidation (Note (a)) 176,557 176,557
Technology (Note (b)) 32,933 35,467
Customer backlog (Note (c)) - -
Patents and technical know-how (Note (d)) 18,599 8,729
228,089 218,753
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25. Intangible assets (continued)

(@) Goodwill arising on consolidation

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (*CGUs") identified according to country of
operation and business segments.

Group
2008 2007

RMB’000 RMB'000
Cosf
Beginning of financial year 176,557 -
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 12{a}(ii}} - 176,557
End of financial year 176,557 176,557
Accumulated impairment
Beginning of financial year - -
Impairment charge - -
End of financial year - -
Net book value 176,557 176,557

Impaimment tests for goodwill

The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on value-in-use calculations. Cash flow
projections used in these calculations were based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growih
rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions for value-in-use caiculations:

2008 2007
Gross margin ' 35% 35%
Growth rate ® 2.00% 2.00%
Discount rate ® 18.76% 15.80%

These assumptions were used for the analysis of the CGU. Management determined budgeted gross
margin based on past performance and its expectations of the market development. The weighted
average growth rates used were consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rates used were pre-tax and reflecited specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

There is no impairment charge for the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2008 and 31 December
2007.

' Budgeted gross margin

Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period
Pre-tax rate applied fo the pre-tax cash flow projections
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25,

(b}

©

Intangiblie assets (continued)

Technology

Beginning of financia! year

Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 12(a){#))
Amortisation

End of financial year

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book valug

Customer backlog

Beginning of financial year

Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 12(a)ii))
Amortisation

End of financial year

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Patents and technical know-how

Beginning of financial year
Additions
End of financial year

Accumulated Amortisation
Beginning of financial year
Amortisation charge
End of financial year

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
35,467 -
- 38,000
(2,534) (2,533)
32,933 35,467
38,000 38,000
(5,067) {2,533)
32,933 35,467
Group
2008 2007
RMB’'000 RMB'000
- 7,500
- (7,500}
7,500 7.500
{7,5G0) (7,500)
Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
10,500 10,500
13,686 -
24,186 10,500
3,771 2,721
1,816 1,050
5,687 3,771
24,186 10,500
(5,587) (3.771)
18,599 8,729

On 7 April 2008, the Group secured an agreement with Catalysts & Chemicals Industries Co., Ltd, for
the transfer of technology, software and other technical know-how pertaining to the production of
catalysts for deployment in de-nitrogenation of fiue-gas for coal-fired power plants.
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25. Intangible assets {(continued)
(e) Amortisation expense included in the income statement is analysed as follows;
Group
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000
Administrative expenses (Note 5) 4,350 11,083
28, Trade and other payables - Current
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade payabtes to non-related
parties 43,008 12,156 - -
Construction contracts
- Advances received {Note 17) 21,710 38,491 - -
- Due to customers (Note 17) 3,801 - - -
Due 1o a subsidiary {non-trade) - - 4,793 4,795
Due to former shareholders of
subsidiary {Note 12(a)(i}) 10,987 - - -
Due to related party” 135 - - -
Other payabies 27,851 17,484 . -
Other accruals for operating
expenses 8,859 8,787 7,630 3,806
Total 116,351 76,918 12,423 8,601

Amocunts due to a subsidiary (non-trade) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
“Related party is a company which is related to the Company's controlling shareholder.

27. Borrowings
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Current
Bank borrowings 7,500 11,000 - -
Government loan 700 - - -
Other borrowing 1,000 - - -
9,200 11,000 - -
Non-current
Convertible bonds (Note 28) 622,636 - 622,636 -
Government loan - 1,000 - -
622,636 1,000 622,636 “
Total borrowings 631,836 12,000 622,636 -

The weighted average effective interest rates of interest-bearing borrowings at the balance sheet
date are 8.55% (2007: 7.94%).

As at 31 December 2008, RMB 7,500,000 of the current berrowings had annual inferest rate of
8.09% and RMB 1,000,000 had an annual interest rate of 12.00%. The remaining RMB 700,000
government loan is interest free.
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27. Borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, RMB 2 million of the current borrowings had annual interest rate of 8.52%
and the remaining RMB 9 million had an annual interest rate of 1.3 times of China bank borrowing
rate, which amounted to 7.81%. The non-current borrowings was unsecured and interest free loan
granted by the PRC government to Fujian Weidong, which is a newly acquired subsidiary in 2007, for
a 5-year period starting from 2005.

(&) Security granted

Total borrowings included secured liabilities of NIL (2007: RMB 2,000,000) for the Group and the
Company. Bank borrowings were secured over a leasehold land (Note 24).

The convertible bonds issued on 8 July 2008 are unsecured.

(b} Fair value of borrowings

The fair values of the current bank borrowings approximate their book value. There were no long
term borrowings except for the convertible bonds (Note 28) as at 31 December 2008.

The fair value of the long term borrowings as at 31 December 2007 was RMB 849,000. The fair
value was determined from the cash flow analysis discounted at market borrowing rate of 8.52% at
31 December 2007 which the directors expect to be available to the Group.

28. Convertible bonds

On 8 July 2008, the Company issued a SGD denominated SGD seftled 4% Convertible Bonds due
2013, of principal amount of S$149 million (equivalent to approximately RMB 749.1 million)
(“Convertible Bonds™) (2007: Nil) to third party investors {"Bondholders"). The aggregate amount of
S5%149 million, at the option of the Bondholders, can be convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of $$2.19 up to the close of business on 24 June 2013,
subject to adjustments for, among others, subdivision or consolidation of shares, bonus issues, rights
issues, distribution and other dilutive events. If the Convertible Bonds have not been converted, it
will be redeemed on 8 July 2013 at an amount equal to 114.5% of their principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

Beginning 13 July 2011, the Company may redeem all but not part of the Convertible Bonds if the
closing price of the shares for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days, the last day of which period
occurs not more than 5 trading days prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption is given,
is at least 130% of the early redemption amount divided by the Conversion Ratio in effect on such
frading day. The Company may also redeem all but not part of the Convertible Bonds at a
redemption price equal to their Early Redemption Amount on the redemption date plus accrued and
unpaid interest if at any time at least 90% in principal amount of the Convertible Bonds have been
converied, redeemed or purchased and cancelled. Early Redemption Amount is the amount together
with unpaid accrued interest from the immediately preceding interest payment date, or if none, the
Closing Date and after taking into account any interest paid in respect of the Bonds in preceding
periods, that represents on the relevant date for the determination of the Early Redemption Amount,
a gross yield to maturity of 6.5% per annum. Each bondholder may require the Company to redeem
in whoie, or in part only (being not less than $$250,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple
thereof), the Convertible Bonds on 8 July 2010 at 105.2% of their principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest or at the Early Redemption Amount plus accrued and unpaid interest if the shares
cease fo be listed in the SGX-ST or upon a change of control.

44

B-46



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~or the financial year ended 31 December 2008

28. Convertible bonds {continued)

As the Bonds are denominated in a currency other than the Group's functional currency, they are
accounted for as liability. The fair value of the options embedded in the Bonds at inception, is
recognised as derivative financial instrument on the balance sheet, while the residual amount is
recognised as convertible bonds liability within "borrowings”.

The carrying amount of the liability component of the convertible bonds at the balance sheet date is
derived as follows:

Group and
Company
2008
RMB’00¢
Beginning of financial year -
Face value of convertible bonds issued on 8 July 2008, net of transaction costs 709,373
Derivative financial instruments on initial recognition on 8 July 2008 (80,793)
Liability component on initial recognition on 8 July 2008 628,580
Interest expense (including amortisation of transaction costs) 31,714
Currency translation gains (37,658)
Liability component at end of financial year (Note 27) 622,636

The convertible bonds liability is recognised at amortised cost based on an effective interest rate of
5.0%. The resulting interest expense is recognised as finance expense in the income statement.

The movement of the embedded derivatives in the Bonds during the year is as follows:

Group and
Company
2008

RMB’00C

Beginning of financial year -
Embedded derivatives recognised on 8 July 2008 80,793
Fair value loss (Note 8) 36,985
Currency translation gains (5,010
End of financial year 112,768

45

B-47



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

28, Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate fo the same fiscal authority. The amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
on the balance sheets as follows:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Deferred income tax liabilities
- to be settled within one year 42 42
- to be settled after one year 23,785 11,481
23,827 11,523
Movement in deferred income tax account is as follows;
Group
Deferred income tax liabilities
Undistributed
Fair value profits and
dains - net withholding tax Total
RMB’C00 RMB’000 RMB’000
2008
Beginning of financial year 11,5623 - 11,523
Charged / (credited) to income statement
(Note 10(a)) 42) 12,346 12,304
End of financial year 11,481 12,3465 23,827
2007
Beginning of financial year - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary(Note 12(a) (ii}} 11,565 - 11,565
Credited to income statement (Note 10{z)) (42) - (42}
End of financial year 11,5623 - 11,623

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through
future taxable profits is probable. At as 31 December 2008, the subsidiaries of the Group had
estimaied unutifised income tax losses of approximately RMB 4,857,598 (2007: RMB 2,070,073)
available for set-off against future taxable profits subject to meeting certain statutory requirements by
those companies with unrecognised tax losses in their respective countries of incorporation. The tax
losses will expire between 2010 and 2011.

As at the balance sheet date, the potential tax benefits arising from the following items were not
recognised in the financial statements due to uncertainty on their recoverability approximating RMB
1,214,399 (2007: RMB 5,175,518).
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30. Share capital and treasury shares
No. of ordinary shares Amount
Issued share Treasury Issuedshare  Treasury
capital shares capital Shares
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Group and Company
2008
Beginning of financial year 346,232 - 793,316 -
Treasury shares purchase - {7.300) - (50,719)
End of financial year 346,232 (7,300) 793,316 (60,719)
2007
Beginning of financial year 300,313 - 222,754 -
Share issue 45 919 - 590,950 -
Share issue expenses - - (20,388) -
End of financial year 346,232 - 793,316 -

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares.

The Company acquired 7,300,000 (2007; Nil) shares in the Company through purchases on the
Singapore Exchange during the financial year ended 31 December 2008. The fotal amount paid fo
acquire the shares was RMB 50,719,000 (2007: Nil) and this was presented as a component within
shareholders’ equity.

On 1 January 2007, the Company issued 10,360,000 ordinary shares as part consideration for the
acquisition of Fujian Weidong. On 19 January 2007, the Company issued 35,559,310 ordinary
shares for a net consideration of RMB 433,522,488 to provide funds for the expansion of the Group's
operations, The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously issued

shares.
3. Other reserves
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
{a) Composition;
Statutory reserve 57,135 34,335 - -
Cther reserve {205,177) 122 - -
Currency translation reserve - 1 - -
{148,042) 34,458 - -

Statutory reserve consists of Statutory Surplus Reserves ("SSR" and Statutory Reserve Fund

{'SRF".

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Company's subsidiaries that are
incorperated in the PRC are required to transfer a portion of their net profit of each year to the
statutory reserve. The transfer of this reserve must be made before the payment of dividends o
shareholders. Such transfer will continue until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Wholly-owned subsidiaries are not required to allocate to SSR. These entities are required
to allocate certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined by the Board, of their net profit after tax
in accordance with PRC GAAP to the SRF until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.
SSR and SRF are non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation and subject to certain
restrictions set in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as paid-up capital.

Other reserve
In 2008, other reserve of RMB 205.2 million represents the difference between purchase

consideration and the carrying amount the minority interest acquired. The difference is brought to
equity in accordance to the Group's accounting policy.

47

B-49



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINQ-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

3t. Reserves (continued)
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(b} Movements:

(i) Statutory reserve
Beginning of financial year 34,335 15,365 . -
Transfer of retained earnings to

statutory reserves 22,800 18,970 - -
End of financial year 57,135 34,335 - -
(i} Other reserve
Beginning of financial year 122 - - -
Increase in investment in

subsidiary (Note12(a)(i)) (205,299} 122 - -
End of financial year {205,177} 122 - -
(iii) Currency translation

reserve

End of financial year, as

previously restated - (336) - -
Adjustment for prior period - 336 - -
Beginning of financial year 1 - - -
Net currency franslation

differences of financial

statements (1) 1 - -
End of financial year - 1 - -

During 2007, the Company changed its functional currency to Renminbi. Previously, the functional
currency was Singapore Dollars. The Directors are of the opinion that the change provides a more
reflective and accurate information on the Group's primary economic environment. This correction of
the prior year error has been accounted for retrospectively.

32, {Accumulated loss) / Retained earnings
(a) Retained earnings of the Group and of the Company are distributable.
(b} Movement in (accumulated loss) / retained earnings for the Company is as follows:
Company
2008 2007
RME’000 RMB'CO0
Beginning of financial year 34,324 (7.789)
Net (foss) / profit 250,784) 42,113
End of financial year 216,460) 34,324
33. Contingencies

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not extend any corporate guarantees to unrelated party
(2007: RMB 9,000,000).

34, Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2008, capital expenditures contracted for property, plant and equipment at the
balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements amount to RMB 153,960,263
(2007: RMB 31,708,100),

48

B-50



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLGGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

34, Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is a lessee

The Group leases office buildings from non-related parties under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms and renewal rights.

The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the
balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities, are as follows:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Not later than 1 year 1,589 673
Between 1 and 5 years 2,637 249
4,228 922

(c) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is a lessor

The Group lease out properties to non-related parties under non-cancellable operating leases. The
lessees are required to pay fixed monthly lease payments.

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the
balance sheet date but not recognised as receivables, are as follows:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Not later than 1 year 50 11
Between 1 and 5 years 164 -
214 11
35. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities may expose it to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management strategy seeks to

minimise adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group's financial
performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Board of Directors is responsible for sefting the objectives and underlying principlies of financial
risk management for the Group.

(a) Market risk
0] Currency risk
The Group’s business operates mainly in the PRC. [t is exposed to certain foreign
exchange risk as it maintains certain cash and cash equivalents and borrowings in foreign

currencies.

Exposure to currency risk is monitored on an on-going basis and the Group endeavours to
keep the net exposure at an acceptable level.
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35. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk {continued)

The Group’s currency exposure based on the information provided to key management is as
follows:
{(RMB'000) SGD uspD HKD RMB JPY Total
At 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and cash

equivalents 167,810 1 10 560,052 - 727,883
Trade and other

receivables, excluding

amount due from

construction contracts 3,850 - - 756,319 - 755,969
Other financiai assets 132,391 - - 48 - 132,439
Financiatl liabilities
Borrowings (735,404) - - (9,200) - (744,604)
Trade and other payables (7,630) - - (777,447) - (785,077)
Net financial {liabilities) /

assets (439,183) 13 10 529,772 - 90,610
Less: Net financial

liabilities / (assets)

denominated in the

respective entities'

functional currencies - - - (529,772) - (529,772
Add: Firm commitments

and highly probable

forecast transactions in

foreign currencies 3,837 - - - 143,682 147,619
Currency exposure {435,246) 11 10 - 143,682  (291,543)
(RMB'000 ) SGD uso HKD RMBE Total
At 31 December 2007
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 184,654 12 1,730 502,761 689,157
Trade and other receivables,

excluding amount due from

construction contracts 107 - - 120,075 120,182
Other financial assets 103 - - 25 128
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - (12,000) {12,000}
Trade and other payables (3,8086) - (3) (73,109) (76,918)
Net financial assets 181,058 12 1,727 537,752 720,549
Less: Net financial liabilities / (assets)

deneminated in the respective

entities' functional currencies - - 3 (837,752) (537,749
Currency exposure 181,058 12 1,730 - 182,800
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35, Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk (continued)
(i Currency risk (continued)

The Company's currency exposure based on the information provided to key management is

as follows:

(RMB'000 )

At 31 December 2008

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Net financial {liabilities) / assets

Less: Net financial liabilities / (assets) denominated in
the respective entities' functional currencies
Add: Firm commitments and highly probable forecast

transactions in joreign currencies
Currency exposure

{RMB’000 )

At 31 December 2007
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Financial Liabitities

Trade and other payables
Net financial assets

Less: Net financial liabilities / (assets) denominated in

the respective entities' functional currencies
Gurrency exposure

SGD RMB HKD Total
133,809 - 8 133817
3,650 282,162 - 285812
132,392 - - 132,392
(735.404) - - (735,404)
(7,630) (4,793) - (12,423
(473,183) 277,369 8  (195,808)
- (277,369) - (277.369)

3,937 - - 3,937
{460,246) - 8 (469,238)

SGD RMB HKD Total
183,975 - 1,728 185,703
11,407 50,000 - 61407
103 - - 103
(8,601) - - (8601)
186,884 50,000 1728 238,612
- (50,000) - (50,000)
186,884 - 1728 188,612
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35. Finaneial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

@

(i)

Currency risk (confinued)

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the
SGD and JPY exchange rates against the RMB on the Group’s and the Company’s profit
after tax. This analysis assumes that all other variables, including interest rates and income
tax rates, remain constant.

Increase / (Decrease}
Profit after tax
2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000

Group

SGD against RMB

- strengthened 6% (2007: 2%) (25,000) 3,600
- weakened 6% (2007: 2%) 25,000 {3,600)
JPY against RMB

- strengthened 8% (2007: NiL) 11,485 -
- weakened 8% (2007: NIL) {11,495) -
Company

SGD against RMB

- strengthened 8% {(2007. 2%) (27,000) 3,700
- weakened 5% (2007: 2%) 27,000 (3,700)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk
that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Group's and the Company's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises primarily
from short-term bank loans.

In addition, the Group and the Company are exposed to fair value interest rate risk on the
liability compenent of the Convertible Bonds. Please refer to Note 28 for the terms of the
Convertible Bonds.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is managed on an on-going basis with the
primary cbjective of limiting the extent to which net interest expense could be impacted from
an adverse movement in interest rates.
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35, Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

At the balance sheet date, if interest rates have been 100 basis points higher or lower, with
all other variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax would have been:

- RMB 82,000 lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank loans.

- RMB 23,384,000 higher and RMB 22,274,000 lower, arising mainly as a result of higher
and lower market interest rate respeclively in arriving at the fair vaiue of the liability
component of Convertible Bonds,

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Group's price risk mainly arises from its equity swap derivative and embedded
derivatives in the convertible bonds. The fair value of the these derivative financial
instruments at each reporting date is determined on a market basis using Company's
shares arithmetic average of 90 days volume weighted average share price and the
binomial model respectively. The fair value of the derivative financial instruments would
fluctuate depending on the movement in the Company’s shares market price, and hence,
will have an impact to the Group’s and the Company's profitability.

The exposure on the price risk is not hedged. However, management monitors the
exposure on a periodical basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure at an
acceptable level.

Sensitivity analysis for price risk

At balance sheet date, if there is a change in the volatility of the Company's share price or
the Company’s share price (with all other parameter vaiues remaining constant), the impact
to profit after tax would be as follows:

increase /
{Decrease)
Profit after tax
2008
RMB’'000
Group and Company
Volatility of share price
- increase by 10% 3,742
- decrease by 10% (4,709)
Share price
- increase by 20% 23,513
- decrease by 20% {25,837}

53

B-55



APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOI.OGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

35. Financial risk management (continued)

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual cbligations resutting in
financial loss to the Group.

For trade receivables, there is no significant concentration of credit risk due to the Group's large
number of customers. The Group adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of appropriate credit
history, and obtaining sufficient security where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. For other financial
assets, the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with good credit quality counterparties.

Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted by credit limits that are approved by the
management based on ongoing credit evaluation. The counterparty’'s payment profile and credit
exposure are continuously monitored at the entity level and at the Group level by the management.
Where appropriate, the Group obtains advance payments from its major customers.

As the Group and Company does not hold any material colfateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk
for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments
presented on the balance sheet.

The Group's and Company’s major classes of financial assets are bank depasits; trade receivables and
equity swap derivative (Note 21). All trade receivables of the Group are due from third parties and
receivable in the PRC,

() inancial assets that are neither past due norimpaired

Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with good
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired are substantially companies with a good collection track record
with the Group. The Group's trade receivables not past due include receivables amounting to
RME 57,081,000 (2007: RMB 45,341,000} that would have been past due or impaired if the
terms were not re-negotiated during the financial year ended 31 December 2008. The Equity
Swap Counterparty is one of the reputable banks in the world.

(i) Financial assefts that are past due and/or impaired

There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade
receivables. The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB’000
Past due 0 to 2 months 11,817 9,473
Past due 2 to 5 months 10,880 5,182
Past due over 5 months 5,825 5,723
28,622 20,378

In the financial year ended 31 December 2008, RMB 1,210,000 (2007 Nil) of the trade
receivables and RMB 429,000 (2007: Nil) of retentions were determined to be impaired.
Movement of the allowance for impairment are as follows:

Group
2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000
Beginning cf financial year - -
Allowance for doubtful debts 1,639 -
End of financial year 1,632 -
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35. Financial risk management (continued)
© Liguidity risk

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows,

Less than Between Between
1 year 1andZ2years 2and5 years
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Group
At 31 December 2008
Trade and other payables 118,435 - -
Borrowings 9,200 - -
Convertible bonds - 735,404 -
127,635 735,404 -

At 31 December 2007
Trade and other payables 76,918 - -
Borrowings 11,000 - 1,000

87,918 - 1,000
Company
At 31 December 2008
Trade and other payables 12,423 - -
Convertible bonds - 735,404 -

12,423 735,404 -
At 31 December 2007
Trade and other payables 8,601 - -

The Group and Company manage the Hquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash to enable them to
meet their normal operating commitments.

{d) Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capitat are to safeguard the Group's ability fo continue as a
going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. In
order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend
paymert, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, obtain new
borrowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

In accordance with the regulations for the Implementation of the Law of the PRC on Enterprises
Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital, there is a legal requirement for the appropriation of not less
than 10% of profit after income tax into the reserve fund for the PRC subsidiaries until the
accumulated fund is 50% or more of their respective registered capital, where further transfers will not
be required and subject to directors’ recommendation (Note 31). This extiernally imposed capital
requirement has been complied with by the PRC Subsidiaries for the financial years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007.
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36. Related party fransactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statemenis, the foliowing
transactions took place between the Group and related parties at terms agreed between the pariies:

(a) Key management personnel compensation is as follows:
Group
2008 2007
RMB'300 RMB’000
Wages, salaries and bonuses 7,379 12,797
Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans, including
Central Provident Fund 220 97
Share-based compensation 3,074 -
Directors’ fee 1,112 1,144
11,785 14,038

Included in the above is total compensation to directors of the Company amounting to RMB
5,466,000 (2007: RMB 10,210,000).

[(3)] Mr Sun Jiangrong, the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company own 100%
equity interest in Thumb {China) Holdings Group Lid {“TCH") incorporated in British Virgin Island,
TCH in turn owns 56.29% (2007: 55.08%) equity interest in the issued capital of the Company
excluding ireasury shares as at the balance sheet date. Hence, TCH is the immediate and ultimate
holding Corporation. Mr Sun Jiangrong and TCH are together referred to as the “Controliing
Shareholder” of the Company.
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37. Segment information
industrial Industrial Bust Desulphuri-
waste gas  waste water _elimination sation Unallocated Elimination Group

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RME000 RMB’000
Group
Financial year ended
31 December 2008

Sales

« external sales 327,262 60,580 236,279 151,677 - - 775,788

- inter-saginent sales 295,948 3,443 - - 2,822 - 301,811

623.208 63.723 236,279 151,677 2,822 - 1,077,709
Elimination (304,811)
775,798

Segment result
Other income - - - - 13,114 - 13,114
Other losses — net - - - - (227,352) - (227,352)
Finance expenses - - - - {31,969) - (31,969)
Profit before income tax 136,757 8,268 78,071 16,605 (268,344) - (28,643}
'"C&T:dfgx sxpanse { 887 (1.089) - (3,863) (12,286) - {16,351)
Total profit/ (loss) 137,644 7.17% 78,071 12,742 (280,630} - (44,894)
Other segment jtems
Capital expenditure 45,057 256 8,427 - 15,490 - €9,230
Depreciation 3,088 251 1,221 - 343 - 4,913
Amortisation 1,089 - 2,833 - 728 - 4,350
Segment assets 1,227,918 46,232 310,686 67,858 1,771,514 (1.784,662) 1,638,856
Segment liabilities 502,288 8,473 55,137 3,800 956,042 {646 982) 888,758
Financial year ended

31 December 2007
Sales

- external saies 271,356 12,075 180,411 - - - 463,842

- infer-segment sales 232,112 - 964 - - - 233,076

503,468 12,075 181,375 - - - 696,918
Elimination (233,078}
463,842

Segment result
Other income - - - - 19,511 - 19,511
Other losses — net - - B - {781) - (781)
Finance expenses - - - - {843) - (243)
Profit before income tax 124,333 1,226 68,698 - (12,372) - 171,885
Income tax expense {252) - - - (429) - (881}
Total profit / (loss) 124,081 1,226 58,698 - (12,801) - 171,204
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 65,178 6,858 13,718 - 106 89,860
Depreciation 2,085 256 1,227 - 148 3,718
Amortisation 1,050 - 10,033 - - 11,083
Segment assets 556,313 39.344 273,043 - 367,468 1,236,168
Segment liabilities 18,327 §22 54,124 - 27,780 101,153

At 31 December 2008, the Group mainly operates in the PRC and is organised into the following
main business segments:

. Industrial waste gas treatment, management and recovery;

. Industrial waste water treatment and management;

¢ Dust elimination;

. Desulphurisation of flue gas of independent power plants, in particular coal-fired power
plants
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND |TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

37. Segment information {continued)

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise investment holding, which does not constitute a
separately reporiable segment. A significant amount of the fofal balance under "Other” mainly
relates fair value losses arising from the equity swap derivative and convertible bonds transactions.
These operations do not constitute a separable reportable segment.

Inter-segment transactions are recorded at their transacted price which is generally at fair value.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories,
receivables, operating cash and investment properties and exclude deferred income tax assets and
derivative financial instrument. Segment liabilities comprise payables, provisions and bank overdraft
and exclude income tax liabilities, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.  Capital
expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including
those acquired through business combinations,

No segmental analysis by geographical segment is provided as the business of the Group mainly
operates in PRC.

38. Events occurring after balance sheet date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and as reported in the announcements of the Company on
SGXNET on 5 March 2009, 6 March 2009, 12 March 2009 and 17 March 2009, the Company’s
Controlling Shareholder (Note 36(b)) may be faced with a forced sale of part of or all of the
190,788,000 ordinary shares (56.29%) in the capital of the Company (the “Possible Sale”) arising
from the default of certain financial obligations by the Controfling Shareholder. The Possible Saie
may result in change of control of shareholder in the Company. This change in contro! would give the
Bondholders the right to request for immediate conversion and/or redemption on the outstanding
55148, 000,000 bonds {(Note 27 and Note 28) existing at balance sheet date. The Company may not
be able to make payments for such unscheduled redemption by the Bondholders, if called upon fo do
so. Accordingly, the Board of Direciors have appointed an independent financial advisor to the
Company to carry out a review of the implications of the matter and advise appropriate measures to
be adopted by the Group to safeguard its assets, continue its operations smoothly and enhance
value to all its stakehclders.

These factors cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company and the Group to continue as
going concerns. Hence, the validity of the going concern assumption on which the accompanying
financial statements of the Company and of the Group are prepared depends on the favourable
resolution with the Bondholders.

in the event that the Company and the Group are unable to arrive at such a favourable resolution,
adjustments would need to be made to reflect the situation that assets would need to be reahlsed
other than in the normal course of business and at the amounts which could differ significantly from
amounts at which they are currently recorded in the balance sheets. In addition, the Company and
the Group may need to accrue for further liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively. No such
adjustments have been made in these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

39. New or revised accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
and are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later
periods and which the Group has not early adopted. The Group’s assessment of the impact of
adopting those standards, amendments and interpretations that are relevant to the Group is set out
below:

(a) FRS 1(R) Presentation of Financial Staferment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009)

The revised standard requires: '

« Al changes in equity arising from transactions with owners in their capacity as owners to be
presented separately from components of comprehensive income;

+ Components of comprehensive income not to be included in statement of changes in equity;

« |tems of income and expenses and components of other comprehensive income to be
presented either in a single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two
separate statements (a separate statement of profit and loss followed by a statement of
comprehensive income);

+ Presentation of restated balances sheet as at the beginning of the comparative period when
entities make restatements ore reclassifications of comparative information.

The revisions also include changes in the titles of some of the financial statements primary
statements.

The Group will apply the revised standard from 1 January 2009 and provide comparative information
that conforms to the requiremenits of the revised standard. The key impact of the application of the
revised standard is the presentation of an additional primary statement, that is, the statement of
comprehensive income.

(b) RS 108 Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

FRS 108 supersedes FRS 14 Segment Reporting and requires the Group to report the financial
performance of its operating segments based on the information used internally by management for
evaluating segment performance and deciding on allocation of resources. Such information may be
different from the information included in the financial statements, and the basis of its preparation
and recongiliation to the amounts recognised in the financial statements shall be disclosed.

The Group will apply FRS 108 from 1 January 2009 and provide comparative information that
conforms to the requirements of FRS 108. The Group does not expect the new operating segments
to be significantly different from business segments currently disclosed and expects more
information to be disclosed under FRS 108,

{© Revised FRS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

The revised standard removes the option to recognise immediately as an expense borrowing cosis
that are atiributable fo qualifying assets, except for those borrowing costs on gualifying assets that
are measured at fair value or inventories that are manufactured or produced in large guantities on a
repetitive basis.

The Group will apply the revised FRS 23 from 1 January 2009. As there have been no borrowing
costs attributable to qualifying assets, the revised standard is not expected to have any impact to the
Group.
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APPENDIX B — QUALIFIED AUDITED CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR FY2008

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2008

40,

41.

Authorisation of financial statements

These financiat statements were autherised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited on 24 March 2009.

Listing of significant companies in the Group

Country of
business ! Effective equity holding by
Name of companies Principal activities incorporation the Group
2008 2007
% %
Significant subsidiaries held by the
Company
Sino-Enviranment Clean Power Investment holding Singapore 100% 100%
Technology Pte. Lid. @
Sino-Envirenment Waste Management Investment holding Singapore 100% 100%
Technology Pte. Ltd, @
Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian) Co., Industrial waste gas treatment, PRC 100% 100%
Ltd, @ management and recovery;
Industrial waste water
treatment and management;
desulphurisation
Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Industrial waste gas treatment, PRC 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. ® management and recovery
Heid by Thumb Env-Tech Group
Fujian) Co., Lid.
Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Industrial waste water treatment PRC 100% 100%
Protection Co., Lig. and management
Chongaing Thumb Environmental Industrial waste gas treatment, PRC 100% 100%
Engineering Co., Ltd. & management and recovery;
Industrial waste water
treatment and management
Held by Sino-Environment Clean Power
Technology Pte. itd.
Fujian Weidong EPT Co., Ltd.® Dust elimination PRC 100% 60%
Chuang-Dong Energgg & Env-Tech Renewable energy engineering PRC 100% -
(Fujian) Co., Ltd. ©
Held by Fujian Weidong EPT Co., Ltd.
Fujian Weidong Envirenmental Dust elimination PRC 100% 80%
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Held by Fuiian Fuda Desai
Environmentai Protection Co., Lid.
Thumb Waste Management Technology  Wasie management PRC 100% 100%
(Nanping) Co., Ltd. ®
(a) Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore
(b} Audited by Pricewaterhousecoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company, for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the consokidated financial statements.

(©) First year of incorporation

Accordingly, the Company has complied with Rule 716 of The Listing Manual issued by the Singapore Exchange

Securities Limited.
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

AFFIDAVIT VERIFYING STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS
UNDER SECTIONS 224(2), 227L(2), 270(2) &
REGULATION 7(7)

N . P
Company Name {;f ne é\/‘“’" Mrnen fg@AMZQf‘{{W"f W

Company No: ;"ﬁ &i@é%&u‘z

! we/(;cimci@”f}k&m of !bgﬁkﬁwr\&f%{’

ﬁ@{""ligp“"/@%qw7hotder of 6Singapore
NRIC/Passport No gO \LII98€E . Being " L Directw _make

_Qa{’ﬁl’affirm and say that the particulars contained in the statement of affairs relating

LT N -
to the abovenamed company dated ... !‘} Yok ;:’L‘ .Y and signed by me/us are

true to the best of my / our knowledge and belief.

{)&f:}§= - /
,Swﬂﬁm/fAfﬁrmeci at. o VT ) (
this 2% “dayof =Pk DO () e

Before me

F Balachandran
T g tuinnaz
A1 Apr 2010 - 31t 20T

* Insert description sufficient to show that the person swearing the affidavit is a person referred
to in Sections 224{2), 227L(2), 270(2) of the Companies Act {Cap 50} or Regulation 7(7} of
the Companies Regulations.

G Deiste where applicable.

C-1



APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

SECTIONS 223(1)(c), 224(2), 2271.(6)

Company Name . Sine - Eovicoameat ,.?ﬁ{f}%?‘iﬁfﬁﬁj,. {Eé’fzsa;;.m@if?i“‘fit:f { Under Eﬁifsw)

Company No: .. . ~o0icb#fez M‘*‘%ﬁemew

Costor | Estmaied

Book ¢ Realisable |
o Vaiyg 7 Yalues
1 ASSETS NOT SPECIFICALLY CHARGED
{a) Real estale as detailed in Schedule At - NG piek
{b} Sundry debtors as detailed in Schedule Bt 6o, F0T,031
{c} Cash in hand S 000
{d) Cash at bank 13, 22,44 ;’ 12, Ypé
{g} Stock as detailed in inventory Nii Nit
{fy Plant and equipment as detailed in
irventory “4%,923 b
{g) Other assets as detaifed in Schedule CT 2%, (o8, 51

L2 ASSETS SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC CHARGES,
LIENS, MORTGAGES, BILLS OF SALE OR ;
HIRE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS as ; Nit #ii
detailed in Schedule D

L.ass amounts owing as detailed in Schedule

TOTAL ASSETS '
292,59, 1i% ;} 142,504

? indizale in raspect of sach enbry whether cost or hook vajus,

+ Wherm this statementi of affairs is made for the purposes of section 298(4){a}
of the Companiss Act, Bchedule A, B, © and U are to show the method
and manner in which the valuation of the assels wers arrived al.
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 1

Company Name © ..‘;f’??i'.,,gﬁsvf%fﬁwma?“..?}{ém 5,;7)4, ,&rw,nw. .55;’?%5‘%f“fiz{.,(ff?*"f"?f* ngé_féﬁfj

CompanyMo: . 2eciebif0 £ MM%EMZML
Statement of Assets and Liabiiities as at . /3 ,.f‘ff?).y T
Costor Estimated
Book Realisabie
Vaiue ? Values
TOTAL ESTIMATED REALISABLE ASSETS
292,590,183 4o o/,
3  Less PREFERENTIAL CREDITORS ENTITLED TO
PRIORITY OVER THE HOLDERS OF
DEBENTURES UNDER ANY PLOATING CHARGE, g o
as detaied in Schedule £ (hg"éégj‘ G J‘Z,(;gg)
4 Less AMOUNTS OWING AND SECURED BY . )
DEBENTURES OR FLOATING CHARGE OVER P Nit
COMPANY'S ASSETS TO 1
5 Less PREFERENTIAL CREDITORS as detained in
Schedule F C6e3) 1 (6o3)
ESTIMATED AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR
UNSECURED CREDITORS 292,071,852 lféle).ﬁf- o
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 2

Campany Name *?éf?f", T Eviteameat  techaslo 2. r Bup Limided / Wader

Company No: ... . 20eicb¥§p 2 Judicion
H{i ﬁigg mfzﬂ-f-)
Costor Estimated
Bock Realisable
Value 7 Vaiues
ESTIMATED AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR UNSECURED .
CREDITORS 292,0H,852 2,623 2Mvp
& CREDITORS (UNSECURED]) as detailed in Scheduie
G (Amount claimed ( $6p 155, §43, 25%) (15%.8¢4,2 s'r)Gs‘yj §LH, 25% )
7 BALANCES OWING PARTLY SECURED
CREDITORS as detailed in Schedule H
Total claims { N i
Security held { Ni 1 i N i
8 CONTINGENT ASSETS
Estimated io produce nit nNit
As detatled in Schedule | N N
O  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Estimated to rark for
As detailed in Scheduie J
(39,481,638 ) (39, 4%1)638 )
ESTIMATED * DEFICIENCY/SURPLUS
{Subject to costs of *administration/liquidation) Y%, F2,959 ( 192,42%.6 yg)
SHARE CAPITAL .
%>€r B#Z‘{:ff 4 {QXCW(‘!? ‘f‘r’?g;u(j )
lssued  (152,52¢, 95159 ) Shaces 1¥2,526,9¥2
Paid-up (152,52 95159} 152,526,952

* Deiete where applicable
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 3

Company Name | . ,.uéi-ﬂé‘.,.".i,gf‘%‘&{%féﬁﬂ’fﬁﬁf__;?}fgﬁ-&iff wa};}*{-&%?fﬁ (&‘ﬂa’er
Judiciat
Ma ’?iffmmfi}

CompanyNo: .. .. 2telebypp 2

REAL ESTATE: SCHEDULE A (f space is insufficient, please use Continuation
Sheel)

Particytars 1 e

Address and desoription of /
proparty P

Cost Price or Book Value: /
Estimated Realisable Value: /

Vaiuation for rating purposes! ey
Particulars for tenancy: 7

Where possession of deeds -

may be obtained: /

Short Particulars of Tile: /”f

Particulars 2 -

Address and description of e
property

Cost Price or Book Value:

Estimated Realisable Valle: Nt

Valuation for rating purposes!

Particulars of tenancy:

Where possassion of desds 5 //
may be oblained: - //

Short Particulars of Title: /
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 4

. p . s s .
Company Name | L Sing o Eavitenment. lEchncie Y- Nlesp. Limited [/i*’ﬁf“’w

Company No.

L Zoshpb HEp B

T Judiria i

Mﬁngﬁgmgﬁﬁ

SCHEDULE B (If space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet)
SUNDRY DERTORS {INCLUDING LOAN DEBTORE)

Particuiars 1

Name of Daebtor
Addrass of Debtor;
Amount owing:
Amount Realisable:
Deficiency:

Particulars of securily (if any}
held:

Explanation of deficiency:

Sing - Enviconmeat Clean FPower T{?cfina!@fgaf P*@ Ltd,

G Vemaser &m!hfqr'cj, $32-22 Surter Tower 1we,

($) 03%9%9
Slp 24,235,328 20

Particulars 2

Name of Debtor:
Address of Dabtor:
Amount owing,
Amgunt Reaiisabie:
Deficiency.

Particulars of security {fl any)
heid:

Explanation of deficiency:

=:?humé Env- Toch {‘{rgu;} {Fﬂfji;ﬁeﬂ} (o, L+d

&éégéii Todustaal Rpad, Mowe! Distres, z%;{zw Adveaced
T S P I i - . .
55:{ [ féi?émmzfﬁ-zf’i ?}é'v’grggwww ?}ﬁzrk’, f‘azéw ¥ %}if}ﬂ f)fg, Vial#

PR, .. -
SGo 34,193, #13.98 C. 3vepiy

Nil
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CONTINUATION SHEET 4

e - . .
Company Name | 78 ,‘7,‘:&"?.‘&’?3’,&’&*}"58’;(?3@.,.J,chﬁ.éﬁ..fﬁj?éam.{371“51,:};?, é-ﬁf.’f?é.}“fgfﬂg Lnder

Compary No: ... 2ee 106 #80 2

Judiciay
Managemeat )

SCHEDULE B (if space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet;
SUNDRY DEBTORS (INCLUDING LOAN DEBTORS)

Partculars 1

Name of Debtor:
Address of Dabtor
Armount owing.
Amount Realisable:
Deficiancy.

Particuiars of security (f any)
held:

Expianation of deficiency

$teaits Law Practice LLC

L34 Robinton Road , 181 Floor s ity House, ($) 065533

SGo 20,000.00

wrl

Particulars 2

Name of Debtor:
Address of Debtor:
Arnount owing:
Amount Realisable:
Deficlency:

Earticulars of security {fi any)
held:

Explanation of deficiency.

Stamford Low Corjporaﬂan
9 Raffles Place, #32-00 fzef)uél{c Plaza, (£)0%%619

SGo toc,000.00

Nit
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 4

Company Name - “,,5’5‘?,&3‘,,",,gf}ﬁf{e’ﬁﬂf??éf}?.,.?ﬁﬁféﬂéfﬁfywv&fﬁggﬁ CLimite d ( Urde »

CompanyNo ... 2eerobi§p &

}ﬂué{;g,}; i

H&&é}‘ﬁgmgﬂ f)

SCHEDULE B {if space is insufficient, please use Contiruation Sheel
SUNDRY DERTORS (INCLUDING LOAN DEBTORS)

Particulars 1

Name of Debtor:
Address of Debtor
Amount owing:
Amount Realisable:
Deficiency.

Particulars of security (f any)
held:

Explanation of deficiency:

ocix  (apital Limited

| 30 Bukit Batek Cresceot, (5) 65903y
5Gp 8so. £y

Particulars 2

Name of Debtor:
Address of Debtor:
Amount owing:
Armount Realisable:
Deficiency:

Particulars of securily (f any)
held:

Explanation of deficiency:

SP Services Ltd

(1) Maia office : Tripleone Somerset , 1 Somers et
Rocd # of-05,(8) 236164
{22 Na“f'rj address : Orchacd P.o.Box 341,(5) 912312
$6p 1,318 43

ISP
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 4

Company Name - B« Envicpnment u.?%dzrm?%;;ji ,&Cff‘ifimgmféf'_rﬁa?ff',f.af (Qﬁggf

Company Mo .. 2201 0b%ie £ Hudieia

Maﬂ?fmt’ﬂ*}

SCHEDULE B (if space is insufficlent, please use Continuation Sheet;
SUNDRY DERTORS {INCLUDING LOAN DEBTORS)

Particudars 1

Name of Debtor: Toshiba Data Dynamicy Pre Ld

. . )
Addrass of Debtorn i, kaffanj §£C+ox, Pata D/fy“?ﬂﬂ?56§ Bai!é{aj,{igja%‘?}?z}

Arnount owing: GO 1LEY0.493

Amount Reajisable:
Deficiency:

Sarticuiars of security (f any) NE
hsld:

Explanation of deficiancy:

Particulars 2

Name of Debtor; Tricor & aﬂa;&or’f Pre Ltd
Address of Debtor ¥ {recs g%f?ﬁ»;} # Hepp Fwr 8{;5!&5@7 ; {5) OHY T Y
Amount owing: SED 1,902 8% i

Amount Realisable:
Deficiency:

Particutars of security (f any) Wit
hald:

Explanation of deficiency’
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 4

Gampany Name - (.W,.,/(,:'%‘?ﬁ?,.’;..j:;"?“i’%*’?f.hf?’%&f?*ff..w}}ﬁ?%f?%’f?ﬁﬁ,,.i,”f%"!’fﬁyg.%_ Limited (mgfgf

Company No. . dooieb+fed j“t‘[f}r:ia!

Mﬁﬂﬁ;ﬁgmm?)

SCHEDULE B (If space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet)
SUNDRY DEBTORS (INCLUDING LOAN DEBTORS)

Particulars 1

Name of Debtor
Addrass of Dabtor
Armount owing:
Amount Realisable:
Deficiency:

Particulars of security {f any)
held:

Expianation of deficiency:

fan  Tor Wuel
20 Lincoin Road, #21- 05, (8) 308353

$4p 1L, 133 00

ik

Particulars 2

Name of Debtor:
Address of Debtor;
Amount owing:
Amount Realisable;
Deficency.

Particuiars of security {fi any)
held:

Explanation of deficiency

Intand Reveaur ﬁu‘f'fmm“} of 5;'19“190 re
SY Newton Road , Reveoue House, ($) 30F45F
GO Ioy, 428.56




APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 5

" = A . ; f
Company Name . 2170 * Envirgnmpgy Aechnelegy. Geoup, Licnred [ Uade s
CompanyNo: ... 20etob 4¥2 & Judicia
f"{dﬂgﬁgmf‘?ﬁ

SCHEDULE C [ space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet)
OTHER ASSETS (DEPOSITS OR INVESTMENTS)

Description of deposit or investment Cost Amount
Realisable

Ceposits -
&) Sun Veature }—_n\ff_';{a Pre L#d
= 3 mooth Security deposit for office unit £9,2%0. 0
at 4 Temasei Boulevard | #32-02
Suntee Tower Twe, ($) 03§ 984

(2) $P Serviges L#d ;
~ Utitites d’{’f:osif‘ for office wunit ot ,3%0.00 '
9 Temaseke goufev’aré, #32-02 Sunater
Tower Twe, ($) 038459

Sub-totui | F0AFo. 00

Investmants -
Subsidiaries *

() Ging - Cavicenment Clown Power ?%(}"'ﬁéfgj ¥ 50,000,000 00
Pte. Lrd. (iooofe direer ho:d.}y) '

(23 Thumb Eav- Tech Group ( Figian) Cor s 33,030, h8
(looofy dicect ["’{‘i*‘"ﬁ) o

{3:) ﬂjian ﬁumé gnv{{gnmﬁn'!‘af f‘%ci{iﬁ"e‘; 3 gy é-?‘f‘gg
Co., Ltd. E“’P% direct ;?ﬁfc“;fj) -

Sub - totat 147,104, 319 1%
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APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET &
Compary Mame | é’;?ﬁf?,,f_. gfswﬁzéw gt ?gf‘?w;igj .%i%{‘m;z CLamite 4 Uads »
Company No: . 2901ofwgpd

SCHEDULE C {f space is insufficient, piease use Continuation Sheet)

OTHER ASSETS (DEPOSITS OR INVESTMENTS)

Description of deposit or investment Cost Amount
Realisable
Daposits -
Invastments ~
“Transfecable  Clab Membecghips
ONEIY Mariag Club Caq)ofﬁf’e Htméffsh{f .;Y)opg.pg ‘
With 3 nominges

gqg;fgf §uja§
En‘hgrggf inty With Marjan %am‘iyﬁ(ﬂ-

Internaticoal Plc .

&% 358,004 0l

Ma‘t?ﬁjgmgﬂ ‘f’)




APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 8

B e . s - oL fy
Company Name ... %ﬁ*ﬁﬁ..hf?y{i’&ﬁ{?fﬁf,,A.;fﬂ{féf?ﬁiiﬁ}w ,gftéafzmiuﬁf ted / Uede ~

Company No: ... 20010k 4%p & Judca |
; . Me 44?5””6’:??)
SCHEDULE D (if space is insufficient, please use Continuation Shaeat)
ASSETS SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC CHARGES, LIENS, MORTGAGES, BILLS OF
SALE OR HIRE PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Particulars 1

Description of Assset /

Date charge given: : 7
Deascrintion of Charge: /
Holder of Charge:
Terms of Repayment:
Cost or book Vaiue:

Estimated Realisabie Value: /

Araount owing under Charge: A

Particulars 2 /

Description of Agset /

Date charge given: ,//
Description of Charge: 7

Holder of Charge: o
Terms of Repayment: /
Cost or book Value: ‘ p
Estimated Realisable Value: /

Amount owing under Charge: e
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- s e e | . f/
Company Name ).%’fﬁf,.%?’??’f‘fffﬁ mgat. ﬁ‘fi&@fﬁ%@‘fm E‘f’fﬁf?gﬁ,éa mited. e tade
' }-&Cj!'ff’a {

M&{aiﬁgm{,}vf,)

Company No. ... ~%0leg4sp 2

SCHEDULE E (If space is insuffictent, please use Continuation Sheet)
PREFERENTIAL CREDITORS ENTITLED TO PRIORITY OVER THE HOLDERS
OF DEBENTURES UNDER ANY FLOATING CHARGE

Empioyes's name:  Phooi  Bok  Lan
Address: 4§ EwE Boon Road, #13-03, (5) 256345

Wages:
Notice or leave pay
Gratuity or refrenchment benefits
- Otherservice benefits = $6p 12,304 5,

Estimated Liabilifty; 5(79 13,3p% 50

Ernployee’s name:; GW Xiaofen

Address: § Temasere Boevacd, # 22 03 , Suntey

Wages:
Notice or leave pay < SGD §, “Ho. 32
- Gratuity or retrenchment banefits
Other service benefits = S4D 1Y, 277 52

b?;wer Twa, (é) 933'5;5:’9

Estimated Liability: ¢4 p 23,68%. 2%
Employes's name:  nfp, Sock Pea

e Bowtevard | #2102 , §aa%g{ Tower ?wﬁf {5} o3G5y

Wages:
Notice or leave pay = SGp 3,997 ¥4
- Gratuity or retrenchment benefits
Other service benefits - $6p §,0494.3¢

Estimated Liability: <&p 1 ,9¢¢ 97
Empioyee's name!  [,,, wler Leo ol R».yn aut d

Address: 9B Fagir Ris DR% , #0f - 24, (s) Siayfy

Wages:
Notice or leave pay = $G ¥, F1v. 29
Gratuity or retrenchrment benefits
Other service benefits = S0 14,499, 4/

Estimated Liability:  $60 23, Fry 3y
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Comparny Name . Sines Lovicanment | ltch ﬁﬁ.gﬁﬁ‘?{v é’fwge Lhmite d i/ Unde -
Iy w

Compeny No. . . 20e1 0k %Fe £

1

) Judiriai
Ma f:c;g £ men 9
SCHEDULE E (If space Is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet) ’

PREFERENTIAL CREDITORS ENTITLED TO PRIORITY OVER THE HOLDERS
OF DEBENTURES UNDER ANY FLOATING CHARGE

Empioyee’s name: You 5!1{;;? Guan
[

Address: Af?'éf_f industria! Road, Mawe Distact ngiw Advanred &
New fe‘cgmcsfp/fa{f’f Development Varic
Wages: C-R.0. 355y '

- Notice or leave pay . Yy
Gratuity or fe?enchmen% e?ze%ts s Fit. 29
Other gervice benafits

f‘az:"’wu Ci.?‘j, f&/*‘f'ﬁﬂ j"}%*«f;-ﬁ&?,

Estimated Liability: Sto juy, 21y 24
Employee's name: ;am Chon kf“

Address: 1 Baimerat Yaci, #o1- 11, () 259 8,7

Wages:
Notice or leave pay = $GD 300, 000 0o
Gratuity or retrenchment benefits
Other service benefits = £&p 25y 33

Estimated Liabiity:  <cp 3,, a5y 13
Employee’s name:
Address:
Wages:
Notice or leave pay
Gratuity or retrenchment benefits
Cther service benefits
Estimaled Liability:
Employee’s name:
Address:
Wages:
MNotice or leave pay
- Graluity or retrenchment benefits

- Other sarvice banafils

Estimated Liabilily:
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Company Nams 5;%“::} = Eavieopmeat. Zf‘z:f% nek PG {:“f'zw;; Limite 3( Unde

Company No: ... 200106 ¥80# Judicia

- , _— Management )
SCHEDULE F {f space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet) J
PREFERENTIAL CREDITORS (OTHER THAN THOSE DETAILED IN

SCHEDULE E)

! Name: Cf‘ﬁ‘ﬁ?{ ¢ Pff’ ‘-e‘icfgn“f‘ }:i-mcj gﬁargj

AJISSS: COF Buitding ;30 Robinsen Roud, (5) 04193

Description of amount owing: ¢p F Contribuhp £ : M
Staff remuneration +or +he F{{;M{ “F:g,i Tf;jgf}ii; ﬁ;: )53"@; %j uﬁfm;fi
k P B if L EF f
Amount owing. Sgp Ls3 4, 7 ‘
2 Name:
Addrass:

Dascription of amount owing:

Amount owing:
3 Name:
Address;

Description of amount owing:

Amount owing:
4 Name:
Address:

Description of amount owing:

Amount owing:
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Company Name - _ ,ég?",? - Eavirgnmpnt ..}};e:%swf&ﬂj:._,émw: Aimtr {Qi}(jg(

Company No. . *eepfd¥e B Judicia
Ma ”
SCHEDULE G (i space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheetj M/'? eme 39
UNSECURED CREDITORS

e

Mame:  BMI ii}f;?f?r“m@a!; Limited

Address: 5&4;‘!’2’5 H- 1% ; 3"/5: 5;’&{5 Ca ifn'?’f"f I é - ? H&fbﬂuf Roq{:{ 2 wan(‘jaa;;
Hon %’smﬁ
Arvaunt of méz
raount vias 56D 45,300, 00 (HKD 250,000 . 20 )
Arnount admitied:

Reaason for disputed amount (if any)

2 Neme: Deloitte 8 Touche Financial Advisory Services Pte Ltd
Address: & Sheaten Wey #33-0p DBs 8u;ia‘;7 Tower Two, ($)0l8509
Amountdlaimed:  S&p 24, Typ 34
Amount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount {if any):

3 Name: Korda Meathy Pte Ltd

Address: 3, Roéénsgn Road, Robingon ?owef, #!2"*01, (<) LY YL
Amountclaimed” Lo pn 20 ow$ a2

Amount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount (if anyl.

4  Name: Nprfpn Roge Fustralia (Formgrl/g Koapwn as Deacgﬁ;/)
address: (Trogvenor Place, 225 Géarﬁ*e Street, 55&?5/‘1 NSW 2000, Pustralia .
Armount claimed: $Gp 28, 33, 29 (ﬁm) 21,031 .op )

Amournt admifted:

Reason for disputed amount 4f anyl:

C-17



APPENDIX C — STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

CONTINUATION SHEET 9

Company Name L Gino = Ensirenment. .”g;?,éii"’?t{‘,i{jfj.. ,i;iif*w,s Limired {uﬂgfg -
S
Company Mo .. Aesr ol 4¥e L Judicia

) ) ) . . . Moo ﬁjfm £a z‘")
SUHEDULE G (if space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet)

UNSECURED CREDITORS

it

Mama: f}rlfgwa%grfvswgefoo}v ers LLP

Address. § (rogs Strep+ ; # 1+ -oe Pwe Bu 351'[.1/? . [5,) oY E vy
Amountciaimed:  SGp 44y, $03 .53
Armnount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount (if any):

Z2 Neme! Chook Lin 8 Bok LLP
Address: | Robinsen Road , # 18 -00 AIA Tower, {$) 04§ 5yy
Amount claimed: £z 8, Il o
amount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount (if any);

3 Namel Sy j,"q?,o,,
Addrass:  owee 152207, Tone Twe o gmﬁ"g*’-‘s Grardgn B Gruley DiStrict,

Fuzhe o4 City, Fujian Province, P.R.C. 3¥0p02
Arront claimad:

560 45, o0 00 { HKD 2%, 000 .60 )
Amount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount {if any):

4 Name: The Baak of New York Mellon

Address: Ong Temasek Aveaue , ¥ 030 Milienia lower , {2) 039192
Amcunt claimed:  §4p 33, Loxy 2% (Uéé) }'tf,"i‘}rp,aa)
Armount admitted:

Reason for disputed amount (f any):
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Company Name - %110 = Envicgameat T, Pehrafog .. (3’.*72?.‘4;2 Limity ’/ Under
Tudigigt
Company No- . <se/eb4fe & Judca
Maﬁi(ffmfﬁ 'f‘)
SCHEDULE G (If space is insufficiant, please use Continuation Sheet)
UNSECURED CREDITORS

1 Name: A. w. Werldwide gn‘ref;)r”{ﬁe Pte +d
Address: 2 Alp xandrg Read, # 0F —0F Vetta Houge ,(5) Y944
Amount claimed:  SGp ©F, 113,54

Amount agmitted. )
Sqo §%,13. 5}
Reason for disputed amount (f any)

2 Namel Sun \oatbure davesre Pre Ltd
Address: gL Road, #ei-02,(5) 21924,
Amount claimed: 5@ D 37, 139 Fo
Amount admitted: 55—9 323 129 Fv
» .

Reason for disputed amount {if any):

3 Name: OWNE IS Maring O lub
Address: #D£~ ol ; i [ov’g L}ff“/f; gé’ﬂ?"a;a Cﬁ\/e; CS) oq?i}g:}
Amountclaimed: G D 422, [y
Amount admitted;

Reason for disputed amount (if anyy:

4 Name! Boardropm Carpam*f*g 8 Advisory Services Pte Lrd
Address: S0 Ratfles Place , #32-0) ;;nja}pgrg Land %wer,c5)0iiv§*é;3
Amountclaimed:  SGp |, 34q ¢
Amount admitted:  Sgp | JLg. 18

Reason for disputed armount (i any):
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Lo o Eoi T I it 4
Company Name - . 7w = bavireameat. .ff{f;ffwff?gj braoup. Limited [ Unde,
< - I
Company Noo . 2eerelyes £ Sudicia
Mg '
SCHEDULE G (I space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet) ”“7”” "mf)
UNSECURED CREDITORS
Name:  The Road master Cowrier

AOdress Zuy . g %g‘g;? &’gﬁiﬁf ‘s Ave, kf“ay Gﬁfﬁ’? g g””‘;"“’ﬁ (5 30g5as
Amount claimed: 5 6D 43 op - .
Amount admitted.  CGp 43 op

Reason for disputed amount (f any)

2 Name: The Central pg‘pg{,i'f'grj (?‘t‘e} Limited
Address: 2 Sheaten &.faj, #1900 $GX Centre 1, (<) 0L 850y
Amount ciaimed:  $&p vp. o !
Amountadmited: Loy iy, |

Reason for disputed amount {if any).

3 Name:  StarHub L
Address: [,q wbi Averue 1, #ov-, i gfarﬁuﬁ &r“ggn, (5) 4 >
Amountclaimed:  $Gp €y ¢3

Amount admitted: Sz Yov o 3

Reason for disputed amount §f any):

4 Name $6p 144, opo, 000 (oovertibie Bonds Due Joi3 (Bgn;fé,o{@'g{;)
Address:

Amount claimed: S&D IS ¥, G6o, too . 00 | e . .

Amount admitted:  $gp iy 4o
A
e

Reason for disputed amount ( any)

000, oo

C-20
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Company Name . 5“?0 e gﬁf@.é,f?‘?;ﬁﬁ%_ ‘.?f{.é ﬁﬁ.fﬁ%y,, ,,é{ﬁvg ,,iém;ff:’?g// i{ﬂzjfr’
e i G, et
' Judicip

Haﬁgjﬁ Fmea 'f*)

Company No: ... 222106%¢0 7

SCHEDULE H (if space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet)
PARTLY SECURED CREDITORS

Particulars 1

Name: /

- Address. ‘
o

Particutars of security heid: /

Mature of security: i

 Estimated vaiue of security held: S/

Spmert owing o cradifor e
Ammount estimated to rank as /

unsecurag:

Darticaiars 2

Name: ) -
Address: L
Parlicutars of security held: Nil £

Nature of securty
Estimated vaiue of security held: e
Amount owing o creditors: S

Amount estimated o rank as /
unsecured:

C-21
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Company Name © . f”{”"?” gft%{f:fﬁf:ﬁfﬁf‘?f,,.;ﬁ{iga,mﬁwéxwf} Limited ( WHade -

Company No: . Jeeipb HEE E Judicial

. M
SCHEDULE | {If space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheet) o agtmen ?')

CONTINGENT ASSETS

+  Description of Assetl

Gross Asset
Estimated fo produce:

2 Description of Asset, /

Gross Asset gt
Estimated to produce;

3 Description of Asset!

Gross Asset /
Estimated to produce: e

4 Description of Asset: 7/
Gross Asset /
Estimated to produce: /

/
5  Description of Asset ;

Gross Assel
Estimated to produce:

C-22
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CONTINUATION SHEET 13
Company Name © ... Fine - Envgnmger .,?fi%f;afﬁgig,“%‘?gf“ Limite 4 { tinde,
Company Noo . 20810680 F Judicia
M&’f?{} £
SCHEDULE J (If space is insufficient, please use Continuation Sheel) j ment )
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
5 Name .W;%blﬁ;fgg Epy - ngfg gl;f’%'}uf {E:ffsgﬁ) 5‘5}{} ted .
Aglidrass) ?jg‘_ bt “iﬂg“{’?ﬁaf gs&ﬁf; 'f“faw‘éi Distart, Fjian Advanced 8 dew
,%‘féawfﬁgéﬁj i;’é’véfz;fﬁw;y;- ?ﬁ;*ﬁ*; nggw City”, Fuyidim ?fm&ﬁffg PR e 35ppix
Nature of Liabilty. Res+ of wnpaid registered capitat shoyid bg paid off for the
- fg:mz??%"?‘?&e; ot f‘@?;ﬁf’é\"f{z {&}33?’;;»;‘ Gnd {“:\ai‘gr:#m@ﬂ?{ﬁ% %? é:fg\:"é’{'ﬁmgﬁ”é*
Gross Liability Sgp 39,491, 638. 23 (RMBI9%, 338,479 ) requiremgat.
Estimated to rank for: 7, ¢, 4 ?
cured Credity ~
5 Name:
Address:
Nature of Liability:
Gross Liablity:
Estimated to rank for
7 MName:
Address!

Nature of Liabiiity:

Gross Liability
Estimated to rank for

! hereby certify that the particulars contained in the above statement of affairs
are true 1o the best of my knowledge and belief.

Dated this ... ( x.’l.{?'.\.“dayof jh&wﬁ; D’Ofo

Surature

C-23
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LETTER FROM STIRLING COLEMAN CAPITAL LIMITED TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

STIRLING COLEMAN CAPITAL LIMITED

(Company registration no.:200105040N)
4 Shenton Way #07-03
SGX Centre 2
Singapore 068807

10 August 2011

To: The Shareholders of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (under Judicial
Management)

Dear Sirs

PROPOSED SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT (THE “SCHEME”) UNDER SECTION
210 (READ WITH SECTION 227X) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, CHAPTER 50 OF SINGAPORE

Unless otherwise defined or the context otherwise requires, all terms defined in the scheme document
dated 10 August 2011 (the “Scheme Document’) issued by Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited
(under Judicial Management) (“SET” or the “Company”), providing, inter alia, the details of the Scheme
shall have the same meanings herein.

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 Background

The Company was incorporated in Singapore under the Companies Act on 2 October 2001. It was
admitted to the Official List of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”)
SGX-ST on 28 April 2006. Its subsidiaries are:

(@)

Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd (Singapore)(in liquidation);
Sino-Environment Waste Management Technology Pte Ltd (Singapore)(struck off);
China Energy Environment (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong)(deregistered);

Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co., Ltd (PRC);

Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian) Co., Ltd (PRC);

Fujian Weidong EPT Co., Ltd (PRC);

Fujian Weidong Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (PRC);

Chuang-Dong Energy & Env-Tech (Fujian) Co., Ltd (PRC);

Thumb Waste Management Technology (Nanping) Co., Ltd (PRC);

Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Protection Co., Ltd (PRC);

Xining Aiyuan Landfill Gas Co., Ltd (PRC); and

@ STIRLING COLEMAN
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) Chongqing Thumb Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (PRC)
(the “Subsidiaries”).

The Company and its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) principally carried on business as an
environmental protection and waste recovery solutions specialist in the PRC. The Group’s business
is split into the following main segments: (i) industrial waste gas treatment, management and
recovery of volatile organic compounds, in particular toluene; (ii) dust elimination; (iii) industrial
waste gas treatment and management of sulphur dioxide and oxidised forms of nitrogen for
independent power plants, in particular coal-fired power plants; and (iv) industrial and municipal
waste water treatment and management.

The Company was placed under judicial management on 4 June 2010 under an order of Court
whereby Mr Seshadri Rajagopalan and Ms. Ee Meng Yen Angela of Ernst & Young LLP were
appointed as the Judicial Managers. As at the date of this letter (the “Letter”), the High Court has
granted an extension of the Judicial Management Order to 1 January 2012.

As at the date of this Letter, the Judicial Managers have stated that they have no control over the
PRC Subsidiaries and the cash in the PRC bank, investments in and receivables from the PRC
Subsidiaries are difficult to realise because of the complicated court and liquidation procedures in
the PRC and the associated time and expense of such procedures. In addition, based on the
Statement of Affairs as at 13 May 2010 submitted by one of the directors of the Company (the
“Statement of Affairs”), the aggregate liabilities far exceed the estimated net realisable value of its
assets.

The SGX-ST had granted an extension of up to 30 September 2011 (the “Trading Resumption
Deadline”) to implement the resumption of trading proposal. The Judicial Managers have advised
that if the Company is unable to complete the implementation of the resumption of trading proposal
and to resume trading by the Trading Resumption Deadline (unless further extension is granted),
the SGX-ST will delist the Company from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

1.2 Events leading up to the Shares being suspended from trading on the SGX-ST and the
Judicial Management Order

On 17 September 2009, a request for trading halt was made by the Company pursuant to the
identification of certain questionable cash transactions and matters by its auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”), during the course of its review of cash transactions for the
three-month period ended 31 March 2009. The identification of certain questionable cash
transactions and matters by PwC was announced on 12 October 2009 and a summary of the
findings of PwC was announced on 4 December 2009. The announcement of 4 December 2009
setting out the summary of PwC’s findings is set out in Appendix H of the Scheme Document.
Prior to the trading halt, the Company’s then Controlling Shareholder and Chairman and CEO of
the Company, Sun Jiangrong, had lost control over the Company after the hedge funds to whom
he had pledged all his shares enforced their security interests over those shares.

On 23 September 2009, the Company requested for its shares to be suspended from trading.

Between 10 November 2009 and 5 January 2010, there were substantial changes to the Board
and management of the Company as set out below:

(a) Mr. Liang Wee Leong Raynauld, the Financial Controller of Sino-Environment Clean Power
Technology Pte Ltd, was summarily dismissed and his employment was terminated by the
Company on 10 November 2009;

STIRLING COLEMAN
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(b) Mr. Sun Jiangrong, the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. You Shengquan, the Acting Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, and Professor Li Shouxin, the Chief
Technical Officer, resigned as Directors with effect from 2 January 2010;

(c) Mr. Sam Chong Keen was appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 5
January 2010;

(d) Mr. In Nany Sing Charlie and Mr. Wong Sek Choon were appointed as independent
Directors with effect from 5 January 2010; and

(e) Mr. Liang Wee Leong Raynauld was subsequently appointed as Head of Finance of the
Group with effect from 6 January 2010.

Following this, the Board took several steps to restore and turn around the Company.

On 23 February 2010, the Company announced that a visit by the Company’s new directors and
bondholders to the Company’s main subsidiary in Fuzhou showed that all the business operations
at the subsidiary had ceased and the equipment were sitting idle.

On 17 March 2010, the Board announced that it visited the Group’s plant in Fuzhou on 8 and 9
March 2010, to discuss the restoration of the Group’s business operations. The key management
led by Deputy GM Mr Tian Yuan pledged their support to help restart business operations in return
for the opportunity to subscribe for 20% or more of new shares.

On 5 May 2010, the Company announced that the proposed subscription of shares by the key
management would not proceed.

The Company was placed under interim judicial management on 13 May 2010 and subsequently in
judicial management on 4 June 2010 by the Judicial Management Order.

1.3 Key events subsequent to the Company being placed under judicial management

On 2 August 2010, the Judicial Managers entered into a non-binding Memorandum of
Understanding with HLM Consulting Company Limited (“HLM”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and representing a consortium of strategic and/or financial investors, in relation to their
interest to acquire a majority stake in the Company by way of subscribing for new ordinary shares
in the capital of the Company. According to the Judicial Managers, the following main factors were
taken into account prior to entering into the Memorandum of Understanding with HLM:

(a) HLM referred AVIC International Kairong Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
(“AVIC Kairong”), to the Judicial Managers as a potential investor; and

(b) HLM was able and willing to assist the Judicial Managers to (1) liaise with, cooperate and
work with all relevant government agencies and regulators to pursue the enforcement of
rules and regulations, and (2) regain control over and recover the Company’s assets in the
PRC.

Please refer to Appendix I for further information on HLM.

Under the non-binding Memorandum of Understanding, the Judicial Managers and HLM had
agreed to cooperate exclusively and work together to regain control over and recover the
Company’s assets in the PRC, comprising mainly the Company’s equity interests in its
Subsidiaries.

STIRLING COLEMAN
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On 21 September 2010, the Judicial Managers received a notification from the Fuzhou
Intermediate People’s Court (“Fuzhou Court”) in the PRC regarding proceedings initiated by the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Thumb Env-Tech Group (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Thumb”) for
unpaid capital. Thumb had obtained a judgement from the Fuzhou Court to freeze the Company’s
PRC bank account containing S$14 million.

Further to the Judicial Managers’ submission to the SGX-ST on 22 September 2010 for an
extension of time to submit a resumption of trading proposal, the SGX-ST had on 1 October 2010
granted the Company up to 30 November 2010 to submit information to the SGX-ST for its
consideration.

On 7 December 2010, the Company announced that the SGX-ST had granted the Company an
extension of up to 30 June 2011 to implement the resumption of trading proposal and resume
trading.

With a view to achieving the aforementioned timeline, the Judicial Managers continued to engage
in negotiations with HLM and the long-stop date under the Memorandum of Understanding was
extended on several occasions, with the last extension being a long-stop date of 15 January 2011
as announced by the Company on 3 January 2011.

On 7 January 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into an implementation
agreement with AVIC Kairong (the “Implementation Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Implementation Agreement, the Company and AVIC Kairong have agreed, inter
alia, that AVIC Kairong shall procure the issuance of the Consideration Shares to the Shareholders
and the Creditors, subject to the compromise and settlement of a portion of the debts owing from
the Company to the Creditors, the listing of AVIC International Investments Limited (“AVIC
Singapore”), a subsidiary of AVIC Kairong, by way of a transfer of the Company’s listing status to
AVIC Singapore and the concurrent delisting and withdrawal of shares of the Company from the
Main Board of the SGX-ST, all of which are to be implemented by way of the Scheme.

On 7 January 2011, the Company also entered into the Asset Recovery Agreement with HLM
whereby the Company appointed HLM to assist it in regaining control and recovery of the
Company’s assets in PRC.

Pursuant to the Asset Recovery Agreement, HLM has agreed to render all assistance to the
Company in connection with the recovery of the Company’s assets in the PRC, including but not
limited to, advising on all possible actions and methods, the formulation of plans and strategies,
and recommending and appointing other third party professionals, consultants and advisors. In
consideration of HLM’s efforts and services to be rendered to the Company, the Company shall
pay to HLM a success fee upon completion of the recovery of the Company’s assets, subject to the
fulfilment by HLM of all its obligations under the Asset Recovery Agreement and the approval of
the Creditors. Completion of the asset recovery shall be deemed to have occurred upon the
completion of the sale of the assets to be recovered, and the receipt of the proceeds of such sale
by the Company from the purchaser(s).

The SGX-ST has granted a further extension to 22 July 2011 and subsequently to 30 September
2011 to implement the resumption of trading proposal.

1.4 Appointment of Stirling Coleman Capital Limited

Stirling Coleman Capital Limited has been appointed by the Company as the Independent
Financial Adviser to advise its Shareholders on the Scheme to Shareholders, further details of
which are detailed in paragraph 3 of the letter (the “Scheme”). This letter sets out, inter alia, our
evaluation and assessment of the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders and our
recommendation thereon, and forms part of the Scheme Document providing, inter alia, the details
of the Scheme.

STIRLING COLEMAN
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2 TERMS OF REFERENCE

We have been appointed by the Company to act as Independent Financial Advisors to the
Shareholders and to advise the Shareholders on the Scheme to Shareholders. We have confined
our evaluation to the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders and our terms of reference do
not require us to evaluate or comment on the strategic merits, long term or otherwise, and/or the
commercial risks and/or commercial merits (if any) of the Scheme to Shareholders or the listing
status or future prospects of the Company or the Group and of AVIC Singapore or AVIC Singapore
and its subsidiaries (the “AVIC Singapore Group”) or of the industry in which the Company or the
Group and AVIC Singapore or the AVIC Singapore Group operates, and we have not made such
evaluation or comment. However, we may draw upon the views of the Judicial Managers or make
such comments in respect thereof (to the extent deemed necessary or appropriate by us) in
arriving at our opinion as set out in this Letter.

We were not privy to the negotiations in relation to the Scheme being proposed to Shareholders,
including, inter alia, the Share Exchange Ratio and the Agreed Apportionment of the Share
Distribution between the Shareholders and the Creditors as set out under the Scheme. We were
also not involved in the deliberations leading up to the decision by the Judicial Managers to put
forth the Scheme to Shareholders. We have not been requested to, and we do not express any
opinion on the relative merits of the Scheme to Shareholders as compared to any other alternative
proposals or transactions previously considered by the Company or that may otherwise be
available to the Company in the future. We have not been instructed or authorised to solicit, and
we have not solicited, any indications of interest from any third party with respect to the Scheme.

In evaluating the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders, we have held discussions with the
Judicial Managers in connection with the Scheme to Shareholders. We would like to highlight that
all material information relating to the Company or the Group and AVIC Singapore or the AVIC
Singapore Group that we have relied on in arriving at our opinion in this Letter has been obtained
from published or otherwise publicly available sources and/or from information provided and
representations made by the Judicial Managers in the Scheme Document, and by the directors
and/or management of AVIC Singapore in the Information Memorandum. We have not
independently verified such information or representations made by them and therefore cannot and
do not make any representation or warranty, expressed or implied, in respect of, and do not accept
any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of such information or
representations. In particular, we have not conducted a comprehensive review of the business
operations and financial condition of the Company or the Group and AVIC Singapore or the AVIC
Singapore Group, nor have we independently assessed whether or not such information
represents a true and fair position of the financial, operating and business affairs of the Company
or the Group and AVIC Singapore or the AVIC Singapore Group at any time or as at the Latest
Practicable Date, being 3 August 2011. However, we have made such enquiries and exercised our
judgment, as we deemed necessary and have found no reason to doubt the reliability of such
information and representations made to us.

The Judicial Managers have in the Scheme Document confirmed that, having made all reasonable
enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the statements and opinions expressed in
the Scheme Document (other than this Letter, and any information relating to the AVIC Singapore
Group, including but not limited to information contained in the Information Memorandum)
constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the Scheme, the Company and its
Subsidiaries, and the Judicial Managers are not aware of any material facts the omission of which
would make any statement in the Scheme Document misleading and they jointly and severally
accept responsibility accordingly. The Judicial Managers do not have management control of and
have not managed the AVIC Singapore Group and have no direct or indirect involvement in the
affairs of the AVIC Singapore Group. Where information relating to the AVIC Singapore Group has
been extracted from the accompanying Information Memorandum or from published or otherwise
publicly available sources or is otherwise based on information obtained from AVIC Singapore or
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other relevant persons, the sole responsibility of the Judicial Managers has been to ensure that
such information has been accurately and correctly extracted from these sources or, as the case
may be, reflected or reproduced in the Scheme Document. The Judicial Managers have not
undertaken any independent verification of such information. We have also made reasonable
enquiries and used our judgement in assessing such information and have found no reason to
doubt the reliability of such information. Accordingly, no representation or warranty, expressed or
implied, is made and no responsibility is accepted by us concerning the accuracy, completeness or
adequacy of such information. Whilst care has been exercised by us in reviewing the information,
representations and statements in the Scheme Document and the Information Memorandum which
we have relied on, we have not independently verified the information, representations and
statements but have nevertheless made such inquiry and judgement as we deemed necessary
and have found no reason to doubt the reliability of the information, representations and
statements.

In evaluating the financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders and in arriving at our opinion
thereon, we have not relied upon any financial projections or forecasts in respect of the Company
or the Group or AVIC Singapore or the AVIC Singapore Group. We are not required to express and
we do not express any view on the future growth prospects, financial position and earnings
potential of the Company or the Group or AVIC Singapore or the AVIC Singapore Group in
connection with our opinion herein. Accordingly, we are not expressing any view herein as to the
prices at which the Shares (if the Shares are not suspended) or the AVIC Shares (upon admission
to the Official List of the SGX-ST and the successful completion of the Compliance Placement)
may trade in the absence of the Scheme or if the Scheme is not effected or upon the
implementation of the Scheme.

We have not made any independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets and liabilities of the
Company or the Group or AVIC Singapore or the AVIC Singapore Group (including without
limitation, property, plant and equipment) and we have not been furnished with any such evaluation
or appraisal.

Our opinion as set out in this Letter is based upon market, economic, political, industry, monetary,
regulatory and other conditions prevailing as at the Latest Practicable Date and the information
provided and representations made available to us in the Scheme Document and the Information
Memorandum as at the Latest Practicable Date. Such conditions may change significantly over a
relatively short period of time. We assume no responsibility to update, revise or reaffirm our opinion
in light of any subsequent development after the Latest Practicable Date that may affect our
opinion contained herein. Shareholders should take note of any announcements relevant to their
consideration of the Scheme, which may be released by the Company, Judicial Managers on
behalf of the Company and/or the directors of AVIC Singapore after the Latest Practicable Date.

In rendering our opinion, we have not considered the number of Shares held (which constitutes
one of the bases for the calculation of Shareholders’ entittements to the Consideration Shares
pursuant to the Scheme) by any individual Shareholder. We have also not considered the specific
investment objectives, financial situation, tax position, risk profiles or unique needs and constraints
of any individual Shareholder. As each Shareholder would have different investment objectives and
profiles, we recommend that any individual Shareholder who may require specific advice in relation
to his investment portfolio or objectives consult his stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant, tax adviser or other professional adviser immediately.

The Judicial Managers have been separately advised by its own professional advisers in the
preparation of the Scheme Document (other than this Letter). We have no role or involvement and
have not provided any advice, financial or otherwise, whatsoever in the preparation, review and
verification of the Scheme Document (other than this Letter). Accordingly we take no responsibility
for and express no views, express or implied, on the contents of the Scheme Document (other than
this Letter).
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Our recommendation in relation to the Scheme should be considered in the context of the
entirety of this Letter and the Scheme Document.

3 THE SCHEME

The terms of the Scheme are set out in Section 3 of the Letter from the Judicial Managers to the
Shareholders and the Creditors of the Company (the “Letter from the Judicial Managers”),
Section 3 of the Explanatory Statement and Appendix E of the Scheme Document. We
recommend that the Shareholders read these sections of the Scheme Document carefully.

A summary of the key terms of the Scheme is set out below.

3.1  Share Distribution, transfer of Shares and debt settlement

Pursuant to the Scheme, AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue to the
Scheme Administrators, on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to distribute on the
Vesting Date to the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme, such number of Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price) at the aggregate sum of S$6,000,000 free from all Encumbrances.

The Share Distribution shall be apportioned as follows:

(i) Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at the
aggregate sum of S$680,000 to be distributed to the Shareholders; and

(i) Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at the
aggregate sum of $$5,320,000 to be distributed to the Creditors with Approved Scheme
Claims.

The Shareholders and the Creditors will be entitled to such number of Consideration Shares,
subject at all times to the Agreed Apportionment, determined based on the formula as follows:

S$6 million
Number of Consideration Shares =

Compliance Placement Price

For the purpose of the Scheme illustration, the Compliance Placement Price is assumed to be
S$$0.50 (the “Projected Compliance Placement Price”) and accordingly, the preliminary number
of Consideration Shares will be 12,000,000.

The final total number of Consideration Shares, subject at all times to the Agreed Apportionment,
will be determined based on the Actual Compliance Placement Price. For illustrative purposes only,
please refer to Section 3.2 of this Letter for details of the adjustment to the preliminary number of
Consideration Shares.

3.2 Adjustment to the Consideration Shares

For illustrative purposes only, where the Actual Compliance Placement Price is less than the
Projected Compliance Placement Price, AVIC Kairong shall transfer to the Scheme Administrators
at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Vesting Date, to hold on trust for and to distribute on
the Vesting Date to the Shareholders and the Creditors, such number of additional shares in AVIC
Singapore (the “Additional Consideration Shares”), free from any Encumbrance in the Agreed
Apportionment, determined as follows:

Shortfall Amount
Number of Additional

Consideration Shares Actual Compliance Placement Price
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Where the “Shortfall Amount” is the difference between (1) S$6 million and (2) the Actual Value of
the Consideration Shares. The “Actual Value of the Consideration Shares” will be determined by
multiplying the Actual Compliance Placement Price by the preliminary number of Consideration
Shares allotted and issued pursuant to Section 3.1 above.

Where the Actual Compliance Placement Price is more than the Projected Compliance Placement
Price, the Scheme Administrators shall transfer back to AVIC Kairong on or before the Vesting
Date, such number of Consideration Shares, free from any Encumbrance, being the difference
between (1) 12,000,000 and (2) the number of Consideration Shares determined based on the
formula set out above in Section 3.1.

3.3 The Scheme Proposed to all Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the following shall be effected:

(i) AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue to the Scheme
Administrators on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to distribute on the
Vesting Date to the Shareholders Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price) at the aggregate sum of S$680,000, free from any
Encumbrance;

(i) in consideration for the Shareholders’ proportionate entitlement to the Consideration
Shares, the Shareholders agree that they will cease to be shareholders of the Company
and all of their Shares shall be transferred to the Judicial Managers who shall receive full
legal title to the Shares, fully paid, free from any Encumbrance and who shall continue to
hold the beneficial title to the Shares for and on behalf of the Shareholders; and

(iii) in consideration for the Shareholders’ proportionate entitlement to the Consideration
Shares, the Shareholders agree that on or shortly after the Transfer Date, all of their
Shares shall be withdrawn from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

The entitlements of the Shareholders to the Consideration Shares shall be determined on the
basis of the number of Shares standing to the credit of the respective Securities Account (in the
case of Depositors) or their holdings of Shares appearing in the register of members of the
Company (in the case of Shareholders who are not Depositors) on the Books Closure Date,
fractional share entitlements are to be disregarded and retained by the Scheme Administrators
(and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators or their nominee) for the benefit of the Company.
Shareholders should note Paragraph 5 of Appendix E of the Scheme Document for details of the
action to be taken by them in relation to their entitlements.

It is envisaged that the AVIC Shares will be traded on the SGX-ST in board lots of 1,000 AVIC
Shares. Following the Share Distribution, the Securities Accounts of Shareholders and Creditors
with Approved Scheme Claims may be credited with odd lots of AVIC Shares (i.e. other than board
lots of 1,000 AVIC Shares).

3.4 Share Exchange Ratio

Based on the Projected Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50, the Shareholders will be entitled
to 1,360,000 Consideration Shares. For illustrative purposes only, the Share Exchange Ratio,
assuming there is no further adjustment to the Consideration Shares, will be approximately one
Consideration Share for every 250 Shares held by or standing to the credit of the Securities
Account of each Shareholder, fractional share entitlements to be disregarded. The Share
Exchange Ratio is subject to the final number of Consideration Shares to be issued based on the
Actual Compliance Placement Price.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

The Scheme proposed to all Creditors

The Scheme is also proposed to all Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims. They will receive a
proportionate number of Consideration Shares with aggregate value of $$5,320,000 (calculated by
reference to the Compliance Placement Price) and in consideration, the Company shall be
completely and absolutely released and discharged from debt to the aggregate value of the
Consideration Shares received by each Creditor under the Scheme in satisfaction of that Creditor’s
Approved Scheme Claim. They remain creditors of the Company for the balance of their Approved
Scheme Claims. Further details of the terms of the Scheme proposed to the Creditors are set out
in Paragraph 6 of Appendix E of the Scheme Document.

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore Undertaking

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore have agreed to appear by counsel at the Court hearing of the
application to sanction the Scheme and to consent thereto, and to undertake to the Court to be
bound thereby and to execute and do and procure to be executed and done all such documents,
acts and things as may reasonably be necessary to be executed and done by them for the purpose
of giving effect to the Scheme.

Delisting

The Company is listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST. If the Scheme becomes effective and
binding, on or shortly after the Transfer Date, the Judicial Managers will hold all the Shares in the
Company and (subject to the approval of the SGX-ST) the Shares will be delisted and withdrawn
from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

Judicial Managers’ Fees and Expenses

The Judicial Managers and their solicitors shall be entitled to such remuneration, fees and
disbursements for their performance of their duties and services for taking any action that they are
requested, authorised, or empowered to take under or in respect of the Scheme as may be
approved (i) by a meeting of the Company’s creditors summoned under Part V of the Companies
Regulations; or (ii) by Court.

Conditions Precedent

The implementation of the Scheme is subject, inter alia, to the following conditions precedent being
satisfied or waived (as the case may be):-

(i) The approval of the Scheme by the Shareholders and the Creditors in compliance with the
requirements of Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act;

(ii) The grant of the Order of Court pursuant to Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the
Companies Act, and such Scheme Court Order having become effective;

(iii) No injunction or other order being issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other
legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Scheme or the
transactions proposed herein or any part thereof;

(iv) Obtaining all necessary consents, approvals, waivers, exemptions or other acts from any
foreign or Singaporean government or governmental, semi-governmental, administrative,
regulatory, fiscal or judicial agency, authority, body, commission, department, exchange,
tribunal or entity (including without limitation, the SGX-ST, the SIC and the Monetary
Authority of Singapore) as reasonably required to implement the Scheme and at the
consummation, execution and completion of the Implementation Agreement, such consents
and approvals having been duly authorised or obtained or otherwise completed and being
in full force and effect on the Scheme Effective Date;
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(v) Written confirmation by AVIC Kairong and/or AVIC Singapore to the Company that
completion of any restructuring exercise is in accordance with and as described in the
listing application submitted by AVIC Kairong; and

(vi) Receipt of Eligibility to List (‘ETL”) for the admission and listing and quotation of the shares
of AVIC Singapore on the Main Board of the SGX-ST on or before 30 June 2011 and such
ETL not having been revoked or withdrawn, and all conditions to such ETL (save in respect
of shareholding spread) being satisfied.
3.10 Treasury Shares
For the avoidance of doubt, shares that are held by the Company that are in Treasury shall have
no rights attached to them under the Scheme.
3.11 Shareholding Structure

The resulting shareholding structure if the Scheme becomes effective is as follows:

Judicial Managers Creditors with Approved Shareholders AVIC Others®
Scheme Claims (" Kairong

The Company AVIC Singapore

Notes:

(1)  Exclude Small Creditors.

(2)  Persons subscribing for and allotted and issued AVIC Shares under the Compliance Placement.

4 EVALUATION OF THE SCHEME TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims will each receive Consideration
Shares in accordance with Sections 3.1 and 3.2 of this Letter.

In our analysis of the financial terms of the Scheme to the Shareholders, we note that for the
Consideration Shares valued at S$6,000,000 when calculated by reference to the Projected
Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50, the Shareholders and the Creditors are entitled to
approximately 5.9% of the issued share capital of AVIC Singapore immediately before the
Compliance Placement. Accordingly, the implied valuation of AVIC Kairong’s equity stake of 94.1%
in AVIC Singapore will amount to approximately S$110,000,000, equivalent to S$0.50 per AVIC
Singapore Share (the “AVIC Share Transfer Price”). It should be noted that under the
Implementation Agreement, there is a provision for adjustment to the number of Consideration
Shares in the event that the Actual Compliance Placement Price differs from the Projected
Compliance Placement Price. In such an event, the proportionate shareholding of AVIC Kairong
and the Shareholders/Creditors in AVIC Singapore will be subject to change.
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Methodology

In the course of our evaluation of the Scheme to Shareholders, we have taken into consideration
the following pertinent factors:

Rationale for the Scheme;

Alternatives to the Scheme;

Liquidation value of the Company;

Reasonableness of the Share Exchange Ratio;

Evaluation of the AVIC Singapore Group;

Valuation ratios of AVIC Singapore implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price against those
of comparable companies;

Comparison with selected comparable transactions;

Financial effects of the Scheme; and

Other relevant considerations in relation to the Scheme.

4.1 Rationale for the Scheme

The rationale for the Scheme is set out in Section 2.1 of the Explanatory Statement and is
reproduced below. We recommend that the Shareholders read this section in conjunction with the
Scheme Document and the Explanatory Statement carefully.

“2.1

Rationale for the Scheme

2.1.1 The Company is currently under judicial management. Being an investment holding
company, the Company’s assets are essentially its investments in its Subsidiaries in
the PRC. Based on the Statement of Affairs as at 13 May 2010 (see Appendix C),
the assets of the Company consist primarily of:

Cost / Book Estimated
Description Value Realisable Value
S$ S$
Cash maintained with a bank in Singapore 3,142,506 3,142,506
Cash maintained with a bank in China 14,087,143 @
Investments in Subsidiaries® 147,104,719 @
Amount owing to Company from Subsidiaries” 60,459,046 @
Amounts due from Morgan Stanley & Co
International PLC® 67,358,026 @

Notes:

(1) The amount taken over by the JMs as at 13 May 2010 is $3,035,652. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, this amount is S$1,881,754.22.

(2)  The Directors are unable to provide a realizable value for these assets.

(8)  The Subsidiaries are Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd, Thumb Env-Tech Group
(Fujian) Co., Ltd and Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co., Ltd.

(4)  The Subsidiaries are Sino-Environment Clean Power Technology Pte Ltd and Thumb Env-Tech
Group (Fujian) Co., Ltd.

(5) These amounts are due from Morgan Stanley & Co International PLC pursuant to the Swap
Agreement (as defined below in paragraph 2.1.2(ii)).

@ STIRLING COLEMAN

R R



APPENDIX D — LETTER FROM STIRLING COLEMAN CAPITAL LIMITED

2.1.2 Realisable assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The only assets of the Company that are realisable in the short term are its
listing status on the Official List of the SGX-ST and cash maintained with a
bank in Singapore. The cash in the PRC bank, investments in and receivables
from the Subsidiaries are difficult to realise because of the complicated Court
and liquidation procedures in the PRC and the associated time and expense
of such procedures. The control of the PRC Subsidiaries and their assets,
including cash in the bank accounts in the name of the PRC Subsidiaries, are
with the legal representatives of those Subsidiaries. The Judicial Managers
have, since their appointment, taken active steps to replace the legal
representatives. The steps have been complicated and time-consuming, and
are continuing. The Judicial Managers understand that there may continue to
be practical difficulties with the actual control of the Subsidiaries and their
assets even after a successful replacement of legal representatives. In the
event if we are able to recover the cash in the PRC bank, as well as the
investments in and receivables from the Subsidiaries, the Company will only
be entitled to 85% and 49% respectively of the net proceeds recovered under
the Asset Recovery Agreement entered into with HLM. Accordingly, it has
been separately agreed with HLM that a 15% success fee is payable to it for
the repatriation of the cash in the PRC bank, which shall be payable out of the
net proceeds recovered in respect of such cash, and HLM will receive 51% of
the net proceeds recovered in respect of the investments in and receivables
from the Subsidiaries as the success fee related thereto. The Judicial
Managers’ and their lawyers’ fees and expenses shall be paid out of the net
proceeds received by the Judicial Managers. The quantum of such fees and
expenses will depend upon the duties and services to be performed in respect
of the recovery of the assets and be subject to the approval of the Creditors.

On or about 3 June 2008, the Company entered into the Swap Agreement.
The Swap Agreement evidenced a swap transaction for Shares for a value of
S5$67,358,026 .The Swap Agreement was entered into to facilitate the issue of
the Convertible Bonds, by allowing investors in the Convertible Bonds to
hedge their exposure to the Shares arising from their investment in the
Convertible Bonds. The equity swap was intended to provide the Company
with economic exposure to the fluctuation in the value of 36,856,000 notional
Shares, and during the life of the equity swap, the Company would receive an
amount equal to any dividends paid on the 36,856,000 notional Shares. Since
the submission of the Statement of Affairs, MSCI has served notice of
termination of the Swap Agreement on the basis of the Company being under
judicial management. The Judicial Managers are advised that the termination
is valid.

The Implementation Agreement and the Scheme are means for the Company
to extract value from the Company’s listing status for the benefit of
Shareholders and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims.

Given that the Shares have been suspended from trading since 23 September
2009 and that the Shareholders are unlikely to realise any value from the
Shares upon a winding up of the Company as the liabilities of the Company
far exceed its assets, and in light of the fact that the Company will be delisted
in any event if the Implementation Agreement fails to complete, the Scheme is
likely to represent the final opportunity for Shareholders to unlock the value of
their investment in the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total of
the proofs of debt (net of Small Creditors) received amounted to
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S58311,545,972. The proofs are subject to review and assessment by the
Judicial Managers (and adjudication by the Court, if any, in the event of any
dispute by Creditors) but it is very likely that the liabilities will far exceed any
recovery of assets.

(v)  In addition, in the event the Company is unable to complete the Scheme, the
Company is likely to be delisted and liquidated. Any returns to the Creditors in
such a situation would be from the Company’s assets in the PRC, if any and if
recoverable.

(vi)  The Scheme offers a potential recovery for the Shareholders and Creditors
with Approved Scheme Claims.

2.1.3 The total amount of liabilities of the Company as at 13 May 2010 amounts to
5$195,868,160, of which approximately S$154.96 million is due to the holders of the
Convertible Bonds.

Shareholders

In consideration of the surrender of their Shares, the Shareholders will receive a pro rata
number of AVIC Shares to a total value of S$680,000.00. The value of the AVIC Shares will
be calculated by reference to the Compliance Placement Price. Based on a projected
Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50, the Shareholders will receive an aggregate of
1,360,000 AVIC Shares, amounting to 0.59% of a total of 232,000,000 AVIC Shares in the
capital of AVIC Singapore prior to the completion of the Compliance Placement. The AVIC
Shares will be listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST and freely tradable. In the event
that the Company is liquidated, it is unlikely that there will be any residual value available
for distribution to the Shareholders after payment to the creditors of the Company. As such,
the Scheme, offers a potential recovery for, and better return to the Shareholders.

Creditors

Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims will receive a pro rata number of AVIC Shares up
to a value of $$5,320,000.00 in consideration for the pro rata cancellation of their Approved
Scheme Claims to such total value. The value of the AVIC Shares will be calculated by
reference to the Compliance Placement Price. Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims
remain creditors of the Company for the balance of their Approved Scheme Claims.”

We have reviewed the rationale for the Scheme and wish to highlight the following points in support
of the Scheme:

U

(ii)

We note that the Company is currently under judicial management and, based on our
discussion with the Judicial Managers and in the light of the developments concerning the
Company including but not limited to the findings of PwC and the Statement of Affairs, any
assets recovered would not have been sufficient to settle the outstanding debt of the
Creditors and as such Shareholders are unlikely to derive any value from the Company’s
assets and investments. Please refer to Section 4.3 of this Letter for more details.

The only assets of the Company that are realisable in the short term are its listing status
on the Official List of the SGX-ST and cash maintained with a bank in Singapore
amounting to $$3,142,506 as at 13 May 2010. As at the Latest Practicable Date, this
amount is S$1,881,754.22.
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(iii) Given that the Shares have been suspended from trading since 23 September 2009 and
that the Shareholders are unlikely to realise any value from the Shares upon a winding-up
of the Company as the aggregate liabilities far exceed the net estimated realisable value of
the assets of the Company, and in light of the fact that the Company will be delisted in any
event if the Implementation Agreement fails to complete, the Scheme is likely to represent
the final opportunity for Shareholders to unlock some value of their investment in the
Company.

(iv) The Scheme therefore offers partial potential recovery for the Shareholders, especially
when viewed in the light of the AVIC Singapore Group’s business operations and
prospects.

4.2 Alternatives to the Scheme

Prior to the appointment of the Judicial Managers, and as announced by the Company on 17
March 2010, the key management led by Deputy GM Mr Tian Yuan pledged their support to help
restart the business operations in return for the opportunity to subscribe for 20% or more of new
shares in the Company. However, on 5 May 2010, the Company announced that the subscription
by the key management would no longer proceed.

We understand from the Judicial Managers that after their appointment on 4 June 2010, they have
actively sought potential investors who were interested in investing in the Company and/or the
Group. They have also considered various alternatives which included issuance of debt or equity
securities, reverse takeovers via asset injection or share swap, sale of assets of the Company to
third parties and liquidation of the Company. However, in view of the Trading Resumption Deadline
imposed by the SGX-ST, which if the Company is unable to meet will inevitably lead to a delisting
of the Company from the SGX-ST, compounded by the fact that the Judicial Managers do not have
control over the PRC Subsidiaries, the Judicial Managers are of the opinion that the Scheme
represents the only viable option currently available to the Company in offering the Shareholders
partial potential recovery of their investment in the Shares and offering the Creditors an improved
recovery of their debts. The Judicial Managers have confirmed that as at the date of this Letter
they have not received any other proposal after the Company entered into the Implementation
Agreement.

4.3 Liquidation Value of the Company

The last set of audited consolidated financial statements of the Group was for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008. To date, the Company has not released any financial results for the
subsequent financial periods. We noted that the Company’s auditors, PwC had stated in its audit
report in respect of FY2008 that “there may be a change in control of the Company as the
Company’s Controlling Shareholder may be faced with forced sale of part or all of its ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company arising from the Controlling Shareholder’s default of certain
financial obligations. This change in control would give the Bondholders who bought the
S58$149,000,000 convertible bonds issued by the Company in July 2008 the right to request for
immediate conversion and/or redemption of the outstanding S$149,000,000 bonds existing at the
balance sheet date. The Company may not be able to make payment for such unscheduled
redemption by the Bondholders if called upon to do so (emphasis ours).”

In addition, we wish to highlight the findings of PwC as announced by the Independent Directors of
the Company on 4 December 2009. PwC was commissioned by the Audit Committee of the
Company to look into matters concerning the Company’s affairs, in particular, the significant cash
transactions of the Company.
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The key findings which are set out below have cast doubts as to the actual realisable values of the
assets as reflected in the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2008.

() China Energy Environment Holdings (“China Energy”), one of the Company’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries, made a payment of approximately JPY 920 million (approximately
S$14 million or RMB 66 million) on 22 May 2009 allegedly to a Japanese company known
as JGC Catalysts and Chemicals (“JGCCC”), for the purchase of Denox raw materials.
However, as at 26 August 2009, no raw materials relating to the purchase contract (the
“Purchase Contract”) had been received. JGCCC confirmed with PwC on 15 September
2009 that it had not entered into the Purchase Contract and that it had not received any
payment of JPY 920 million from China Energy. JGCCC also informed PwC that there was
no employee in JGCCC bearing the name of the alleged JGCCC representative who
signed the alleged Purchase Contract.

(i) Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Protection Co Ltd (“Desai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, paid a total of approximately RMB 230 million (approximately S$50 million)
to various parties from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2009 to invest in four separate waste
power plant projects. Although monies had been paid by Desai for the acquisition of the
Dumpsite Rights, PwC did not see any documents indicating that the legal and beneficial
ownership of such Dumpsite Rights had been transferred to Desai. The PRC management
also informed PwC that no significant work has been carried out on any of the projects as
at 26 August 2009, despite significant outflow of funds.

(iii) Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co Ltd made installment payments between 1
January 2009 and 30 June 2009 amounting to RMB 46.5 million (approximately S$10
million) to purchase “fixed assets” for the Denox Catalysts Manufacturing Plant. PwC was
unable to conclude if the “fixed assets” they sighted were the “fixed assets” for the Denox
Catalyts Manufacturing Plant nor were they able to comment on the reasonableness of the
cost of these “fixed assets”.

(iv) Fujian Weidong EPT Co Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, made two interest
free loans amounting to RMB 50.0 million (approximately S$10 million) and RMB 5.0
million (approximately S$1 million) respectively to two parties that do not appear to be
related to the Company.

(v) Unauthorised payments post-11 May 2009 amounting to approximately RMB190 million
(approximately S$41 million) were made without prior approval of the Company’s Board.

Based on the Statement of Affairs, stating inter alia, the assets, debts and liabilities of the
Company as at 13 May 2010, only the cash maintained with a bank in Singapore amounting to
S$$3,142,506 is estimated to be realisable. The total liabilities of the Company as at 13 May 2010,
before taking into account the costs of the Judicial Managers and before factoring in liquidation
costs, amount to S$195,868,160.

The Judicial Managers have advised that they do not have control over the PRC Subsidiaries and
therefore have not been able to verify if the PRC Subsidiaries are operating. Neither are they able
to verify or express any view as to whether or not the accounting and other records of the Group
are complete, accurate and reliable. The Judicial Managers have reason to doubt the reliability of
the Group’s records and financial position in the light of the findings of PwC. The Judicial Managers
are of the view that the only assets of the Company that are realisable in the short term are its
listing status on the Official List of the SGX-ST and cash maintained with a bank in Singapore
amounting to S$3,142,506 as at 13 May 2010, which as at the Latest Practicable Date is
S$1,881,754.22. For reasons mentioned under Section 2.1.2 of the Explanatory Statement and
reproduced in Section 4.1 of this Letter, the cash in the PRC bank, investments in and receivables
from the PRC Subsidiaries are difficult to realise.
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Nevertheless, to recover whatever remains of the PRC Subsidiaries, the Judicial Managers have
entered into the Asset Recovery Agreement with HLM on 7 January 2011. Pursuant to the
agreement, HLM will be entitled to 51% of any proceeds recovered under the agreement. Hence,
only 49% of such proceeds will be available to the Company. In addition, it has been separately
agreed with HLM that a 15% success fee payable to it for the repatriation of the cash maintained
with a bank in PRC to Singapore. Based on the list of Approved Scheme Claims by Creditors as of
3 August 2011, the total proof of debt (net of Small Creditors) received from creditors of SET
amounted to S$170,822,900.69. In view of the significant amount of Approved Scheme Claims, the
Judicial Managers are of the view that it is unlikely that the net proceeds recovered will be
sufficient to pay off the Creditors and hence there will be no residual value for the Shareholders.

In view of the events leading to the appointment of the Judicial Managers, the developments after
the Company came under Judicial Management, the findings of PwC and the Statement of Affairs
submitted by one of the Directors, it is unlikely that the Shareholders will receive any distribution
from the Company in the event of a liquidation. As such, the only asset of the Company that is
likely to be realisable to the Shareholders in the short term is its listing status on the Official List of
the SGX-ST. On this premise, the Scheme offers the Shareholders an opportunity to recover some
of their investment values in the Shares.

4.4 Reasonableness of the Share Exchange Ratio

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Shareholders are entitled to Consideration Shares valued at
S$$680,000 (calculated by reference to the Compliance Placement Price), representing 11.3% of
the aggregate value of the Consideration Shares of S$6,000,000 (calculated by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price). Based on the Projected Compliance Placement Price of $$0.50, the
Shareholders are entitled to a total of 1,360,000 Consideration Shares.

Pursuant to the Share Distribution and assuming no further adjustment to the Consideration
Shares:

(i) the Share Exchange Ratio based on the Projected Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50;
and

(i) the implied price per Share based on the AVIC Share Transfer Price of S$0.50, are as
follows:-

For illustrative purposes only

Total number of Share Exchange Implied price
Projected Consideration Ratio (Number per Share based
Compliance Shares which of Shares per on the AVIC Share
Placement Shareholders will Consideration Transfer Price
Price (cents) be entitled to Share) (cents)
50 1,360,000 250 0.2

Based on the above, we note that:-

() Shareholders who hold less than 250 Shares as at the Books Closure Date will not be
entitled to any Consideration Share pursuant to the Scheme; and

(ii) the implied price per Share based on the AVIC Share Transfer Price is 0.2 cents.
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We wish to highlight that the abovementioned implied price per Share should be regarded for
illustrative purposes only. The implied price per Share of 0.2 cents based on the AVIC Share
Transfer Price represents a 98.5% discount to the last transacted price of the Share of S$0.135 on
17 September 2009, being the last market day before the trading suspension of the Share.
However, it should be noted that the historical traded price of the Share before the trading
suspension is not reflective of the market value of the Company.

In our evaluation of whether the Share Exchange Ratio is fair and reasonable, we have also
considered the following:-

(i) the Company has been in judicial management since 4 June 2010;
(ii) trading of the Shares has been suspended since 23 September 2009;

(iii) the Company is faced with the time constraint imposed by the SGX-ST as to the Trading
Resumption Deadline;

(iv) the Scheme represents the only viable option available to the Company; and

(v) the Scheme allows the Shareholders to have a share in a part of the AVIC Singapore
Group which rides on the fundamentals of the AVIC Group and whose businesses are
mainly in the PRC and in the shipbuilding management and ship trading business (please
refer to Section 4.5 of this Letter for more details about the AVIC Singapore Group).

We further note that the Judicial Managers are, as at the Latest Practicable Date, of the view that if
the Company is unable to complete the Scheme, the Company will be delisted and liquidated and
in the event of a liquidation of the Company, the Shareholders are unlikely to receive any
distribution from the Company. Therefore, in light of the Trading Resumption Deadline, the Scheme
would likely be the final opportunity for Shareholders to receive Consideration Shares to recover
some value of their investment in the Shares.

In view of the above, and taking into consideration the rationale for the Scheme as set out in
Section 4.1 of this Letter, we are of the view that the Share Exchange Ratio is not unreasonable
from the perspective of the Shareholders. However, the Shareholders should note that the
controlling shareholder of AVIC Singapore owns 94.83% and 74.07% of the enlarged share capital
of AVIC Singapore immediately before and after the Compliance Placement, respectively. In view
of the significant portion of the AVIC Shares held by the controlling shareholder, there is no
assurance on the liquidity of the market for the AVIC Shares or whether an active trading market
for the AVIC Shares will develop.

4.5 Evaluation of the AVIC Singapore Group

Details of the AVIC Singapore Group are contained in the Information Memorandum. We
recommend that the Shareholders read the relevant sections of the Information Memorandum
carefully. In particular, they should take note of the sections under “Overview of our Group and
Business Activities”, “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”, “History and Business” and “Industry Overview”.

4.5.1 History and background of the AVIC Singapore Group

We note that AVIC Singapore is a company incorporated under the Companies Act on 11
November 2010 as an investment holding company. AVIC Singapore is the ship-trading and
shipbuilding management arm, and an indirect subsidiary, of AVIC (' [E fjii 45 2\ 4 F1 24 7)),
AVIC International ("FEMIFEAREFERATHAR) and AVIC International Beijing
(P E T HEARIE A B A ). Prior to the restructuring exercise undertaken in connection
with the proposed listing on the SGX-ST, the business activities of AVIC Singapore was a
division of AVIC International Beijing, which is in turn a subsidiary of AVIC International.
AVIC International Beijing and AVIC International are part of the AVIC Group under AVIC.
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4.5.2

According to the Information Memorandum, AVIC is a large state-owned enterprise and an
investment institution that is authorised and managed by the Central Government of the
PRC. Its key business units are Defense, Transport Aircraft, Aviation Engine, Helicopters,
Avionics, General Aviation Aircraft, Aviation Research and Development, Flight Test, Trade
and Logistics, and Asset Management. AVIC International’s predecessor, China National
Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation was established in January 1979. As an
important part of the aviation industry, AVIC International has become a comprehensive
platform that leads the rapid development of world sectors like world aviation, trade and
logistics, real estate and service and industrial investment. AVIC International owns seven
listed companies and 60 overseas offices, and its business covers over 180 countries and
regions. The business assets of AVIC International have a collective value of more than
RMB100 billion.

AVIC International Beijing was established in 1992 in the PRC, and is a state-owned
enterprise which mainly focuses on trading and manufacturing of ships, EPC services of
machinery and equipment and investment-holding.

The AVIC Singapore Group is principally involved in the provision of project management
and consultancy services relating to shipbuilding, which cover ship design, construction
(both of which are outsourced to third parties), procurement, newbuilding management and
marine finance arrangement. The AVIC Singapore Group also provides marketing and
consultancy services to the shipyards in the PRC to help promote their corporate profiles in
the overseas markets, seek out shipowners and secure shipbuilding contracts, including
negotiating on behalf of shipyards with shipowners on the terms and other details of the
shipbuilding contracts, amongst others.

Currently, the AVIC Singapore Group does not own any production facilities or properties.

Financial highlights of the AVIC Singapore Group

A summary of the selected items of the proforma Statements of Comprehensive Income of
the AVIC Singapore Group for FY 2008, FY2009 and FY2010 is set out below and should
be read together with the full text of the Information Memorandum.

=< Unaudited >
RMB’000 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010
Revenue 42,367 24,566 76,495
Other operating income 11,967 8,506 8,718
Profit before income tax 47,913 25,005 74,934
Profit for the year, representing total
comprehensive income for the year 35,893 18,629 56,146

During the financial years under review, the revenue of the AVIC Singapore Group
decreased from RMB42.4 million in FY2008 to RMB24.6 million in FY2009 and
subsequently increased to RMB76.5 million in FY2010. The significant decrease in revenue
from FY2008 to FY2009 was due mainly to the slowdown in shipbuilding activities and ship
delivery during FY2009 as a result of the global financial crisis that began in the second
half of FY2008. Consequently, some customers ceased to order new vessels or delayed
the delivery of vessels. The group derived fee income from the commencement of steel
cutting for three vessels in FY2009 as compared with eight vessels in FY2008.
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4.5.3

The significant increase in revenue in FY2010 was driven mainly by the gradual recovery of
the world economy from the global financial crisis. The group derived higher fee income
from the commencement of steel cutting for nine vessels in FY2010. The group also
received significant one-off service fee for project management services and arrangement
of certain banking facilities. In addition, the group was engaged by a customer, Taizhou
CATIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited (Z& /1A AHE 47 R 22 7)), to provide project
management and marketing services for which the group was paid a fixed management
service fee. The group also derived service fee income from the same customer for
rendering services in securing two shipbuilding contracts and the arrangement of certain
banking facilities. AVIC International Beijing owns 45% of the equity interest of Taizhou
CATIC.

Prospects and future plans of the AVIC Singapore Group

We note that the directors of AVIC Singapore are cautiously optimistic about the prospects
of the AVIC Singapore Group based on the following considerations and its competitive
strengths.

(i) The Executive Directors of AVIC Singapore has disclosed in the Information
Memorandum that in 2009, the volume of vessels built in the PRC amounted to an
aggregate of 36.0 million Deadweight Tonnage (“DWT”)'. The PRC’s market share for
ships in the global order book by compensated gross tonnage amounted to 37.7%,
ahead of Japan'. In 2010, the volume of vessels completed in the PRC amounted to
61.2 million DWT, an increase of 70% compared to 2009' and is expected to become
the world’s largest shipbuilding country.

(i)  The Executive Directors of AVIC Singapore expect that international trade could
decline following the global financial crisis, resulting in a corresponding decrease in
the need for vessels. Financial institutions may reduce the amount of shipping loans,
restricting the ability of shipowners to construct new vessels. Shipowners may also
order fewer vessels if the future development of the economy is not clear, and there
is a risk that shipowners may abandon their vessels, thereby adversely affecting
orders already in hand.

(iii)  Although there may be a decline in orders in the market, the Executive Directors of
AVIC Singapore expect that the AVIC Singapore Group may be able to take
advantage of AVIC International Beijing’s existing network, its financing capabilities
and lower costs of expansion to compete against smaller and less efficient players in
the industry.

In addition, we note that:-

(iv)  The AVIC Singapore Group has an order book of 19 vessels for delivery from 2011
to 2013.

(v) AVIC Singapore plans to use a significant portion of the gross proceeds
(representing approximately 76.9%) from the Compliance Placement to partly
finance the acquisition of a shipyard. AVIC Singapore believes that the expansion
into shipbuilding will complement AVIC Singapore’s existing businesses and broaden
their revenue streams. AVIC International Beijing intends to position AVIC Singapore
as an investment-holding vehicle in the ship-trading and shipbuilding industry. The
intention is to make long term strategic investments and acquisitions in the industry
globally through AVIC Singapore. After AVIC Singapore has been successfully listed
on the SGX-ST, AVIC Singapore intends to acquire shipbuilding and related facilities
from AVIC International and its subsidiaries, including AVIC International Beijing in
the near future. This is expected to contribute to the growth of AVIC Singapore.
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(vi)  AVIC Singapore intends to acquire or form strategic alliances with design houses
and other business partners in order to develop new vessels to differentiate
themselves from their competitors.

(vii)  AVIC Singapore will also be expanding their business activities globally through
leveraging on AVIC International’s existing network. AVIC International has already
established over 60 overseas offices across the world, and its business covers over
180 countries and regions.

Notwithstanding the above, Shareholders are advised to note that AVIC Singapore expects
its revenue and results of operations in FY2011 to be affected by the following principal
considerations:-

(i) The volume of international trade following the global financial crisis is subject to
uncertainty and may be likely to decline, resulting in a corresponding drop in demand
for vessels. The amount of loans from financial institutions may also be reduced,
restricting the ability of shipowners to purchase new ships. This would adversely
affect AVIC Singapore’s ability to secure new orders and expand internationally.

(i)  The value of the RMB relative to the USD as at the beginning of 2011 has
strengthened as compared to the beginning of 2010. Any increase in the value of the
RMB relative to the USD will reduce the value of its USD denominated revenue, as
reported in RMB, thereby adversely affecting its operating results.

(iii)  Its operating expenses are expected to increase due mainly to salary adjustments,
additional headcount to the sales and marketing team and increased marketing
activities.

Note:

(1)  Clarkson Research Services Limited, World Shipyard Monitor Vol 18. No. 1, January 2011. Clarkson
Research Services Limited has not consented for the purposes of Sections 249 and 277 of the Securities
and Futures Act to the inclusion of the information referred to above and is thereby not liable for such
information under Sections 253 and 254 of the Securities and Futures Act. AVIC Singapore has included
the above information in its proper form and context and has not verified the accuracy of such information.

4.6 Valuation Ratios of AVIC Singapore implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price against those
of Comparable Companies

We note that the AVIC Singapore Group is engaged in shipbuilding project management and is
unlike some of the listed shipbuilding companies which operate their own shipyards for the
provision of shipbuilding and ship repair activities. Nevertheless, for the purposes of assessing the
AVIC Share Transfer Price, we have compared the various valuation ratios of AVIC Singapore
implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price with those of selected companies listed in the PRC and
Singapore which are principally engaged in, inter alia, the shipbuilding industry and which are, in
our opinion, broadly comparable to the AVIC Singapore Group (the “Comparable Companies”), as
set out in Section 4.6.1 of this Letter.

We wish to highlight that the Comparable Companies are not exhaustive, we understand that there
are no closely identical and comparable listed companies to the AVIC Singapore Group in terms of,
inter alia, market capitalisation, size of operations, clientele base, composition of business
activities, asset base, geographical spread, track record, operating and financial leverage, risk
profile, liquidity, accounting policies, future prospects and other relevant criteria. We also wish to
highlight that there may be significant differences between valuations that investors may accord to
shares trading on the SGX-ST and other exchanges. Such cross border valuation statistics are
subject to differing macroeconomic variables and hence may not be directly comparable to the
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AVIC Singapore Group. In addition to this, it should also be noted that the market prices of these
Comparable Companies may be inflated or depressed due to market speculation, pressures and/or
trading activity as opposed to the AVIC Shares which are not yet publicly listed as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

As such, any comparison made with regard to the valuation ratios of the Comparable Companies
is necessarily limited and merely serves only as an illustrative guide.

4.6.1 Description of the Comparable Companies

The following is a brief description of the Comparable Companies:

Comparable Company Company Principal Business Primary Exchange

China CSSC Holdings China CSSC offers Shanghai, China

Ltd (“CSSC")

Marco Polo Marine
Limited (“MPM”)

ASL Marine Holdings
Limited (“ASL")

JES International
Holdings Limited
(“J ES”)

Jaya Holdings Limited
(“JHL?)

Otto Marine Limited
(“OML)

Holdings  Ltd.
shipbuilding, ship components, ship repairing
and diesel engines manufacturing. The
company distributes its products within the
domestic market and to overseas markets.

Marco Polo Marine Limited is an integrated
shipping company. The company provides
services that include ship chartering,
shipbuilding and repair, and brokering
services.

ASL Marine Holdings Limited is an integrated
marine company. The company’s operations
include shipbuilding, ship repair, and other
marine-related services. The company also
provides other marine-related services such
as logistical support, general engineering
services, and sales and repairing of marine
equipment.

JES International Holdings Limited operates
a shipyard in China. The company builds bulk
carriers, containerships and ocean
engineering vessels, mainly crane barges for
offshore oil sector and offshore construction
building works.

Jaya Holdings Limited owns, builds, repairs,
manages, and charters ships. The group’s
core activities include offshore marine
chartering, containerised vessel
transportation, and shipbuilding and ship
repair.

Otto Marine Limited provides shipbuilding,
ship repair and conversion and ship
chartering.

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore
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Comparable Company Company Principal Business Primary Exchange
STX OSV Holdings Ltd STX OSV Holdings Ltd. is a global Singapore
(“STX”) shipbuilder of offshore support vessels

(“OSV”) used in the offshore oil and gas
exploration and production and oil services
industries. The company’s core business is
design and construction of customized
OSVs, including platform supply vessels
(“PSV”), anchor handling tug supply vessels
(“AHTS”) and advanced offshore subsea
construction vessels.

Cosco Corp (Singapore) Cosco Corp (Singapore) Limited is an Singapore
Limited (“CCS”) investment holding company. The company

owns and operates ships, and provides

shipping agency, marine engineering, ship

repair, and container depot services. CCS

also trades and invests in properties as well

as provides property management and

services.

Yangzijiang Shipbuilding Yangzijiang Shipbuilding Holdings Limited Singapore
Holdings Limited (“YSH”) builds a wide range of ships. The company

produces a wide range of commercial

vessels, mini bulk carriers, multi-purpose

cargo vessels, containerships, chemical

tankers, offshore supply vessels, rescue and

salvage vessels, and lifting vessels.

SembCorp Marine SembCorp Marine Limited operates ship Singapore
Limited (“SCM”) building, ship owning, ship repair and

conversion. Through its subsidiaries, the

company provides equipment rental, cleaning

and maintenance services, marine, general

electronic, and electrical works. SCM also

trades copper slag, processes copper slag

for grit blasting and building, as well as

fabricates metal structures.

Source: Bloomberg
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4.6.2 Comparison of key financial ratios of AVIC Singapore with those of the Comparable

Companies
The key financial ratios of AVIC Singapore and the Comparable Companies are set out as
follows:
Market
Capitalisation
as at

the Latest Total Total
Comparable Practicable Net Profit Liabilities/ Borrowings/
Company Date (S$’m) Margin%® Equity (times) Equity (times)
CSSC 8,885 8.76 1.94 0.77
MPM 135 29.75 0.97 0.59
ASL 257 7.96 1.28 0.65
JES 280 2.99 2.04 0.77
JHL 420 29.05 1.10 0.75
OML 359 7.01 2.27 1.37
STX 1,746 8.68 4.07 1.95
CCs 3,336 6.44 2.37 0.55
YSH 5,238 22.87 1.60 0.13
SCM 10,884 18.89 0.96 0.00
High 10,884 29.75 4.07 1.95
Low 135 2.99 0.96 0.00
Mean 3,154 14.24 1.86 0.75
Median 1,083 8.72 1.77 0.70
AVIC Singapore 148.50" 73.40 n.m. n.m.

Source: Bloomberg and the Information Memorandum in relation to AVIC Singapore.

n.m.: not meaningful.

Notes:

(1)  The market capitalisation of AVIC Singapore has been computed based on the enlarged share capital of the
company after the Compliance Placement and the Projected Compliance Placement Price.

(2)  Net Profit Margin is based on the ratio of the net profits attributable to shareholders to the revenue of the
respective companies.

(3) The figures above are based on the relevant audited financial statements for the companies as at their
respective financial year end dates.
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Based on the above, we note that:

(i

the Net Profit Margin of AVIC Singapore of 73.40% is higher than the range of Net
Profit Margins of the Comparable Companies of between 2.99% and 29.75% and is
higher than the mean and median Net Profit Margin of the Comparable Companies
of 14.24% and 8.72% respectively. This could be due to AVIC Singapore’s business
model of deriving fee income from services and, unlike the Comparable Companies,
AVIC Singapore does not operate a shipyard. The high Net Profit Margin may not be
sustainable in the future when AVIC Singapore diversifies into shipbuilding with the
acquisition of a shipyard,;

AVIC Singapore has not prepared proforma statements of financial position and
proforma statements of cashflows of the AVIC Singapore Group for the last three
financial years ended 31 December 2010 as its business operations when
undertaken as a division of AVIC International Beijing does not maintain a divisional
bank account or have divisional assets or liabilities. Accordingly, AVIC Singapore is
of the view that the preparation of the proforma statements of financial position and
proforma cashflows of the AVIC Singapore Group are not meaningful. AVIC
Singapore has prepared a proforma statement of financial position of the AVIC
Singapore Group immediately after the issue of the Consideration Shares which
contains only cash and bank balances, being the capital injection of AVIC Kairong of
S$6 million pursuant to the restructuring exercise carried out by AVIC Singapore in
preparation for its listing on the SGX-ST. However, note that the comparisons of the
Total Liabilities to Equity ratio and Total Borrowings to Equity ratio are not meaningful
given that the proforma financial position statement of the AVIC Singapore Group
immediately after the issue of the Consideration Shares does not reflect the financial
effects of the operations of the AVIC Singapore Group. Nevertheless, the relevant
financial ratios of the Comparable Companies are provided here for information
purposes.

4.6.3 Comparison to valuation ratios implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price with those
of Comparable Companies

In our comparison of valuation ratios implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price with those of
the Comparable Companies, we have taken into account the following:

Valuation Ratio General Description

Historical PER PER or Price to Earnings Ratio is the ratio of market price of a

company’s shares relative to its earnings per share. The PER is
an earnings-based valuation methodology and is calculated
based on the net earnings attributable to shareholders after
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation expenses. As
such, it is affected by the capital structure of a company, its tax
position as well as its accounting policies relating to depreciation
and intangible assets.

Historical Price/ EBITDA stands for earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
EBITDA and amortisation expenses. The historical P/EBITDA ratio

compares the current market value of the business to its
historical pre-tax operating cashflow performance. The
P/EBITDA multiple is an earnings-based valuation methodology.
However, unlike the PER, it does not take into account its
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation charges.
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Valuation Ratio General Description
Historical Price/ P/NAV or Price to Net Asset Value is the ratio of the market
NAV price of a company’s shares relative to its asset backing. The

NAV of a company provides an estimate of its value assuming a
hypothetical sale of all its assets and repayment of its liabilities
and obligations, with the balance being available for distribution
to its shareholders. It is an asset-based valuation methodology
and this approach is meaningful to the extent that it measures
the value of each share that is attached to the net assets of the

company.
Share Price
as at Latest Historical

Comparable Practicable Historical Price/ Historical
Company Date (S$) PER EBITDA Price/NAV
CSSC 8.38 10.57 12.47 2.61
MPM 0.40 6.27 7.65 1.46
ASL 0.61 4.90 3.00 0.79
JES 0.24 20.59 12.16 0.85
JHL 0.55 4.06 3.39 0.88
OML 0.19 8.76 6.58 0.76
STX 1.48 6.49 5.87 3.28
CCS 1.49 13.41 5.37 1.86
YSH 1.37 8.49 9.09 2.67
SCM 5.22 12.56 10.80 4.05
High 20.59 12.47 4.05
Low 4.06 3.00 0.76
Mean 9.61 7.64 1.92
Median 8.62 712 1.66
AVIC Share

Transfer Price 10.2 n.m. n.m.

Source: Bloomberg and the Information Memorandum in relation to AVIC Singapore.

n.m.: not meaningful
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Based on the above, we note that:

the historical PER of 10.2 times implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price is within
the range of historical PER of the Comparable Companies of between 4.06 times
and 20.59 times and is higher than the mean and median historical PER of the
Comparable Companies of 9.61 times and 8.62 times respectively; and

AVIC Singapore has not prepared proforma statements of financial position and
proforma statements of cashflows of the AVIC Singapore Group for the last three
financial years ended 31 December 2010 as its business operations when
undertaken as a division of AVIC International Beijing does not maintain a divisional
bank account or have divisional assets or liabilities. Accordingly, AVIC Singapore is
of the view that the preparation of the proforma statements of financial position and
proforma cashflows of the AVIC Singapore Group are not meaningful. Nevertheless,
we have set out the relevant ratios of P/EBITDA and P/NAV of the Comparable
Companies for information purposes.

4.7 Comparison with Selected Comparable Transactions

We have considered companies that had proposed schemes involving a transfer of the listing
status of a listed company to another company as part of the process of a restructuring scheme.
Shareholders should note that the circumstances of each company that entered into a scheme are
unique, and the scheme companies are not identical to the Group in terms of business activities,
size of operations, market capitalisation, asset base, risk profile, track record, future prospects,
size of debt and other circumstances surrounding these companies. Accordingly, the comparison
serves as an illustrative guide only. The table showing the details of schemes of selected
companies and the relevant information relating to them are set out in the following pages.
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Notes:

(1)  The scheme by Alliance Technology and Development Limited (under Judicial Management) (“ATD”) involves, inter
alia, an exchange of shares in ATD with shares in Gallant Venture Ltd. (“Gallant Venture”) and a transfer of the listing
status of ATD to Gallant Venture. The scheme did not provide for any value assurance share distribution.

(2)  The scheme by Zhongguo Jilong Limited (under Judicial Management) (“ZGJL’) involves, inter alia, an exchange of
shares in ZGJL with shares in Changjiang Fertiliser Holdings Company Limited (“CJFH") and a transfer of the listing
status of ZGJL to CJFH. As similar to the Scheme, the scheme by ZGJL also provides for value assurance share
distribution whereby additional CJFH shares may be issued and allotted and/or transferred to the scheme
administrators to hold on trust for and to distribute to the shareholders in the event that the value of the consideration
shares is less than $320,000 (by reference to the actual compliance placement price) which in the case of the
Scheme is $680,000. However, in the case of ZGJLUs scheme, the shareholder shortfall amount was limited to a
maximum of $80,000 whereas there is no such maximum limit in the case of the Scheme. This means that the
Shareholders will be assured of the full sum of $680,000 under the Scheme.

(3) In addition to the consideration shares allotted to the shareholders and creditors, 1,502,400 consideration shares
were distributed to the judicial managers as settlement for the judicial managers’ fees and expenses. Had this been
included in the computation, the ratio of apportionment among shareholders, creditors and judicial managers was
10:74:16.

We note the following:-

(i) The Scheme will result in a shareholding interest dilution of 99.41% for the Shareholders
as compared with the shareholding interest dilution of 99.66% and 99.69% for the
shareholders under the schemes by ATD and ZGJL, respectively. This significant dilution for
existing shareholders is typical for companies, especially for companies that are likely to be
delisted and liquidated and are unlikely to have any residual value available for distribution
to the shareholders after payment to the creditors of the companies.

(ii) The Agreed Apportionment, between Shareholders and Creditors for the Consideration
Shares, does not seem to be unreasonable to the Shareholders in comparison to the
selected Comparable Transactions, when considered in the context of the proportion of the
value represented by the consideration shares to the proof of debt of 7.5%, 25.5% and
3.1% of ATD, ZGJL and the Company, respectively.

4.8 Financial effects of the Scheme

We note that the Judicial Managers do not propose to set out the illustrative financial effects of the
Scheme for the reasons set out in Section 4 of the Explanatory Statement.

The Scheme, if it becomes effective, involves, inter alia, the transfer of all the Shares from the
Shareholders to the Judicial Managers and distribution to the Shareholders of Consideration
Shares in accordance with the Agreed Apportionment, as well as the release and discharge to the
aggregate value of the Consideration Shares received by the Creditors under the Scheme in
satisfaction of the Approved Scheme Claims. Accordingly, the Scheme will reduce the liabilities of
the Company to its Creditors in the amount of $$5,320,000.

We wish to highlight that pursuant to the Scheme, Shareholders will cease to hold any Shares
and will instead become shareholders of AVIC Singapore after the completion of the Scheme. As
such, we wish to draw the attention of the Shareholders that the financial effects of the Scheme on
the Company will be irrelevant to the Shareholders. The Shareholders should therefore take
note of the financial information of the AVIC Singapore Group and the AVIC Singapore
Group’s prospects and future plans which are outlined in Sections 4.5.2 and 4.5.3 of this
Letter respectively and which should be read in conjunction with the full text of the relevant
sections of the Information Memorandum, including Appendix A of the Information
Memorandum containing the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Unaudited Pro Forma
Financial Information for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010. In particular, the
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Shareholders should note that neither the Company nor the Judicial Managers have conducted an
independent valuation or due diligence in respect of the AVIC Singapore Group or the AVIC
Shares. Notwithstanding, the Judicial Managers understand that a due diligence has been
conducted by the financial adviser appointed by AVIC Singapore for the purposes of the
application by AVIC Singapore for listing on the SGX-ST.

Shareholders should note that, pursuant to the Scheme, the Group will not constitute part
of the AVIC Singapore Group and the Judicial Managers shall continue to hold the
beneficial title to the Shares for and on behalf of the Shareholders. The Judicial Managers
intend to continue pursuing the process of asset recovery with HLM under the Asset
Recovery Agreement signed with HLM mentioned earlier. However, the Judicial Managers
are of the view that it is unlikely that proceeds of the winding-up or asset recovery, or
profits, if any, of the Group is sufficient to pay off the Creditors and as such there will be no
residual value for the Shareholders. Please refer to Section 4.1 of this Letter and Section 2.1 of
the Explanatory Statement for the Judicial Managers’ view in relation to the realisation of the
assets of the Company.

4.9 Other relevant considerations in relation to the Scheme
4.9.1 Risk factors relating to the AVIC Shares

The full text of the risk factors relating to the AVIC Shares is set out in the section entitled
“Risk Factors” of the Information Memorandum. Shareholders are advised to read the
relevant sections of the Information Memorandum carefully. In particular, we wish to
highlight the following risk factors:

(i) AVIC Singapore had benefitted from the recent boom in the PRC shipbuilding
industry. The future growth of the group in the industry will depend on a number of
factors, many of which are beyond its control, including the growth of the world
economy, demand for new vessels, the macroeconomic and monetary policies of the
PRC government, the level of competition in the PRC and international shipbuilding
industry. Hence, there can be no assurance that the group will be able to maintain its
historical rate of growth or track record.

(i)  The AVIC Singapore Group intends to diversify its business into shipbuilding in the
near future. As it may not have sufficient experience and expertise in managing the
shipbuilding business, it may encounter greater risks of cost overruns and delays in
delivery of shipbuilding contracts. AVIC Singapore may not have adequate
technology or intellectual property rights in building certain types of vessels and may
have to invest a substantial amount of capital and other resources in conducting
research and designing and building prototypes. The group’s business model and
risk profile are expected to change. Hence, the historical results of the AVIC
Singapore Group may not be reflective of its future performance.

(iii)  The global capital and credit markets have recently been experiencing periods of
extreme volatility and disruption. Due to the global financial crisis, its customers have
been reluctant or lack sufficient financing or funds to place orders for new vessels.
The global economy may further deteriorate, causing further decline in the
economies of the PRC and other countries where its customers are located and in
seaborne trade in particular. If that happens the AVIC Singapore Group may not
experience a sufficient number of new orders in the future. In addition, during the
global financial crisis, the value of vessels and prices which its suppliers can charge
for vessels they build have declined, leading to a corresponding drop in its fees.
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4.9.2

(iv)  AVIC Singapore has entered into a Management Agreement with AVIC International
Beijing to manage certain shipbuilding contracts that had been entered into by AVIC
International Beijing, for a management fee of RMB28 million per annum. The terms
of the Management Agreement may be subject to modification and the management
fee of RMB28 million is also subject to adjustments depending on the progress of the
construction of the vessels. There can be no assurance that AVIC Singapore will be
able to successfully receive the full management fee or that the terms of the
Management Agreement will not be amended.

We further note that in the event that the Scheme becomes effective and binding, it is
envisaged that on or shortly after the Transfer Date:

(i) the Company will be delisted and withdrawn from the Official List of the SGX-ST; and

(i)  AVIC Singapore will be listed on the Official List of the SGX-ST. However, trading of
the AVIC Shares will be suspended pending completion of the Compliance
Placement.

Shareholders should note that they would effectively be exchanging their Shares
(which are currently suspended from trading on the SGX-ST) for the Consideration
Shares (which will upon listing on the Official List of the SGX-ST, be suspended until
AVIC Singapore is able to successfully complete the Compliance Placement and
meet the spread requirements of the Listing Manual). In addition, Shareholders
should also note that in the event that AVIC Singapore is unable to successfully
complete the Compliance Placement and meet the spread requirements of the
Listing Manual, the AVIC Shares will continue to be suspended and cannot be
traded, until such time as AVIC Singapore successfully completes the Compliance
Placement. Further, in the event that AVIC Singapore is unable to successfully
complete the Compliance Placement within any time period stipulated by the SGX-
ST, the AVIC Shares may be delisted and withdrawn from the Official List of the SGX-
ST.

Shareholding effects of the Scheme

The shareholders of AVIC Singapore and their respective shareholdings in AVIC Singapore
immediately before and after the Compliance Placement is set out under the section
“General Information on Our Group - Shareholders” of the Information Memorandum.
We note that Shareholders will collectively hold 0.4% of the issued AVIC Shares
immediately after the Compliance Placement and, as minority shareholders of AVIC
Singapore, Shareholders will thus be unable to exercise any significant voting rights in
future shareholders’ meetings of AVIC Singapore. However, we wish to highlight that in the
event that the Compliance Placement is successfully completed, the Shareholders will be
receiving shares of a listed entity as opposed to the Shares which are currently suspended
and which may be delisted by the SGX-ST in the event that the Company fails to complete
the Scheme by the Trading Resumption Deadline or within such further time as may be
allowed by the SGX-ST.

In this respect, we wish to highlight that on an illustrative basis of a Compliance
Placement Price of S$0.50, Shareholders who hold less than 250 Shares as at the
Books Closure Date will not be entitled to any Consideration Share pursuant to the
Scheme.

@ STIRLING COLEMAN

R R

D-30



APPENDIX D — LETTER FROM STIRLING COLEMAN CAPITAL LIMITED

4.9.3 Moratorium in respect of Shareholdings in AVIC Singapore

To demonstrate its commitment to the AVIC Singapore Group, AVIC Kairong, which
(assuming that the Compliance Placement is undertaken with 65,000,000 Compliance
Placement Shares at the Projected Compliance Placement Price of S$0.50 per Compliance
Placement Share) will directly own 220,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 74.1%
of the issued share capital of AVIC Singapore immediately after the Compliance
Placement, has undertaken not to sell, realise, transfer or otherwise dispose of any part of
its interest in the issued share capital of AVIC Singapore immediately after the Compliance
Placement for a period of 24 months from the date on which the AVIC Shares will
commence trading following the completion of the Compliance Placement (“First Trading
Date”).

In addition, the sole shareholder of AVIC Kairong, being AVIC International Beijing, has
undertaken that it shall not sell, realise, transfer or otherwise dispose of any part of its
interest in the issued share capital of AVIC Kairong for a period of 24 months from the First
Trading Date.

4.9.4 Condition of the Scheme

The Scheme is conditional on, inter alia, the approval of the Shareholders and the
Creditors in compliance with the requirements of Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X)
of the Companies Act. The Scheme must be approved by a majority in number
representing three-fourths (75%) in value of the Shareholders and at least three-fourths
(75%) in value of the Creditors, present and voting in person or by proxy, at the Court
Meeting of Shareholders and the Court Meeting of Creditors respectively.

We would like to draw the attention of the Shareholders to Section 3.5 of the Explanatory
Statement where the Judicial Managers highlighted the risks of the Scheme not being
approved by the Court. These include:-

(i) Even if the appropriate level of support is obtained from the Shareholders and
Creditors (which cannot be assured) at the respective Court Meeting, approval of the
Scheme is at the discretion of the Court. Whilst the Company believes the relevant
statutory formalities have been complied with, the Court could determine that the
Scheme is inadequate, or for other reasons, and/or could determine that the Scheme
fails to meet various other requirements, and require amendments or modifications
which might not be acceptable to the Company, its Shareholders or its Creditors or
might not be able to be accomplished in a timely manner.

(i)  Shareholders and Creditors must appreciate that no representation as to the
information relating to AVIC Singapore is made by the Judicial Managers.

5 RECOMMENDATION

In arriving at our opinion in respect of the Scheme to the Shareholders, we have taken into
account, reviewed and examined the factors which we consider to be pertinent and to have a
bearing on our assessment, including the views and representations by the Judicial Managers and
also the following factors summarised below. Shareholders should be advised to read the following
in conjunction with, and in the context of the full text of this Letter. We have taken into account the

following:-
(i) the rationale for the Scheme;
(ii) the Judicial Managers are of the opinion that the Scheme represents the only viable option

currently available to the Company;
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

the Judicial Managers are, as at the Latest Practicable Date, of the view that the
Shareholders are unlikely to receive any value for their Shares from the liquidation of the
Company;

the Company has been in judicial management since 4 June 2010, and the trading of the
Shares has been suspended since 23 September 2009. The Company is also faced with
the time constraint imposed by the SGX-ST as to the Trading Resumption Deadline and the
Scheme represents the only viable option available to the Company. As such, in light of the
Trading Resumption Deadline, the Scheme would likely be the final opportunity for the
Shareholders who receive Consideration Shares to unlock some value of their investment
in the Shares;

the established operating and profit track record of the AVIC Singapore Group and its
prospects and future plan, riding on the strong fundamentals of the AVIC Group;

the key financial and valuation ratios of AVIC Singapore are favourable as compared with
those of the Comparable Companies as follows:

(a) the Net Profit Margin of AVIC Singapore of 73.40% is higher than the range of Net
Profit Margins of the Comparable Companies of between 2.99% and 29.75%, the
mean and median Net Profit Margin of the Comparable Companies of 14.24% and
8.72% respectively; and

(b)  the historical PER of 10.2 times implied by the AVIC Share Transfer Price is within
the range of historical PER of the Comparable Companies of between 4.06 times
and 20.59 times and is higher than the mean and median historical PER of the
Comparable Companies of 9.61 times and 8.62 times respectively; and

the Agreed Apportionment, between Shareholders and Creditors for the Consideration
Shares, is not unreasonable to the Shareholders in comparison to the selected
Comparable Transactions.

However, we also note:-

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

as highlighted in Section 4.9.1 of this Letter and under the section “Risk Factors” in the
Information Memorandum, the AVIC Singapore Group may be exposed to a number of
possible risks that may have an adverse impact on its future performance, in particular, the
impact of the global crisis and possible new challenges in relation to its future plan to
diversify into shipbuilding;

the significant dilution in shareholdings of the Shareholders after the Scheme becomes
effective; and

it is unlikely that proceeds of the winding-up or asset recovery or the profits, if any, of the
Group will be sufficient to pay off the Creditors and as such there will be no residual value
for the Shareholders.

Having regard to the considerations as set out in this Letter and the information made
available to us as at the Latest Practicable Date, we are of the opinion that, on balance, the
financial terms of the Scheme to Shareholders, when considered in the context of the
prospects of a delisting and that it is unlikely the Shareholders would be able to recover
any value from their Shares in the event of a liquidation, are fair and reasonable.
Accordingly, we recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of the resolution to be tabled
at the Court Meeting of Shareholders in relation to the Scheme to Shareholders.
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This Letter may only be reproduced, disseminated or quoted in the form and context in which it
appears in the Explanatory Statement or with the prior written consent of Stirling Coleman Capital
Limited. This Letter and its entire content is governed by, and construed in accordance with, the
laws of Singapore, and is strictly limited to the matters stated herein and does not apply by
implication to any other matter. Our recommendation may not be used and/or relied on by any
other person for any other purpose at any time and in any manner except with our written consent.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
STIRLING COLEMAN CAPITAL LIMITED

ANG KAY TIONG YAP YEONG KEEN
CEO DIRECTOR,
CORPORATE FINANCE ADVISORY
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE
Originating Summons )
No. 453 of 2010/ P )
In the Matter of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore
And
In the Matter of SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP

LIMITED (Under Judicial Management) a company incorporated in
Singapore (RC No: 2001064802)

SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT
Under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act,
Chapter 50 of Singapore

Between
SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(RC No: 200106480Z)

And

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(AS DEFINED HEREIN)
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PART I: GENERAL

1.1

1.2

1.3

Preamble

The Company was incorporated in Singapore on 2 October 2001 under the Companies Act and
listed on the SGX-ST on 28 April 2006. The Company and its group of companies specialise in
environmental protection and waste recovery in the PRC.

By an Order of Court dated 13 May 2010, the Company was placed under interim judicial
management and the Interim Judicial Managers were appointed. On 4 June 2010, the Court
granted the Judicial Management Order pursuant to which the Company was placed under
judicial management, and the Judicial Managers were appointed. The Judicial Management
Order has since been extended from time to time. On 26 July 2011, the Court extended the
Judicial Management Order until 1 January 2012.

On 7 January 2011, the Company entered into the Implementation Agreement with AVIC Kairong.
Further to the Implementation Agreement, the Company proposes and agrees, subject to
acceptance by the requisite majority of Creditors and Shareholders at the Court Meetings and
approval by the Court of this Scheme pursuant to Section 210 of the Companies Act, to
implement this Scheme.

Definitions and Interpretation
Definitions

2.1.1 In this Scheme, unless otherwise defined herein or except where the context or subject
matter otherwise indicates or requires, words shall have the same meaning ascribed to
them by the Companies Act.

2.1.2 The following words and phrases in this Scheme shall have the meanings set out opposite
them:

Approved Scheme Claim : The Scheme Claim of any Creditor that has been:

(i) determined for the purpose of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions of Clause 6.1.10; or

(i) in the event of a Disputed Claim, determined by
the Court in accordance with the provisions of
Clause 6.1.12

and exceeds zero

AVIC Singapore : AVIC International Investments Limited (Company
Registration Number 201024137N), a company
incorporated in Singapore on 11 November 2010 as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC Kairong

AVIC Kairong . AVIC International Kairong Limited (Company
Registration Number 1493834), a limited company
incorporated under the laws of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC

AVIC Shares :  Ordinary shares in the share capital of AVIC Singapore
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Books Closure Date

Business Day

CDP

Cessation Date

Code
Companies Act
Companies Regulations

Company

Compliance Placement
Price

Consideration Shares

Court
Court Meeting of
Creditors

Court Meeting of
Shareholders

The date and time to be determined by the Judicial
Managers that the share transfer books and the register
of members of the Company will be closed to determine
the entitlements of Shareholders to the Shares for the
purposes of calculating entitlements to AVIC Shares
under this Scheme which is expected to be not less than
three (8) days and not more than ten (10) days after the
Court sanction of the Scheme

A day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or public holiday)
on which banks are generally open for business in
Singapore

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

The day following the expiry of six (6) calendar months
after the date of the cheque payment of the net proceeds
from the sale of Consideration Shares pursuant to
Clauses 5.2.1(ii) and 6.2.4(i)

The Singapore Code on Take-overs and Mergers
The Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore
The regulations promulgated under the Companies Act

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Company
Registration Number 200106480Z), a company
incorporated in Singapore which is under judicial
management pursuant to the Judicial Management Order

The issue price for each AVIC Share to be issued
pursuant to the compliance placement to be undertaken
by AVIC Singapore in connection with the listing and
quotation of AVIC Shares on the Main Board of the SGX-
ST

The AVIC Shares to be allotted and issued and/or
transferred by AVIC Singapore to the Scheme
Administrators, pursuant to this Scheme and the
Implementation Agreement, as described under Clause
3.1 of this Scheme

The High Court or the Court of Appeal (as the case may
be) of the Republic of Singapore

The meeting of Creditors to be convened and held under
the directions of the Court, and any adjournment thereof

The meeting of Shareholders to be convened and held

under the directions of the Court, and any adjournment
thereof
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Court Meetings

CPF

CPF Agent Bank
Account

CPF Agent Banks
CPFIS

Creditor

Depositor

Depository Register

Disputed Claim

Encumbrance

ETL

Implementation
Agreement

Interim Judicial
Managers

Judicial Management

Order

The Court Meeting of Creditors and the Court Meeting of
Shareholders collectively

The Central Provident Fund

A CPF investment account held by a CPFIS investor with
a CPF Agent Bank under the CPFIS

Agent banks included under the CPFIS
The Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme

Any person who has or who purports to have a Scheme
Claim against the Company

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 130A of the
Companies Act and for the avoidance of doubt for the
purposes of this Scheme shall exclude persons holding
Shares through CPF Agent Banks

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 130A of the
Companies Act

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 6.1.12 of this
Scheme

Any legal, equitable or security interest, including but not
limited to any mortgage, charge (whether fixed or
floating), pledge, lien (including without limitation any
unpaid vendor’s lien or similar lien), assignment of rights
and receivables, debenture, right of first refusal, option,
hypothecation, title retention or conditional sale
agreement, lease, hire or hire purchase agreement,
restriction as to transfer, use or possession, easement,
subordination to any right of any other person, and any
other encumbrance or security interest

The eligibility-to-list

The conditional implementation agreement dated 7
January 2011, entered into between the Judicial
Managers, for and on behalf of the Company, and AVIC
Kairong relating to, inter alia, this Scheme

The interim judicial managers of the Company, namely
Mr Seshadri Rajagopalan and Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela
of Ernst & Young LLP, who were appointed interim judicial
managers of the Company pursuant to an Order of Court
dated 13 May 2010, until their appointment as Judicial
Managers pursuant to the Judicial Management Order

The Order of Court dated 4 June 2010 placing the

Company under judicial management and as extended
thereafter from time to time
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Judicial Managers

Liability

Order of Court

Overseas Creditors

Overseas Shareholders

Per cent or %

PRC

Proof of Debt

The judicial managers of the Company, namely Mr
Seshadri Rajagopalan and Ms Ee Meng Yen Angela of
Ernst & Young LLP, who were appointed judicial
managers of the Company pursuant to the Judicial
Management Order

Any obligation, liability or indebtedness of a person
whether it is present, future, prospective or contingent,
whether its amount is fixed or unliquidated, whether it
arises in contract, tort, restitution or otherwise, whether
or not it involves the payment of money, which arises at
common law, in equity, by statute (in Singapore or in any
other jurisdiction) or which arises pursuant to a valid
assignment or a valid authority to pay any amount on
behalf of a person or in any other manner whatsoever
provided that such expression does not include any
obligation or liability which is barred by statute or one for
which no remedy may be granted or is otherwise
unenforceable. For the avoidance of doubt, where any
obligation or liability under a contract or policy is void or,
being voidable, has been duly avoided, no obligation or
liability shall arise in respect of such obligation or liability

An order made by the High Court or the Court of Appeal
(as the case may be) of the Republic of Singapore

Creditors whose addresses according to the records of
the Company are outside Singapore and/or who have not
notified the Company, the Judicial Managers or the
Scheme Administrators of addresses in Singapore

Shareholders whose addresses are recorded in the
register of members of the Company or in the Depository
Register maintained by CDP as being outside Singapore

Percentage or per centum
The People’s Republic of China

The form executed or to be executed by a person who
has or purports to have a Scheme Claim against the
Company in respect of a claim arising out of or having its
origin in any matter occurring on or prior to 4 June 2010,
stating the amount and particulars of its claim against the
Company as at 4 June 2010 in the form annexed as
Schedule 1, submitted to the Judicial Managers at the
Specified Address on or before the Proof of Debt
Submission Date; or submitted to the Judicial Managers
at the Specified Address after the Proof of Debt
Submission Date and admitted by the Judicial Managers
pursuant to Clause 6.1.1; or an equivalent proof of debt
form which is admitted by the Judicial Managers pursuant
to Clause 6.1.2
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Proof of Debt Submission :

Date

Registrar

Scheme

Scheme Administrators

Scheme Claim

Scheme Effective Date

Scheme Meeting

Securities Account

SGXNET

5.00 p.m. on 15 August 2011, being the latest date for
submission of Proof of Debt by the Creditors for the
purposes of voting at the Court Meeting of Creditors and
participating in the Scheme

The Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority of
Singapore

This scheme of compromise and arrangement as set out
herein

The Judicial Managers or any persons appointed by the
Court to be the administrators of this Scheme whether in
addition to or in replacement of any person as
administrators of this Scheme provided nevertheless that
in the event of the termination of the judicial management
of the Company, then the persons who held appointment
as Scheme Administrators immediately on or before the
termination of the judicial management of the Company
shall continue to be Scheme Administrators unless and
until replaced by the Court, and subject to the provisions
of Clause 13 of this Scheme

In relation to any Creditor means the total amount of
Liabilities (including any Liabilities that had been agreed
between the Company and the respective Creditor but
remained unpaid as at 4 June 2010), if any, as at 4 June
2010 for which the Company is or may be liable to that
Creditor (whether contingently or otherwise) in respect of
or arising from any and all acts, omissions, agreements,
transactions, dealings, matters and events whatsoever
effected, occurring or otherwise taking place at any time
prior to 4 June 2010, and which determination shall be
subject to the provisions of this Scheme

The date on which this Scheme becomes effective in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme, being the
date on which a copy of the Order of Court sanctioning
this Scheme is lodged with the Registrar pursuant to the
Companies Act or such earlier date as the Court may
determine and as may be specified in the Order of Court
sanctioning this Scheme

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Part VIII of this Scheme
Securities account maintained by a Depositor with CDP,
but does not include a securities sub-account or a CPF
Agent Bank Account

A system network used by listed companies to send

information and announcements to the SGX-ST or any
other system network prescribed by the SGX-ST
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SGX-ST

Share Distribution

Shareholders

Shares
SIC

Small Creditor

Specified Address

Transfer Date

Singapore Dollars or

S$ and cents

Vesting Date

The Scheme
Share Distribution, Transfer of Shares and Debt Settlement

3.1.1

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The proposed allotment and issuance and/or transfer by
AVIC Singapore of the Consideration Shares valued at
the aggregate sum of S$6,000,000.00 to the Scheme
Administrators to hold on trust for the Shareholders and
the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims under this
Scheme

Persons who are registered as holders of Shares in the
register of members of the Company as at the Books
Closure Date or, where CDP is the registered holder, the
term Shareholders shall, in relation to such Shares, mean
the Depositors whose Securities Accounts are credited
with Shares as at the Books Closure Date

Ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company
The Securities Industry Council of Singapore

A Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim of less than
S$$2,000.00

The office of the Judicial Managers in Singapore at One
Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583

The date falling one (1) Business Day after the Scheme
Effective Date

Singapore dollars and cents, respectively, being the
lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore

The date falling ten (10) Business Days after the Scheme
Effective Date and at least two (2) Business Days before
the trading of AVIC Shares on the SGX-ST commences,
or such other period as the Scheme Administrators may
determine

Pursuant to this Scheme, AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue
to the Scheme Administrators, on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to
distribute on the Vesting Date to the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved
Scheme Claims, in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, such number of
Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at the
aggregate sum of $$6,000,000.00 free from all Encumbrances.

The Share Distribution shall be apportioned as follows:

(i) Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of $$680,000.00 to be distributed to the Shareholders; and

(i)  Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of S$$5,320,000.00 to be distributed to the Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims.
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3.2

3.3

Consideration for the Share Distribution

3.2.1 As to the Shareholders, as detailed below in this Scheme, they will cease to be
Shareholders of the Company and in consideration, they will receive a proportionate
number of Consideration Shares with aggregate value of S$680,000.00.

3.2.2 As to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, as detailed below in this Scheme,
they will receive a proportionate number of Consideration Shares with aggregate value of
S$$5,320,000.00 and in consideration, the Company shall be completely and absolutely
released and discharged to the aggregate value of the Consideration Shares received by
each Creditor under this Scheme in satisfaction of that Creditor's Approved Scheme
Claim.

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore Undertaking

AVIC Kairong and AVIC Singapore have agreed to appear by counsel at the Court hearing of the
application to sanction this Scheme and to consent thereto, and to undertake to the Court to be
bound thereby and to execute and do and procure to be executed and done all such documents,
acts and things as may reasonably be necessary to be executed and done by them for the
purpose of giving effect to this Scheme.
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4.

PART II: CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Conditions Precedent

The implementation of the Scheme is subject, inter alia, to the following conditions precedent
being satisfied or waived (as the case may be):

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

the approval of the Scheme by the Shareholders and the Creditors in compliance with the
requirements of Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act;

the grant of the Order of Court pursuant to Section 210(3) (read with Section 227X) of the
Companies Act, and such order having become effective;

no injunction or other order being issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other
legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Scheme or the
transactions proposed herein or any part thereof;

obtaining all necessary consents, approvals, waivers, exemptions or other acts from any
foreign or Singaporean government or governmental, semi-governmental, administrative,
regulatory, fiscal or judicial agency, authority, body, commission, department, exchange,
tribunal or entity (including without limitation, the SGX-ST, the SIC and the Monetary
Authority of Singapore) as reasonably required to implement the Scheme and at the
consummation, execution and completion of the Implementation Agreement, such
consents and approvals having been duly authorised or obtained or otherwise completed
and being in full force and effect on the Scheme Effective Date;

written confirmation by AVIC Kairong and/or AVIC Singapore to the Company that
completion of any restructuring exercise is in accordance with and as described in the
listing application submitted by AVIC Kairong; and

receipt of the ETL from the SGX-ST for the admission and listing and quotation of AVIC
Shares on the Main Board of the SGX-ST on or before 30 June 2011 and such ETL not
having been revoked or withdrawn, and all conditions to such ETL (save in respect of
shareholding spread) being satisfied.
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PART lll: SHAREHOLDERS’ SCHEME

5.2

Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of this Scheme, the following shall be effected:

5.1.1

51.2

AVIC Kairong shall procure that AVIC Singapore allot and issue to the Scheme
Administrators on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to distribute on the
Vesting Date to the Shareholders Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the
Compliance Placement Price) at the aggregate sum of S$680,000.00, free from any
Encumbrance;

in consideration for the Shareholders’ entitlement to the Consideration Shares, each
Shareholder agrees that on or shortly after the Transfer Date, all of his Shares shall be
transferred to the Judicial Managers who shall receive full legal title to the Shares, fully
paid, free from any Encumbrance, and who shall continue to hold the beneficial title to
the Shares for and on behalf of the Shareholders; and

in consideration for the Shareholders’ entitlement to the Consideration Shares, each
Shareholder agrees that on or shortly after the Transfer Date, all of his Shares shall be
withdrawn from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

Shareholders and persons with beneficial ownership of Shares (not being Depositors) who wish
to have their Consideration Shares credited into their Securities Account shall take all necessary
action to (i) open a Securities Account with an address in Singapore and deposit with CDP their
share certificates in respect of their Shares together with the duly executed instruments of
transfer in favour of CDP and (ii) notify the Judicial Managers in writing of the details of their
Securities Account not later than five (5) Business Days after the Court Meeting for Shareholders.

5.2.1

In respect of Shareholders who are not Depositors and who have not taken the steps set
out in Clause 5.2:

(i) the entitlements of such Shareholders to the Consideration Shares shall be
determined on the basis of their holdings of Shares appearing in the register of
members of the Company on the Books Closure Date;

(i)  the Scheme Administrators may, as soon as practicable and in their sole and
absolute discretion, sell the relevant Consideration Shares, and distribute the net
proceeds (if any) thereof, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in
connection with the sale, to the relevant Shareholder, provided that where the net
proceeds to which any Shareholder is entitled shall be less than S$10.00, such net
proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the Company. Payment under this
Clause shall be made by sending a cheque for such sum payable to the relevant
Shareholder by post to his address in the register of members of the Company, at
the sole risk of that Shareholder. Fractional entitlements are to be disregarded and
retained by the Scheme Administrators (and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators
or their nominee) for the benefit of the Company; and

(iiiy  If a Shareholder does not claim his sale proceeds prior to the Cessation Date or if
for any reason whatsoever any payment made to a Shareholder pursuant to
Clause 5.2.1(ii) is not received by that Shareholder, such Shareholder shall be
deemed to have waived, released and discharged all his rights to such sale
proceeds with effect from the Cessation Date. Accordingly, with effect from the
Cessation Date, the Judicial Managers, Scheme Administrators and the Company
shall be released from any further obligation to make any payments under this
Scheme and the Scheme Administrators shall retain, for the benefit of the
Company, the balance (if any) of the sale proceeds.
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5.3

5.2.2

5.2.3

In respect of Shareholders who are Depositors and whose Shares are deposited with
CDP as at the Books Closure Date;

(i) the entitlements of such Shareholders to the Consideration Shares shall be
determined on the basis of the number of Shares standing to the credit of the
respective Securities Account on the Books Closure Date; and

(i) the Scheme Administrators shall, on or before the Vesting Date, provide
instructions to CDP to debit the relevant number of Consideration Shares standing
to the credit of the Scheme Administrators’ Securities Account and thereafter credit
the same into the respective Securities Accounts of the relevant Shareholders.
Fractional entitlements are to be disregarded and retained by the Scheme
Administrators (and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators or their nominee) for the
benefit of the Company.

In the event that any Shareholder (in the case of an individual) is deceased or (in the
case of a corporation or other legal entity) has been liquidated, wound up, struck off or
been the subject of analogous proceedings in any relevant jurisdiction, the Judicial
Managers may in their sole and absolute discretion disregard such Shareholder’s
entitlement to Consideration Shares for the purposes of calculating entitlements to
Consideration Shares under this Scheme.

For the purpose of giving effect to the transfer of the Shares to the Judicial Managers referred to
in Clause 5.1.2:

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

each Shareholder agrees to:
(i) the transfer of the Shares to the Judicial Managers;

(i)  the cancellation of all the existing share certificates in respect of the total
aggregate of the issued Shares held by the Shareholders;

(iii)  the issue of two (2) new share certificates (or such other number of share
certificates as may be appropriate) in respect of the total aggregate of the Shares,
credited as fully paid up, to the Judicial Managers; and

(iv)  the withdrawal of the Shares from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

On and from the Scheme Effective Date, each Shareholder hereby irrevocably agrees
and authorises the Scheme Administrators to, or procure a person nominated by the
Scheme Administrators to, execute and deliver all such documents, instruments and
assurances and carry out all acts and/or things as shall be necessary or as the Scheme
Administrators may reasonably require to give effect to the transfer of the Shares to the
Judicial Managers or to give effect to this Scheme, including but not limited to executing
any share transfer instrument or instruction forms in relation to the transfer of the Shares.

In respect of Shareholders who are Depositors and whose Shares are deposited with
CDP as at the Books Closure Date, the Scheme Administrators shall, on or before the
Transfer Date, provide instructions to CDP to debit the relevant number of Shares
standing to the credit of the Securities Account of such relevant Shareholders and
thereafter credit the same Shares into the Securities Account of the Judicial Managers.

In respect of Shareholders who are not Depositors and such Shareholders who have not
already opened a Securities Account in their names and deposited their Shares with
CDP and/or notified the Judicial Managers in writing of the details of their Securities
Account not later than five (5) Business Days after the Court Meeting for Shareholders:

E-12



APPENDIX E - THE SCHEME

5.4

(i) such Shareholders who have not already registered their holdings of the Shares in
the register of members of the Company shall take all necessary action to register
their holdings of the Shares by the Books Closure Date in the register of members
of the Company; and

(i) the Scheme Administrators shall, on or before the Transfer Date, execute such
instrument(s) or instruction(s) of transfer for the transfer of the Shares of such
Shareholders to the Judicial Managers.

5.8.5 Upon the transfer of the Shares to the Judicial Managers referred to in Clause 5.1.2
above, without prejudice to Clause 5.3.6(i) below, CDP and the Shareholders who are not
Depositors are to forward their existing share certificates relating to their Shares to the
Company at the request of the Company for cancellation.

5.3.6  Pursuant to the transfer of Shares to the Judicial Managers referred to in Clause 5.1.2
above:

(i) each existing share certificate in respect of the issued Shares held by the
Shareholders who are not Depositors, save for two (2) new share certificates (or
such other number of share certificates as may be appropriate) issued to the
Judicial Managers, will cease to be evidence of title to the Shares represented
thereby and shall be deemed cancelled with effect from the Transfer Date, and
cease to be valid for any purpose whatsoever, whether or not such share
certificates are returned to the Company for cancellation;

(i)  the Company shall issue two (2) new certificates (or such other number of share
certificates as may be appropriate) in respect of the total aggregate of the Shares,
credited as fully paid up, to the Judicial Managers; and

(iiiy  thereafter the Shares (subject to the approval of the SGX-ST) be delisted and
withdrawn from the Official List of the SGX-ST.

5.8.7 The Judicial Managers shall hold all Shares transferred to them pursuant to this Scheme
in their capacity as judicial managers of the Company for the benefit of the Shareholders.

Overseas Shareholders

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Scheme, the Company, the Judicial Managers
and/or the Scheme Administrators shall not at any time be under any obligation to allot, issue
and/or transfer or procure the transfer of any Consideration Shares to Overseas Shareholders
whether by crediting their Securities Accounts with the relevant number of Consideration Shares
or by the despatch of physical share certificates for the Consideration Shares. In any case where
the Scheme Administrators are, in their sole discretion, of the view that the distribution of the
Consideration Shares to any Overseas Shareholder may infringe any relevant foreign law or
necessitate compliance with conditions or requirements which they regard as onerous or
impracticable by reason of costs, delay or otherwise, the Scheme Administrators may, in their sole
discretion, determine that such Consideration Shares shall not be transferred to such Overseas
Shareholder who would otherwise have been entitled thereto, but shall be transferred to such
nominee(s) as the Scheme Administrators may, in their sole discretion, appoint, who shall sell the
same as soon as practicable at the sole discretion of such persons, and thereafter distribute the
aggregate amount of the net proceeds, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in
connection therewith, proportionately amongst such Overseas Shareholders, in accordance with
their respective entitlements to the Consideration Shares, in full satisfaction of their rights to the
Consideration Shares to which they would otherwise have become entitled, provided that where
the net proceeds to which any Overseas Shareholder is entitled shall be less than S$10.00, such
net proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the Company, and no Overseas Shareholder
shall have any claim whatsoever against the Company, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme
Administrators and/or CDP in connection therewith.
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PART IV: CREDITORS’ SCHEME

Creditors

Creditors’ Scheme Claims and Proofs of Debt

6.1.1

6.1.7

In order to vote at the Court Meeting of Creditors, each Creditor must have submitted a
Proof of Debt with the Judicial Managers at the Specified Address on or before the Proof
of Debt Submission Date. The Judicial Managers have sole and absolute discretion to
admit a Proof of Debt notwithstanding that it has been submitted after the Proof of Debt
Submission Date.

For the purpose of this Scheme, a Creditor shall be deemed to have submitted a Proof of
Debt if such Creditor had previously submitted to the Judicial Managers: (a) any Proof of
Debt (in a form as may be accepted by the Judicial Managers) in the course of the
judicial management of the Company, or (b) pursuant to such notice as the Judicial
Managers may have given prior to leave to convene the Court Meeting being granted by
the Court. Such Proof of Debt shall constitute such Creditor’s Proof of Debt for the
purpose of this Scheme, save that such Creditor may submit a revised Proof of Debt on
or before the Proof of Debt Submission Date to update its Scheme Claim.

If the Judicial Managers do not receive any revised Proof of Debt from such Creditor by
the Proof of Debt Submission Date, the Proof of Debt submitted by that Creditor to the
Judicial Managers at any time on or before the Proof of Debt Submission Date in the
course of the judicial management of the Company shall be deemed to be the Proof of
Debt submitted by the Creditor for the purpose of this Scheme.

A Creditor shall have no right after the Proof of Debt Submission Date to revise or amend
its Proof of Debt.

A Creditor who has submitted or is deemed to have submitted a Proof of Debt under this
Scheme shall forthwith notify the Judicial Managers of all amounts (other than that stated
in the said Proof of Debt) paid to or received by such Creditor, on or after 4 June 2010
and up to and including the date the Court sanctions this Scheme, in reduction of any
amount which the Company is liable or indebted as at 4 June 2010 to that Creditor.

Where a Creditor has submitted a Proof of Debt (other than a revised Proof of Debt
submitted pursuant to Clause 6.1.2 above) in respect of more than one claim by virtue of
which it claims to be a Creditor, that Creditor and its respective claims shall, for the
purposes of this Scheme, be treated as if each of such claims was due to one and the
same person or entity.

Insofar as any Scheme Claim included in any Proof of Debt is stated in a currency other
than Singapore Dollars, the amount of such Scheme Claim shall be converted by the
Scheme Administrators to Singapore Dollars at the interbank cross rate published in the
Business Times on 4 June 2010.

For the purposes of the Scheme, a Creditor shall not be entitled to interest in respect of
any Scheme Claim, except that where a Creditor is entitled to interest under any statute,
contract or court order, he shall to that extent be entitled to claim interest, for the period
up to 4 June 2010.

The Proofs of Debt, whether submitted pursuant to Clause 6.1.1 or deemed to have been
submitted under Clause 6.1.2, shall be reviewed and assessed by the Judicial Managers
for the purposes of determining the Approved Scheme Claims. The Judicial Managers
shall take into account any mutual credits, mutual debits or other mutual dealings
between the Company and any of the Creditors prior to 4 June 2010 in determining the
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6.1.10

6.1.11

6.1.12

Approved Scheme Claims. The Judicial Managers may, in dealing with any Proof of Debt
deemed submitted under Clause 6.1.2, reject the deemed Proof of Debt before the Proof
of Debt Submission Date.

With regard to each Creditor’s Proof of Debt, the Judicial Managers may, in their sole and
absolute discretion:-

(i) admit in whole or in part any Scheme Claim stated therein; or

(i)  require the Creditor to give further evidence by way of a statutory declaration or
otherwise in support of the Scheme Claim as the Judicial Managers think fit; or

(i)  whether or not the Judicial Managers call for such evidence or further evidence
and whether or not such evidence or further evidence is made available to the
Creditor, reject any such Scheme Claim in whole or in part.

Subject to the Court’s adjudication (if any) under the procedure in Clause 6.1.12, the
Judicial Managers’ assessment shall be final and binding, and the Scheme
Administrators shall be bound by the same.

Court Proceedings and Disputed Claims

(i) If the Judicial Managers reject any Proof of Debt or dispute the claim in the Proof
of Debt in whole or in part whether before or after the Proof of Debt Submission
Date, they shall notify the Creditor in writing of the rejection or dispute (as the case
may be) and in the event that the Creditor wishes to dispute such rejection of or
dispute of the claim in the Proof of Debt, the Creditor must commence proceedings
against the Company in Court within twenty-one (21) days from the date of delivery
of the notice to determine whether the debt or claim in dispute is payable by the
Company. Such Creditor shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by the
Creditor in relation to or arising from such proceedings and shall not seek any
order for costs to be paid to the Creditor regardless of the outcome of the
proceedings in Court and none of the Company and the Judicial Managers shall
be liable to the Creditor for any and all costs, fees and expenses incurred by the
Creditor in disputing the determination of the Judicial Managers in relation to or
arising from the proceedings in Court.

(i)  Any Creditor who fails to commence such proceedings within twenty-one (21) days
from the date of delivery of the notice shall be deemed to have accepted the
rejection of or dispute of the claim in the Proof of Debt by the Judicial Managers.
Such Creditor will not be entitled to receive any benefits under this Scheme to the
extent of such rejected or disputed claim(s).

(iii)  In respect of any Creditor whose claim stated in a Proof of Debt, whether in whole
or in part, is rejected and/or disputed by the Judicial Managers and is the subject
of proceedings in Court commenced by the relevant Creditor in accordance with
Clause 6.1.12(i) (“Disputed Claim”) which is pending adjudication, the Scheme
Administrators shall hold the relevant portion of the Consideration Shares to be
distributed to that Creditor based on the Disputed Claim, pending the adjudication
of the Disputed Claim by the Court.

(iv)  If the adjudication of the Court is in favour of the Creditor or if there is a settlement
reached on behalf of the Company with the Creditor where amounts are payable to
such Creditor, the Scheme Administrators shall cause the relevant number of
Consideration Shares so held to be distributed to the relevant Creditor to the extent
of the amount adjudicated or agreed to be due and owing to him by the Company
and such Creditor shall be deemed to be a Creditor with an Approved Scheme



APPENDIX E - THE SCHEME

Claim to the extent of such amounts for the purposes of the provisions of this
Scheme relating to entitlements to Consideration Shares and distributions of
Consideration Shares.

The Consideration Shares held by the Scheme Administrators which are not
required to be distributed pursuant to Clause 6.1.12(iii) shall, at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Scheme Administrators be:

(a) distributed to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims (fractional
entitlements to be disregarded and retained by the Scheme Administrators
(and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators or their nominee) for the benefit
of the Company) after the resolution of all Disputed Claims; or

(b)  sold by the Scheme Administrators at any time, and the net proceeds (if any)
thereof, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in connection with
the sale, distributed to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims after the
resolution of all Disputed Claims (provided that where the net proceeds to
which any Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim is entitled shall be less
than S$10.00, such net proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the
Company),

and no Creditor shall have any claim whatsoever against AVIC Singapore, AVIC
Kairong, the Company, the Judicial Managers and/or the Scheme Administrators in
connection therewith.

6.1.13 Where a Scheme Claim subsequently becomes the subject of Court proceedings
pursuant to Clause 6.1.12(i), for the purposes only of voting at the Court Meeting, the
Creditor shall be entitled to vote only to the extent of the Scheme Claim determined by
the Judicial Managers, and the admission of that Scheme Claim:

6.1.14

(iif)

shall be purely for the purposes of voting at the Court Meeting of Creditors;

shall be deemed at all times prior to the approval of the Scheme by the requisite
majority of the Creditors and Shareholders and the sanction of the Scheme by the
Court to be an offer of compromise made by the Company to the Creditors without
prejudice to the Company’s rights in such litigation;

shall be entitled to all privileges which attaches to such an offer whether under
Section 23 of the Evidence Act, Chapter 97 of Singapore, at common law or
otherwise; and

shall on no account constitute, be construed as or relied upon as an admission or
acknowledgment of any sort by the Creditor for any purpose should the Scheme
fail to secure the requisite approval or sanction as aforesaid.

No further action or proceedings

Save as consistent with the judicial management regime that the Company is under, no
Creditor shall take any action or commence or continue any proceedings against the
Company in any jurisdiction for the recovery of any sum in respect of that Creditor’s
Scheme Claim or any other sum for which the Company is liable under or arising from or
in respect of any and all agreements, transactions, dealings and matters effected or
entered into with the Company or occurring on or prior to 4 June 2010.
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6.2

Entitlement of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

Pursuant to the terms of this Scheme, the following shall be effected:

(i) AVIC Kairong shall procure AVIC Singapore to allot and issue and/or transfer to the
Scheme Administrators on or before the Transfer Date, to hold on trust for and to
distribute on the Vesting Date to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims
Consideration Shares valued (by reference to the Compliance Placement Price) at
the aggregate sum of $$5,320,000.00, free from any Encumbrance; and

(i)  in consideration for the issue and allotment and/or transfer of the Consideration
Shares, the Company shall be completely and absolutely released and discharged
to the aggregate value of the Consideration Shares received by each Creditor
under this Scheme in satisfaction of that Creditor's Approved Scheme Claim.

The Consideration Shares to be issued and allocated pursuant to Clause 6.2.1(i), less
the Consideration Shares held by the Scheme Administrators pursuant to Clause
6.1.12(iii), shall be distributed, on the basis of the Compliance Placement Price, to each
Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim on a pari passu and pro rata basis of their
respective Approved Scheme Claim. Fractional entitlements are to be disregarded and
retained by the Scheme Administrators (and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators or
their nominee) for the benefit of the Company.

Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims who wish to have their Consideration Shares
credited into their Securities Account or securities sub-account shall take all necessary
action to (i) open a Securities Account or securities sub-account with an address in
Singapore and/or (ii) notify the Judicial Managers in writing of the details of their
Securities Account or securities sub-account not later than five (5) Business Days after
the Court Meeting of Creditors.

In respect of (i) Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims who are not Depositors and who
have not taken the steps set out in Clause 6.2.3 above, and (ii) Creditors with Approved
Scheme Claims who are Depositors and who have not taken the steps set out in Clause
6.2.3:

(i) the Scheme Administrators may, as soon as practicable and in their sole and
absolute discretion, sell the relevant Consideration Shares, and distribute the net
proceeds (if any) thereof, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in
connection with the sale, to the relevant Creditors, provided that where the net
proceeds to which any Creditor is entitled shall be less than S$10.00, such net
proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the Company. Payment under this
Clause shall be made by sending a cheque for such sum payable to the relevant
Creditor by post to the registered address of such Creditor or the address of such
Creditor last known to the Company, at the sole risk of that Creditor. Fractional
entitlements are to be disregarded and retained by the Scheme Administrators
(and/or sold by the Scheme Administrators or their nominee) for the benefit of the
Company; and

(i) if such a Creditor does not claim his sale proceeds prior to the Cessation Date or if
for any reason whatsoever any payment made to such a Creditor pursuant to
Clause 6.2.4(i) is not received by that Creditor, such Creditor shall be deemed to
have waived, released and discharged all his rights to such sale proceeds with
effect from the Cessation Date. Accordingly, with effect from the Cessation Date,
the Judicial Managers, Scheme Administrators and the Company shall be released
from any further obligation to make any payments under this Scheme and the
Scheme Administrators shall retain, for the benefit of the Company, the balance (if
any) of the sale proceeds.
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6.3

6.2.5 In respect of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims who are Depositors and who have
taken all necessary steps to notify the Judicial Managers in writing of the details of their
Securities Account or securities sub-account pursuant to Clause 6.2.3 above:

(i) on and from the Scheme Effective Date, each such Creditor hereby irrevocably
agrees and authorises the Scheme Administrators to execute or effect on behalf of
each such Creditor any and all instrument(s), document(s) or instruction(s) as shall
be necessary or as the Scheme Administrators may reasonably require to give
effect to this Scheme, and every such instrument, document or instruction so
executed by the Scheme Administrators shall be effective as if it had been
executed by the relevant Creditor; and

(i)  the Scheme Administrators shall, on or before the Vesting Date or in accordance
with Clause 6.1.11 of this Scheme, provide instructions to CDP to debit the
relevant number of Consideration Shares standing to the credit of the Scheme
Administrators’ Securities Account and thereafter credit the Consideration Shares
notified to CDP by the Scheme Administrators into the Securities Account or
securities sub-accounts of the relevant Creditors. Fractional entitlements are to be
disregarded and retained by the Scheme Administrators (and/or sold by the
Scheme Administrators or their nominee) for the benefit of the Company.

6.2.6 Notwithstanding Clauses 6.2.1 to 6.2.5 above, the Company shall pay, as soon as
practicable and in any event, after the Vesting Date, all Small Creditors their Approved
Scheme Claims in full. Upon such payment to the Small Creditors, the Company shall be
completely and absolutely released and discharged from all claims relating to and in
connection with the Small Creditors’ Scheme Claims. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Small Creditors shall not be entitled to any Consideration Shares under this Scheme.

6.2.7 In the event that any Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim (in the case of an
individual) is deceased or (in the case of a corporation or other legal entity) has been
liquidated, wound up, struck off or been the subject of analogous proceedings in any
relevant jurisdiction, the Scheme Administrators may in their sole and absolute discretion
disregard such Creditors’ Consideration Shares for the purposes of this Scheme.

Overseas Creditors

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Scheme, the Company, the Judicial Managers
and/or the Scheme Administrators shall not at any time be under any obligation to issue, allot
and/or transfer or procure the transfer of any Consideration Shares to Overseas Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims whether by crediting their Securities Accounts or securities sub-
accounts with the relevant number of Consideration Shares or by the despatch of physical share
certificates for the Consideration Shares. In any case where the Scheme Administrators are, in
their sole discretion, of the view that the distribution of the Consideration Shares to any Overseas
Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim may infringe any relevant foreign law or necessitate
compliance with conditions or requirements which they regard as onerous or impracticable by
reason of costs, delay or otherwise, the Scheme Administrators may, in their sole discretion,
determine that such Consideration Shares shall not be transferred to such Overseas Creditor who
would otherwise have been entitled thereto, but shall be transferred to such nominee(s) as the
Scheme Administrators may, in their sole discretion, appoint, who shall sell the same as soon as
practicable at the sole discretion of such persons, and thereafter distribute the aggregate amount
of the net proceeds, after deducting all dealing and other expenses in connection therewith,
proportionately amongst such Overseas Creditors, in accordance with their respective
entittements to the Consideration Shares, in full satisfaction of their rights to the Consideration
Shares to which they would otherwise have become entitled, provided that where the net
proceeds to which any such Overseas Creditor is entitled shall be less than S$10.00, such net
proceeds shall be retained for the benefit of the Company, and no such Overseas Creditor shall
have any claim whatsoever against the Company, the Judicial Managers, the Scheme
Administrators and/or CDP in connection therewith.
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PART V: EFFECT, TERMINATION AND COMPLETION OF SCHEME

8.2

Effect of the Scheme

This Scheme shall become effective, subject to the conditions precedent set out in Part Il herein,
upon the date of lodgment with the Registrar of a copy of the Order of Court sanctioning this
Scheme under Section 210(5) of the Companies Act or such earlier date as the Court may
determine and as may be specified in the Order of Court.

Termination of the Scheme

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this Scheme shall terminate and shall cease to
have any effect at all upon written notice from the Judicial Managers and/or the Scheme
Administrators to AVIC Singapore in the event of any of the following:

8.1.1  AVIC Singapore and/or AVIC Kairong fails to perform and discharge any of its obligations
under this Scheme; or

8.1.2 the ETL granted by the SGX-ST for the listing of the AVIC Shares on the Main Board of
the SGX-ST having been revoked or withdrawn.

Without prejudice to any rights of the Company and/or AVIC Kairong in the Implementation
Agreement, in law or at equity, upon termination of this Scheme pursuant to Clause 8.1 above,
the parties to this Scheme shall revert to the position as if this Scheme had not been effected.

Completion of the Scheme by Performance

Subject to the terms of this Scheme, this Scheme shall be completed and concluded absolutely
and immediately by performance on the occurrence of all the following:

9.1.1 All relevant Consideration Shares under this Scheme have been allotted and issued
and/or transferred to the Shareholders in accordance with the terms of this Scheme.

9.1.2 All relevant Consideration Shares under this Scheme having been issued and allotted
and/or transferred to the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims in accordance with the
terms of this Scheme, and all Disputed Claims (if any) have been fully adjudicated and
either fully discharged and satisfied or determined in favour of the Company.

9.1.3 All proceeds of relevant Consideration Shares have been distributed to the relevant
Shareholders and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims in accordance with the terms
of this Scheme, or the Cessation Date has passed, whichever is earlier.

9.1.4 The transfer of the Shares to the Judicial Managers has been duly effected.

9.1.5 The Company’s Shares have been delisted and withdrawn from the Official List of the
SGX-ST.
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PART VI: THE JUDICIAL MANAGERS

10.
10.1

10.2

11.
11.1

12.
12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

The Judicial Managers

Nothing in this Scheme should be construed as limiting the powers conferred on the Judicial
Managers pursuant to the Companies Act.

For the purposes of implementing this Scheme, the Judicial Managers shall not require the
consent or approval of the Shareholders or the Creditors (as the case may be) for any action
under this Scheme, and such consent or approval where required by law shall be deemed to have
been given.

Remuneration, Fees and Disbursements

The Judicial Managers and their solicitors shall be entitled to such remuneration, fees and
disbursements for their performance of their duties and services for taking any action that they
are requested, authorised, or empowered to take under or in respect of this Scheme as may be
approved: (i) by a meeting of the Company’s creditors summoned under Part V of the Companies
Regulations; or (ii) by Court.

Exclusion of Liability and Indemnity

The Judicial Managers make no representation or warranty as to and/or shall not be responsible
to the Company or any Shareholder or Creditor or AVIC Singapore or AVIC Kairong for:

12.1.1 the adequacy, accuracy and/or completeness of any information (whether oral or written)
supplied by the Judicial Managers, the Company or any other person given in or in
connection with this Scheme; or

12.1.2 the legality, validity, effectiveness, adequacy or enforceability of this Scheme or any other
agreement, arrangement or document entered into, made or executed in anticipation of or
in connection with this Scheme

unless caused by fraud, gross negligence or wilful misconduct on their part.

The Judicial Managers shall not be liable to any Shareholder or Creditor for any and all losses,
damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatever nature which such Shareholder or Creditor
may sustain, incur or suffer in connection with or arising from any act or omission on his part in
relation to the implementation of this Scheme unless caused by gross negligence, fraud, or wilful
misconduct on their part.

The Judicial Managers shall not be responsible for the legality, validity, effectiveness, adequacy or
enforceability of or any delay (or any related consequences) in the allotment and issue or transfer
of Consideration Shares or distribution of the proceeds thereof to any Shareholder or Creditor
under this Scheme, unless caused by gross negligence, fraud, or wilful misconduct on their part.

The Judicial Managers shall not be responsible for any delay (or any related consequences) in
the cancellation of all the share certificates in respect of the total aggregate of the issued Shares
representing a holding of the Shares by the Shareholders under this Scheme.

The Judicial Managers shall at all times be indemnified and held harmless by the Company from
and against any and all losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatever nature which
may at any time and from time to time sustain, incur or suffer in connection with the exercise of
any powers or the performance of any duties under this Scheme unless losses, damages,
charges, costs and expenses arise out of any fraud, dishonesty or wilful default on their part.
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12.6

12.7

The Judicial Managers shall not be liable to the Company in any way for any loss, damage or
liability incurred or suffered by the Company as a result of or arising in any way from any claim
made against any person in the name and/or on behalf of the Company by or at the request or
direction of the Judicial Managers and in either case, in the exercise of any right, power or
discretion conferred on the Judicial Managers under this Scheme.

The Company, the Creditors and the Shareholders hereby acknowledge and confirm that the
Judicial Managers are acting as agents for and on behalf of the Company in relation to this
Scheme and all matters in connection herewith and that none of the Judicial Managers assumes
personal responsibility in relation to this Scheme or any matter in connection herewith.
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PART VIl: THE SCHEME ADMINISTRATORS

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

The Scheme Administrators

The Scheme Administrators shall through their personnel or agents implement this Scheme in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme. Save as expressly provided in this Scheme, the
Scheme Administrators shall not be deemed to act as agents for the Shareholders or the
Creditors or the Judicial Managers collectively or individually or as agents for the Company or
AVIC Singapore or AVIC Kairong and/or CDP but merely as coordinators of this Scheme.

The rights, powers and duties of the Scheme Administrators shall be as follows:

13.2.1 to exercise all powers necessary to administer, implement and perform their obligations
under this Scheme, including if necessary taking steps to enforce the terms of this
Scheme;

13.2.2 to, if they think fit, at any time summon a meeting of Shareholders and/or Creditors with
Approved Scheme Claims as described below; and

13.2.3 to, in their sole and absolute discretion, sell, or appoint such nominee(s) to sell, such
Consideration Shares as detailed above in this Scheme.

Either or both of the Scheme Administrator(s) may resign at any time upon giving at least thirty
(30) days’ notice to the Company, the Shareholders and the Creditors with Approved Scheme
Claims.

In the event that either or both of the Scheme Administrator(s) resigns, or is incapacitated and
unable to discharge his responsibilities as Scheme Administrator(s), such other person(s) from
Ernst & Young Solutions LLP with the capacity and experience to undertake the duties of the
Scheme Administrator(s), shall be appointed as the replacement Scheme Administrator(s).

In the event that any of the Shareholders or Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims wishes to
appoint a scheme administrator of its choice, then that Shareholder or Creditor with an Approved
Scheme Claim may put forward a nominee to be considered and approved by three-fourths in
value of the Shareholders and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims at a meeting of
Shareholders and a meeting of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, both to be convened
with no less than fourteen (14) days’ notice in writing. Where such nomination of replacement
scheme administrator takes place after the Vesting Date, only the aforesaid meeting of Creditors
with Approved Scheme Claims shall be required to be convened. The costs of convening such
meetings of Shareholders (if required) and Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, and the fees
and expenses of such scheme administrator nominated by the Shareholder or Creditor with
Approved Scheme Claim shall be borne by that party nominating such proposed replacement
scheme administrator.

Any appointment of a successor Scheme Administrator must be in writing, signed by the
person(s) appointing that successor and delivered to that successor. Any acceptance of such
appointment must be in writing, signed by the person appointed and delivered to the person(s)
appointing that successor. The other parties to this Scheme shall be promptly informed of the
acceptance by a successor Scheme Administrator. Upon the successor accepting his
appointment, the resigning Scheme Administrator shall be automatically discharged from any
further obligation under this Scheme and his successor and each of the other parties to this
Scheme shall have the same rights and obligations among themselves as they would have had if
the successor had been the original Scheme Administrator to this Scheme. The resigning
Scheme Administrator shall provide his successor with (or with copies of) such records as his
successor requires to carry out his duties under this Scheme.
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13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

13.16

14.

For the purposes of implementing this Scheme, the Scheme Administrators shall not require the
consent or approval of the Creditors or the Shareholders (as the case may be) for any action
under this Scheme, and such consent or approval where required by law shall be deemed to have
been given.

The Scheme Administrators shall have the power to do everything reasonably necessary to
implement the provisions of this Scheme.

The appointment of any person as Scheme Administrator shall be terminated pursuant to the
provisions of this Scheme or by his death or bankruptcy.

The Company shall do everything that is necessary to give effect to the directions and
instructions of the Scheme Administrators, to the extent reasonably necessary to enable the
Scheme Administrators to carry out their functions under this Scheme, and the Company shall
further procure that the directors of the Company shall not prevent, frustrate, object to or
otherwise prejudice the carrying out by the Scheme Administrators of its functions under this
Scheme.

The Scheme Administrators shall at all times be indemnified and held harmless by the Company
from and against any and all losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatever nature
which they may at any time and from time to time reasonably sustain, incur or suffer in connection
with the exercise of its powers or the performance of its duties under this Scheme unless such
losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses arise out of the gross negligence, fraud or wilful
default of the Scheme Administrators.

To the extent that, in the Scheme Administrators’ reasonable opinion, there is any doubt as to
whether the Scheme Administrators may execute, perform or do any act, matter or thing under
the powers conferred upon them under this Scheme then that act, matter or thing may be
executed, performed or done with the written approval of the Judicial Managers.

The Scheme Administrators may apply to the Court for directions in relation to any particular
matter arising in connection with the carrying out of their powers or functions under this Scheme
or the interpretation of any specific provision of this Scheme and shall do all such things as the
Court may by order, sanction or direct.

The Scheme Administrators may engage and pay solicitors, accountants, financial and other
professional advisors and consultants to advise and assist the Scheme Administrators in the
exercise of their rights and the performance and discharge of their duties as Scheme
Administrators.

Save as may be expressly stated to the contrary, nothing in this Scheme shall constitute the
Scheme Administrators as an agent of any Shareholder, Creditor or the Company.

The action or decision of any person holding appointment as the Scheme Administrators in
relation to the Scheme or in the discharge or purported discharge of their duties as Scheme
Administrators shall constitute the action or decision of all the persons holding appointment as
the Scheme Administrators at that time and each of such persons shall be jointly and severally
liable for the action or decision of the other at that time.

Remuneration, Fees and Disbursements

The Scheme Administrators and their solicitors shall be entitled to such remuneration, fees and
disbursements for their performance of their duties and services for taking any action that they
are requested, authorised, or empowered to take under or in respect of this Scheme as may be
approved: (i) at the Court Meetings; (ii) at a Scheme Meeting; or (iii) by the Court.
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15.
15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

Exclusion of Liability and Indemnity

The Scheme Administrators make no representation or warranty as to and/or shall not be
responsible to the Company or any Shareholder or Creditor or AVIC Singapore or AVIC Kairong
for:

15.1.1 the adequacy, accuracy and/or completeness of any information (whether oral or written)
supplied by the Scheme Administrators, the Company or any other person given in or in
connection with this Scheme; or

15.1.2 the legality, validity, effectiveness, adequacy or enforceability of this Scheme or any other
agreement, arrangement or document entered into, made or executed in anticipation of or
in connection with this Scheme

unless caused by fraud, gross negligence or wilful misconduct on their part.

The Scheme Administrators shall not be liable to any Shareholder or Creditor for any and all
losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatever nature which such Shareholder or
Creditor may sustain, incur or suffer in connection with or arising from any act or omission on his
part in relation to the implementation of this Scheme unless caused by gross negligence, fraud,
or wilful misconduct on their part.

The Scheme Administrators shall not be responsible for the legality, validity, effectiveness,
adequacy or enforceability of or any delay (or any related consequences) in the allotment and
issue or transfer of Consideration Shares or distribution of the proceeds thereof to any
Shareholder or Creditor under this Scheme, unless caused by gross negligence, fraud, or wilful
misconduct on their part.

The Scheme Administrators shall not be responsible for any delay (or any related consequences)
in the cancellation of all the share certificates in respect of the total aggregate of the issued
Shares representing a holding of the Shares by the Shareholders under this Scheme.

The Scheme Administrators shall at all times be indemnified and held harmless by the Company
from and against any and all losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatever nature
which may at any time and from time to time sustain, incur or suffer in connection with the
exercise of any powers or the performance of any duties under this Scheme unless losses,
damages, charges, costs and expenses arise out of any fraud, dishonesty or wilful default on their
part.

The Scheme Administrators shall not be liable to the Company in any way for any loss, damage
or liability incurred or suffered by the Company as a result of or arising in any way from any claim
made against any person in the name and/or on behalf of the Company by or at the request or
direction of the Scheme Administrators and in either case, in the exercise of any right, power or
discretion conferred on the Scheme Administrators under this Scheme.
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PART Vil - SCHEME MEETINGS

16.
16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

16.11

Scheme Meetings

The Scheme Administrators may at any time convene a meeting of the Shareholders and/or
meeting of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims (“Scheme Meeting”).

The Scheme Administrators shall have sole and absolute power to convene a meeting of
Shareholders, a meeting of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, or both, under this Scheme.

All Scheme Meetings shall be held in Singapore.

At least ten (10) days prior written notice of the Scheme Meeting (exclusive of the day on which
the notice is served or deemed to be served but inclusive of the day for which the notice is given)
shall be given to each and all the Shareholders and/or Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims.
The notice convening any Scheme Meeting shall specify the time and venue of the Scheme
Meeting and shall state the resolutions proposed to be passed or the matters proposed to be
discussed and resolved at the Scheme Meeting.

No resolution shall be passed and no matters shall be discussed or resolved at any Scheme
Meeting unless a quorum of Shareholders and/or Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims is
present at the time appointed for the Scheme Meeting.

The quorum for any meeting of Shareholders shall be any two Shareholders. If a quorum is not
present by the time appointed for any meeting of Shareholders, then the meeting shall be
dissolved.

The quorum for any meeting of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims shall be any two
Creditors who have Approved Scheme Claims subsisting at the time. If a quorum is not present
by the time appointed for any meeting of Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims, then the
meeting shall be dissolved.

The chairman of every Scheme Meeting shall be one of the Scheme Administrators.

The chairman may, adjourn the Scheme Meeting from time to time and from place to place, but
no matter shall be discussed, dealt with or resolved upon at the adjourned meeting other than
those which remain unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a
meeting is adjourned for thirty (30) days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given
as in the case of an original meeting. Except as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice of any adjournment or of the matters to be discussed or resolved at an adjourned meeting.

Every resolution of the Shareholders on any matter before a meeting of Shareholders shall be
passed only with the support of a majority in number and value of Shareholders present and
voting (whether in person or by proxy) on the resolution.

Every resolution of the Creditors with Approved Scheme Claims on any matter before a meeting
of such creditors shall be passed only with the support of a majority in number and value of the
total Approved Scheme Claims of all creditors present and voting (whether in person or by proxy)
on the resolution.
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16.12

16.13

Any Shareholder or Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim which is not a natural person must
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on its behalf at any or all Scheme Meetings and any
Shareholder or Creditor with Approved Scheme Claim may appoint any natural person to be his
proxy or attorney to attend and vote on his behalf at any or all Scheme Meetings. No
Shareholder or Creditor with Approved Scheme Claim shall be entitled to appoint more than one
proxy or attorney to attend and vote at any Scheme Meeting and the proxy or attorney shall not
be allowed to attend and vote at any Scheme Meeting except in the absence of his appointor. A
Shareholder or Creditor with Approved Scheme Claim may revoke the appointment of any person
as his proxy or attorney by giving written notice thereof to the Scheme Administrators.

Any instrument or document appointing any person as proxy or attorney of any Shareholder or
Creditor with an Approved Scheme Claim must be in the form and terms prescribed or approved
by the Scheme Administrators from time to time and shall be delivered to the Scheme
Administrators at such address as they may specify not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time appointed for any Scheme Meeting. The Scheme Administrators shall be entitled to reject
and disregard whether for any particular Scheme Meeting or for all Scheme Meetings any
instrument or document submitted or delivered in contravention of this Clause.
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PART IX: MISCELLANEOUS

17.

18.
18.1

18.2

19.
19.1

19.2

19.3

20

Modifications or Amendments to the Scheme

The Company may, for and on behalf of all persons concerned (including without limitation the
Shareholders and the Creditors), consent to any modification of, or amendment to, this Scheme if
such modification or amendment is, in the opinion of the Judicial Managers and/or the Scheme
Administrators, not prejudicial to the rights and interests of the Creditors and Shareholders
whether under this Scheme or otherwise, and subject to the Court sanctioning such modification
or amendment.

Notices

Every notice to be given to a Creditor or Shareholder in connection with any matter under this
Scheme shall be duly served if:

18.1.1 (in the case of a Creditor) left or sent by ordinary post to such Creditor at the registered
address of such Creditor or the address of such Creditor last known to the Company,
provided that such address is in Singapore. Where such Creditor has not provided to the
Judicial Managers and/or the Scheme Administrators an address in Singapore, such
notice shall be duly served if announced via SGXNET or paid advertisement in a daily
newspaper published and circulated in Singapore, in which case such notice shall be
deemed to have been sufficiently given notwithstanding any failure by any Creditor to
receive or see such announcement via SGXNET or advertisement; or

18.1.2 (in the case of a Shareholder) by announcement via SGXNET or paid advertisement in a
daily newspaper published and circulated in Singapore, in which case such notice shall
be deemed to have been sufficiently given notwithstanding any failure by any
Shareholder to receive or see such announcement via SGXNET or advertisement. For
the avoidance of doubt, for as long as the Company remains listed on the SGX-ST, it will
continue to notify all Shareholders of any matter relating to this Scheme by
announcement via SGXNET.

For the avoidance of doubt, every notice served shall be deemed received by the Creditor or
Shareholder, regardless of whether the said notice be actually received and whether the notice is
returned to the Company.

Proper Law and Jurisdiction

This Scheme shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Republic of
Singapore.

The parties to this Scheme hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of
the Republic of Singapore in relation to any legal actions or proceedings arising out of or in
connection with this Scheme.

If any one or more provisions contained in this Scheme shall, for any reason, be held to be
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, then such
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Scheme and the
parties to the Scheme agree to carry out this Scheme so as to as nearly as possible give effect to
the original intention of the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act

Save for the Judicial Managers and the Scheme Administrators, a person who is not a party to
this Scheme has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act, Chapter 53B of
Singapore to enforce any term of this Scheme.
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COMPANIES ACT SCHEDULE 1
(CHAPTER 50)

PROOF OF DEBT FORM
(This form will take about 15 minutes to complete)

ORIGINATING SUMMONS 453 of 2010/P 2 Name of Company under Judicial
Management

Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited

Particulars Of Creditor Claiming Debt

Name of Creditor:
IC/Passport No/Company/Business Registration No.:

Postal Address (Please see note a):

Contact Nos. (Tel/Pager/HP):
Fax No.: Email Address:

Creditor’s Reference No. (Please see note b):

Particulars Of Debt

Date Debt Details of Debt (Please see notes ¢, d & e) Currency Amount ($)

Total Amount of Debt Claimed (In Figures):

Total Amount of Debt Claimed (In Words):

Security Held (Please indicate “NIL” if no securities are held by creditor)

Brief Description & Value of Securities:
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6 Particulars Of Person Authorised To Complete This Proof of Debt Form
(If same as in box 3 above, please indicate “see box 3 above”)
Name:
NRIC No./Passport No.:
Relationship to Creditor:
(State whether director/employee/solicitors/accountant,etc)
Name of Company/Firm:
(Where applicable)
Contact Nos: (Tel/pager/HP):
Fax No.: E-mail address:
7 Signature of Creditor/Person Authorised to Complete This Proof of Debt Form

7.1 | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the company owes the
creditor the amount claimed in box 4.

7.2 | declare that | am duly authorised, by the creditor/under the seal of the creditor
company, to complete this proof of debt form.

Signature: Date: / /
(Day) (Month) (Year)

WARNING

Lodging a false proof of debt is a criminal offence punishable with
fine or imprisonment or both.

Note:
a. Please inform the Judicial Managers / Scheme Administrators of any change in address.
b. Please indicate the reference number that will be quoted in future correspondences with the Judicial Managers /
Scheme Administrators.
C. Examples of Debts are:
- Goods Supplied - Services Rendered - GST - Others (please specify)
- Wages and Salaries - Personal Loan - Overdraft facilities
- Income Tax - Property Tax - CPF

Please attach copies of documents substantiating the debt. The onus is upon the creditor to prove the debt.

For claims made by an authorised person on behalf of a group of workmen and others employed by the company,
please provide a schedule reflecting the name, identification/passport no., address, debt description, period for
which wages are due and the amount due, for each individual workman/employee.

For Official Use Only

Adjudicated on day of year

Admitted as follows:

Preferential

Ordinary

Total Admitted

Amount Rejected

Total amount of Debt claimed

© v B v »

Signature of Judicial Manager
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Originating Summons
No. 453 of 2010/ P

Under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act,

NOTICE OF COURT MEETING OF CREDITORS

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

)
)

In the Matter of SINO-ENVIRONMENT
TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED (Under Judicial
Management)

(RC No. 200106480Z)

And
In the Matter of Section 210 (read with Section

227X) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of
Singapore

SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT
Chapter 50 of Singapore

Between

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(RC No. 2001064802)

And

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(as defined in the Scheme)
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NOTICE OF COURT MEETING OF CREDITORS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to leave granted by the High Court of Singapore by order
dated 28 June 2011 in Summons No. 2435 of 2011/Z in Originating Summons No. 453 of 2010/P, a
meeting of the Creditors of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under Judicial Management)
(the “Company”) will be held at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore
018989 on 26 August 2011, 9.30 a.m, for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with
or without modification) the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement (the “Scheme”) dated 10 August
2011 proposed to be made pursuant to Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act
(Cap. 50) (the “Act”) between (1) the Company and (2) its Shareholders and Creditors (as defined in the
Scheme), and any other incidental matters.

The Scheme, the Explanatory Statement (in compliance with Section 211 of the Act) and related
documents (collectively, the “Scheme Document”) will be sent by ordinary post to Creditors with local
addresses and who have provided the Judicial Managers with these addresses.

Creditors with overseas addresses will not be provided with a copy of the Scheme Document. They
should provide a local address to the Judicial Managers should they wish to have a copy of the Scheme
Document delivered to them.

Creditors can also obtain copies of the Scheme Document from One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level
18, Singapore 048583 during normal business hours on any day (other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a
public holiday) prior to the day appointed for the Court Meeting of Creditors. Persons who wish to obtain
copies of such documents are requested to contact Louis Goh or Kevin Wang at 6309 6470 and 6309
8492 before attending at the above mentioned address.

In addition, it is proposed that a resolution approving the Judicial Managers’ fees and expenses be voted
upon by the Creditors at the aforementioned meeting.

The instructions for the submission of the Proof of Debt for the purpose of participating and voting at the
Court Meeting of Creditors are set out in the Scheme. If the Judicial Managers do not receive a Proof of
Debt from a Creditor by 5.00 p.m. on 15 August 2011, such Creditor may, at the discretion of the Judicial
Managers, not be entitled to vote at the Court Meeting of Creditors.

Creditors may vote in person at the Court Meeting of Creditors or may appoint another person as his
proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A form of proxy applicable for the Court Meeting of Creditors is
enclosed in the Scheme Document.

Forms appointing proxies must be lodged at One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583
not later than 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011.

Dated this 10 August 2011

STAMFORD LAW CORPORATION
10 Collyer Quay #27-00

Ocean Financial Centre

Singapore 049315

Solicitors for the Company
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NOTICE OF COURT MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Originating Summons
No. 453 of 2010/ P

Under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act,

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

)
)

In the Matter of SINO-ENVIRONMENT
TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED (Under Judicial
Management)

(RC No. 200106480Z)

And
In the Matter of Section 210 (read with Section

227X) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of
Singapore

SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT
Chapter 50 of Singapore

Between

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(RC No.200106480Z)

And

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(as defined in the Scheme)



APPENDIX F — NOTICES OF COURT MEETINGS

NOTICE OF COURT MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that that pursuant to leave granted by the High Court of Singapore by order
dated 28 June 2011 in Summons No. 2435 of 2011/Z in Originating Summons No. 453 of 2010/P, a
meeting of the Shareholders of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under Judicial
Management)(the “Company”) will be held at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One Marina Boulevard,
Singapore 018989 on 26 August 2011 at 11.00 a.m, for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit,
approving (with or without modification) the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement (the “Scheme”)
dated 10 August 2011 proposed to be made pursuant to Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the
Companies Act (Cap. 50) (the “Act”) between (1) the Company and (2) its Shareholders and Creditors
(as defined in the Scheme), and any other incidental matters.

The Scheme, the Explanatory Statement (in compliance with Section 211 of the Act) and related
documents (collectively, the “Scheme Document”) will be sent by ordinary post to Shareholders with
local addresses and who have provided the Judicial Managers with these addresses.

Shareholders with overseas addresses will not be provided with a copy of the Scheme Document. They
should provide a local address to the Judicial Managers should they wish to have a copy of the Scheme
Document delivered to them.

Any person entitled to attend the Court Meeting of Shareholders can also obtain copies of the Scheme
Document from One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583 during normal business
hours on any day (other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a public holiday) prior to the day appointed for the
Court Meeting of Shareholders. Persons who wish to obtain copies of such documents are requested to
contact Louis Goh or Kevin Wang at 6309 6470 and 6309 8492 before attending at the above mentioned
address.

Shareholders may vote in person at the Court Meeting of Shareholders or may appoint another person,
whether a member of the Company or not as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A form of proxy
applicable for the Court Meeting of Shareholders is enclosed in the Scheme Document. Forms appointing
proxies must be lodged at One Raffles Quay, North Tower Level 18, Singapore 048583 not later than 5.00
p.m. on 24 August 2011.

In the case of joint Shareholders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holder or holders. For this purpose,
seniority will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Registry of Members of the
Company.

Dated this 10 August 2011

STAMFORD LAW CORPORATION
10 Collyer Quay #27-00

Ocean Financial Centre

Singapore 049315

Solicitors for the Company
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PROXY FORM FOR COURT MEETING OF CREDITORS

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

FORM OF PROXY FOR USE AT THE COURT MEETING OF CREDITORS (OR AT ANY ADJOURNMENT
THEREOF)

Originating Summons )
No. 453 of 2010/P )

In the Matter of SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY
GROUP LIMITED (Under Judicial Management)
(RC No: 2001064802)

And

In the Matter of Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore

SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT

Under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act,
Chapter 50 of Singapore

Between
SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(RC No.: 2001064802)
And

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(as defined in this Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement)

I/We,
of
being a Creditor of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under Judicial Management) hereby appoint:
Name Address NRIC/Passport
Number
or failing him:
Name Address NRIC/Passport
Number

or failing him/them, the Chairman of the Court Meeting of Creditors (“Court Meeting”) convened on the directions of
the High Court of the Republic of Singapore as my/our proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
Court Meeting to be held at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989 on 26
August 2011, 9.30 a.m, and at any adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving
(with or without modification) the Scheme referred to in the Notice convening the Court Meeting of Creditors (the
“Notice”).
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I/We direct my/our proxy to vote at such Court Meeting for me/us in my/our name(s) for the said Scheme (either with
or without modification, as my/our proxy may approve) or against the said Scheme as hereunder indicated. If no
specific direction as to the manner of voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion.

FOR the said Scheme (v)) AGAINST the said Scheme (v)

*

If you wish to vote “for” the Scheme, tick (v') in the box marked “FOR the said Scheme”. If you wish to vote “against” the
Scheme, tick (v) in the box marked “AGAINST the said Scheme”. DO NOT TICK BOTH BOXES.

In addition, I/we direct my/our proxy to vote at the meeting for me/us in my/our name(s) for the approval of the
Judicial Managers’ fees and expenses as hereunder indicated. If no specific direction as to the manner of voting is
given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion.

FOR the approval of the Judicial Managers’ fees AGAINST the approval of the Judicial Managers’ fees
and expenses (V) and expenses (V)

If you wish to vote “for” the approval of the Judicial Managers’ fees and expenses, tick (v') in the box marked “FOR the
approval of the Judicial Managers’ fees and expenses”. If you wish to vote “against” the approval of the Judicial Managers’
fees and expenses, tick (v') in the box marked “AGAINST the approval of the Judicial Managers’ fees and expenses”. DO
NOT TICK BOTH BOXES.

Dated this 2011

Signature of Individual Member or Common Seal of Corporate Member

Notes:

1.

All capitalised terms used herein and defined in the Notice shall, unless otherwise defined herein, bear the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the said Notice.

Full name(s) of person, full name of Creditor, and address(es) are to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

If no person is named as proxy, the Chairman of the Court Meeting shall, by default be appointed proxy for the purposes of
this form of proxy.

You are requested to lodge this form of proxy with the Judicial Managers of the Company at One Raffles Quay, North Tower
Level 18, Singapore 048583 (Attention: Ee Meng Yen Angela) not later than 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011.

This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, if you are a corporation, must either
be executed under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised (in which event, the authority of such
officer or attorney must accompany this Proxy Form). The signature need not be witnessed.

Any alteration made to this form of proxy should be initialled by the person who signs it.

The proxy must attend the Court Meeting in person to represent you, failing which the Chairman of the Court Meeting will by
default be appointed proxy for the purposes of this form of proxy.

The Judicial Managers and/or the Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing the proxy if it is
incomplete, illegal or altered without authentication or where the true intentions of the appointor are not
ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing the proxy. Please ensure
that you fill out and execute this proxy form correctly.
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PROXY FORM FOR COURT MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

FORM OF PROXY FOR USE AT THE COURT MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS (OR AT ANY ADJOURNMENT
THEREOF)

IMPORTANT

For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy Shares in the capital of the Company, this Scheme
Document is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominee and is sent solely FOR
INFORMATION ONLY.

This Proxy form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or
purported to be used by them.

Originating Summons )
No. 453 of 2010/P )

In the Matter of SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY

GROUP LIMITED (Under Judicial Management)
(RC No: 200106480Z)

And

In the Matter of Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore

SCHEME OF COMPROMISE AND ARRANGEMENT
Under Section 210 (read with Section 227X) of the Companies Act,
Chapter 50 of Singapore

Between
SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(UNDER JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT)
(RC No.: 2001064802)
And

ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(as defined in this Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement)

I/We, of

being a Shareholder of Sino-Environment Technology Group Limited (Under Judicial Management) hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC/Passport
Number
or failing him:
Name Address NRIC/Passport
Number
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or failing him/them, the Chairman of the Court Meeting of Shareholders (“Court Meeting”) convened on the
directions of the High Court of the Republic of Singapore as my/our proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our
behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Court Meeting to be held at Training Room 903, NTUC Centre, One
Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989 on 26 August 2011, 11.00 a.m, and at any adjournment thereof, for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or without modification) the Scheme referred to in the
Notice convening the Court Meeting of Shareholders (the “Notice”).

I/We direct my/our proxy to vote in the manner indicated below. If no specific direction as to the manner of voting is
given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

FOR the said Scheme (v) AGAINST the said Scheme (v)

Dated this 2011

If you wish to vote “for” the Scheme, tick (v') in the box marked “FOR the said Scheme”. If you wish to vote “against” the
Scheme, tick (v') in the box marked “AGAINST the said Scheme”. DO NOT TICK BOTH BOXES.

Total Number of
Shares held

Signature of Individual Member or Common Seal of Corporate Member

Notes:

1.

All capitalised terms used herein and defined in the Notice shall, unless otherwise defined herein, bear the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the said Notice.

Full name(s) of person, full name of Shareholder, and address(es) are to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

If no person is named as proxy, the Chairman of the Court Meeting shall, by default be appointed proxy for the purposes of
this form of proxy.

You are requested to lodge this form of proxy with the Judicial Managers of the Company at One Raffles Quay, North Tower
Level 18, Singapore 048583 (Attention: Ee Meng Yen Angela) not later than 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011.

In the space provided for “Total Number of Shares held”, please write the total number of Shares held by you. If you only
have Shares entered against you name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act,
Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should write that number of Shares. If you only have Shares registered in your name in the
Company’s register of members, then you should write that number of Shares. However, if you have Shares entered against
your name both in the Depository Register and the register of members, you should write the total number of your Shares in
these Registers.

This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, if you are a corporation, must either
be executed under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised (in which event, the authority of such
officer or attorney must accompany this Proxy Form). The signature need not be witnessed.

A corporation which is a Shareholder may authorise by resolution, its directors or other governing body or such person as it
thinks fit to act as its representative at the meeting in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of
Singapore.

Any alteration made to this form of proxy should be initialled by the person who signs it.

The proxy must attend the Court Meeting in person to represent you, failing which the Chairman of the Court Meeting will by
default be appointed proxy for the purposes of this form of proxy.

The Judicial Managers and/or the Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing the proxy if it is
incomplete, illegal or altered without authentication or where the true intentions of the appointor are not
ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing the proxy. Please ensure
that you fill out and execute this proxy form correctly. In addition, the Judicial Managers and/or the Company may reject any
instrument appointing the proxy if the appointor is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the registry of
members of the Company or in the Depository Register as certified by the Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company
at 5.00 p.m. on 24 August 2011.
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SinoEnv

SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore on 2 October 2001)
Company Registration Number 200106480Z

RELEASE OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS REPORT

1. The Independent Directors of the Company, Mr Goh Chee Wee and Dr Wong
Chiang Yin, refer to the announcement released on 27 November 2009 by the
Executive Directors of the Company (the “27 November 2009
Announcement”).

2. The Independent Directors’ responses to the allegations made by the
Executive Directors in the 27 November 2009 Announcement have already
been set out in the announcements made by the Independent Directors on 13
November 2009 and 23 November 2009 and in any event, the Independent
Directors consider these allegations as being baseless. The Independent
Directors see no merit in repeating their earlier responses.

3. The Independent Directors have, in their capacity as the Audit Committee of
the Company, received a report issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC")
concerning the Company's affairs, in particular, the recent significant cash
transactions of the Company ("PwC Report"). The PwC Report raises matters
of grave and immediate concern.

4. The Independent Directors set out below a summary of the key findings
contained in the PwC Report for the attention of the Company's shareholders.

Executive summary of PwC findings to date

(A)  Payment for alleged purchase of Denox raw materials

5. Based on documents provided to PwC by the management of the Company's
subsidiaries in the People's Republic of China ("PRC Management"), China
Energy Environment Holdings ("China Energy"), one of the Company's
wholly-owned subsidiaries, made a payment of approximately JPY 920
million (approx. SGD 14 million or approx. RMB 66 million) on 22 May
2009 allegedly to a Japanese company known as JGC Catalysts and Chemicals
("JGCCcC).

6. The PRC Management informed PwC that the Xiamen International Bank
("XIB") account from which the JPY 920 million was purportedly paid
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore on 2 October 2001)
Company Registration Number 200106480Z

required only a single signatory - Mr Sun Jiangrong, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer ("CEO") of the Company.

The PRC Management informed PwC that this payment was made by China
Energy on behalf of another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fujian Thumb Environmental Facilities Co Ltd ("Thumb Facilities"), for the
purchase of Denox raw materials from JGCCC. The PRC Management
provided PwC with a copy of the purchase contract which was purportedly
signed by the authorised signatories of Thumb Facilities and JGCCC
("Purchase Contract").

The PRC Management informed PwC that no raw materials relating to the
Purchase Contract had been received as at 26 August 2009. Neither was there
any acknowledgement by JGCCC of the JPY 920 million it received from
China Energy, nor any document retained by China Energy evidencing the
payment to JGCCC.

After PwC approached JGCCC to enquire into the alleged transaction, JGCCC
replied on 15 September 2009 to say that it had not entered into the Purchase
Contract and that it had not received any payment of JPY 920 million from
China Energy. JGCCC also informed PwC that there was no employee in
JGCCC bearing the name of the alleged JGCCC representative who signed the
alleged Purchase Contract.

PwC had previously requested the PRC Management to provide them with
the necessary authorisation letter to allow them to liaise directly and
independently with the bank from which the payment of JPY 920 million had
been purportedly made so that PwC could, amongst other things, verify the
bank documents as part of PwC's bank confirmation exercise. The PRC
Management refused to provide such an authorisation letter and instead
claimed that they (the PRC Management) had already provided an
authorisation letter to the relevant personnel in the bank directly to expedite
PwC's bank confirmation exercise. No other explanation was provided by the
PRC Management for refusing to provide PwC with the requested
authorisation letter.

Subsequently, the PRC Management arranged for PwC to visit the XIB
Quanzhou representative office, although the bank document provided to
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SINO-ENVIRONMENT TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore on 2 October 2001)
Company Registration Number 200106480Z

PwC by the PRC Management suggests that the bank account from the which
the payment of approximately JPY 920 million had purportedly been made
was with XIB, Xiamen Branch. The PRC Management also accompanied PwC

on their visit to the XIB Quanzhou representative office.
On arriving at the XIB Quanzhou representative office:

a. PwC discovered that a specific bank officer had been pre-arranged to
meet with them and this officer already had bank statements and
documents prepared for PwC to examine. PwC was unable to verify
the information contained in these statements and documents with the
bank's IT systems;

b. The officer refused to provide his name to PwC or answer any of
PwC's questions relating to his identity or the statements and

documents provided;

C. There appeared to be only three staff in the entire representative office
at the time of PwC's visit - the "branch manager" (as he introduced

himself), the receptionist and the officer who assisted PwC; and

d. The "branch manager" was not willing to answer any of PwC's
questions relating to China Energy's bank account with XIB and
subsequently forced PwC off the premises, pulling down the roller-
shutter.

Despite PwC's repeated requests to the PRC Management and the Company's
CEO, neither the PRC Management nor the Company CEO agreed to provide
or provided PwC with the necessary authorisation letter to obtain

information directly and independently from XIB.

PwC did not see any formal approval by the Company's Board for the
payment of JPY 920 million although the Independent Directors had
instructed the Executive Directors on 11 May 2009 that all payments above
SGD 500,000 had to be properly authorised. PwC understands also that the
Independent Directors were only informed of the JPY 920 million payment
after it had been made.
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(B) Payments for investments in waste power projects

15. Based on the bank documents provided to PwC by the PRC Management,
Fujian Fuda Desai Environmental Protection Co Ltd ("Desai"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, paid a total of approximately RMB 230
million (approx. SGD 50 million) to various parties from 1 January 2009 to
30 June 2009 to invest in four separate waste power plant projects. These
payments were made from Desai's bank account with Bank of

Communications, Fuzhou branch.

16. PwC understands that any payments from the Bank of Communications
require approvals in the form of two seals on the relevant bank instructions
before the payments can be processed. The PRC Management informed PwC
that one of these two seals was held by the Accountant of Desai and the other
by a member of the PRC Management. However, the PRC Management also
informed PwC that the CEO is the Legal Representative of Desai and that all
payments require his prior approval.

17. Based on the documents provided to PwC and their discussions with the PRC
Management, PwC understands that these waste power plant projects
involved:

a. Obtaining rights from rubbish dumpsite operators to harvest methane

gas from the rubbish dumpsites ("Dumpsite Rights"); and

b. Constructing plant facilities on the dumpsite to extract, purify and

convert the harvested methane gas into electricity for sale.

18. Based on PwC's review, the payments post-11 May 2009 amounted to
approximately RMB 190 million (approx. SGD 41 million). These payments
appear to have been made without the prior formal approval of the
Company's Board and despite the Independent Directors' instruction that all
major payments (above SGD 500,000) had to be properly authorised. PwC
further understands that the Independent Directors only came to be aware of

these payments in the course of PwC's review.

19. Based on the documents provided to PwC by the PRC Management, Desai
does not appear to have commissioned a full and independent financial due

diligence exercise before entering into these investments. The PRC
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Management was also not able to provide PwC with detailed plans of the
total projected costs of these investments, or whether the Company and its
subsidiaries have sufficient funds to complete the projects. PwC also did not
come across any evidence that a legal due diligence exercise had been carried

out by Desai or the PRC Management.

Although monies had been paid by Desai for the acquisition of the Dumpsite
Rights, PwC did not see any documents indicating that the legal and

beneficial ownership of such Dumpsite Rights had been transferred to Desai.

According to the documents provided to PwC by the PRC Management, it
appears that the construction for certain projects was supposed to have been
completed by April/May 2009. However, the PRC Management informed
PwC that no significant work had been carried out on any of the projects as at
26 August 2009. This is despite the significant outflow of funds from Desai,
purportedly for the acquisition of the Dumpsite Rights and to construct the
plant facilities.

Further, there does not appear to have been any formal supplier tender
process undertaken for these projects. PwC discovered that the power
generator contracts and subcontracting work contracts for these projects had
purportedly been awarded to contractors with asset sizes and operation
levels significantly lower than the stipulated contract sums. PwC was not
provided with any documents or analysis to support the basis of selection of

these contractors.

In this regard, the PRC Management informed PwC that the power
generators had not been delivered as at 26 August 2009, although 70% of the
contract sums had been paid some months ago. PwC was also unable to
locate any documentary acknowledgements of receipt of such payments from

the sub-contractors.

PwC attempted to independently verify the bank documents which were
provided to them by the PRC Management by visiting Bank of
Communications, Fuzhou branch. During both their visits, PwC was
accompanied by members of the PRC Management.

On arriving at Bank of Communications, Fuzhou branch:
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a. PwC discovered that a specific bank officer had been pre-arranged to
meet with them. This officer's name card identified him as a personal
banking relationship manager, and not a corporate banking

relationship manager;

b. The bank officer did not provide PwC with the bank statements and
documents immediately, but only provided them with these
documents on the following day; and

C. The bank officer refused to allow PwC permission to approach other
bank staff to confirm that the documents provided to PwC had indeed
been printed from the bank's IT system.

26. Accordingly, PwC is unable to determine whether the payments made by
Desai were indeed paid to the rightful parties, as represented by the PRC
Management, and in accordance with the various contracts which had been
provided to PwC.

27. Despite PwC's subsequent request, the PRC Management refused to provide
PwC with the necessary authorisation letter to enable PwC to perform a fresh

confirmation exercise with Bank of Communication.

(©)  Other findings

28. Thumb Facilities made instalment payments between 1st January 2009 and
30th June 2009 amounting to RMB 46.50 million (approx. SGD 10 million) to

purchase “fixed assets” for the Denox Catalysts Manufacturing Plant.

29. On both the site visits by PwC, PwC was unable to inspect up close the fixed
assets. As a result, PwC could not conclusively determine if the fixed assets
indicated to them by the technical personnel were indeed the Denox "fixed
assets". PwC were not provided with any documentation or analysis to
suggest why certain of the purchase contracts for fixed assets were awarded
to a contractor with asset size and operation level that is significantly lower
than the stipulated contract sum. PwC were not able to review any
competitive tenders. PwC are therefore unable to comment on the
reasonableness of the costs of the Denox "fixed assets" purchased.
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Fujian Weidong EPT Co Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
made two interest free loans amounting to RMB 50 million (approx. SGD 10
million) and RMB 5 million (approx. SGD 1 million) respectively to two
parties that do not appear to be related to the Company.

PwC did not come across any documentation evidencing that the Company's

Board had been informed of or approved these loans.

Caveats by PwC

PwC qualified its findings to date by stating that where findings, conclusions
or inferences (adverse or otherwise) had been drawn against persons and/or
entities, such findings, conclusions or inferences were not made known to the
persons and/or entities implicated, and such persons and/or entities have
therefore not had the opportunity to comment on and address these findings,

conclusions or inferences.

PwC explained that such an opportunity had not been given to the

persons/ entities implicated because:

a. They (PwC) had been hampered in the performance of their work and
were unable to complete their work as they were not able to
independently obtain bank statements from a number of banks in a
manner that was satisfactory to them. Further, despite repeated
requests, the CEO, who is the authorised signatory for the accounts in
the relevant banks, declined to provide PwC with the necessary
authorisation letters to obtain the bank statements directly and
independently from the banks. Given the lack of forthright
cooperation on the part of the PRC Management and CEO, PwC is of
the view that the value of undertaking the further step of distributing
its findings to the relevant persons is limited.; and

b. The authorities in several countries have been informed of PwC's
findings and PwC understands that investigations by those authorities

are still on-going.
PwC further commented in its letter setting out the findings to date that its

findings are primarily based on the results of the work it carried out in
accordance with the scope as set out in its engagement letters with the
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Company. The findings, drawn primarily on interviews and review of
documents, are based on information made available to PwC up to 15
September 2009. New information, if they come to light, may have a bearing
on the findings to date. PwC has also not commented on, reviewed or
assessed the validity/enforceability of documents provided to them.

35. The Independent Directors are extremely concerned with the findings
contained in the PwC Report. The Independent Directors note in this regard
that the findings in the PwC Report call into question the conduct of the
Executive Directors, and in particular the conduct of Mr Sun Jiangrong, the
Chairman and CEO of the Company.

36. The Independent Directors will take all necessary and available steps to
safeguard the Company's assets in light of PwC's findings and keep the
Company's stakeholders apprised of all material developments in this regard.

Company's money in the People's Republic of China

37. The Executive Directors had, in their announcements on 18 and 27 November
2009, assured the Independent Directors and the shareholders of the
Company that they were willing and prepared to transfer the Company's
cash reserves amounting to approximately SGD 14 million from XIB to the
Company's Singapore account with HSBC ("Singapore Account") on certain
conditions.

38. To avoid further debate on this issue, the Independent Directors have agreed
to these conditions. In the circumstances, the Independent Directors fully
expect the Executive Directors to remit the SGD 14 million from XIB to the
Company's Singapore Account without any further delay.

39. The Independent Directors also note that Mr Sun Jiangrong had assured Mr
David Gerald, the President of the Securities Investor Association
(Singapore), that a sum of SGD 40 million is being held on behalf of the
Company in the People's Republic of China. In their latest announcement on
3 December 2009, the Executive Directors appear to have changed their
position with regards to what Mr Sun Jiangrong had told Mr David Gerald.
In particular, the Executive Directors said:

"The EDs can confirm that the Group has at least RMB70 million [approx. SGD 14
million] in its various bank accounts in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The
EDs are not able at this time to confirm the exact amount of cash in RMB and the
details of the bank accounts in which these RMB funds are deposited.
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The EDs wish to clarify that when the Chairman mentioned the sum of S$40 million
in his unscheduled telephone conversation with Mr David Gerald of SIAS, he spoke
without reference to specific records and meant to refer to an estimated aggregate
amount which included trade and other receivables."

40. The Independent Directors are surprised and troubled by the Executive
Directors' abrupt change in position and urge the Executive Directors to
immediately inform the Company and its shareholders of the exact amount of
cash held by the Company and its subsidiaries in the People's Republic of
China (with all relevant documentary proof) and, in any event, remit these
monies immediately to the Company's Singapore Account.

41. Finally, in view of the serious findings contained in the PwC Report which
call into question the conduct of the Executive Directors, and the sudden shift
in the Executive Directors' position, the Independent Directors repeat and
reiterate their earlier request that the Executive Directors resign immediately
from all positions in the Board and the Company.

This announcement is made by the Independent Directors of the Company.
The Independent Directors are also the sole members of the Audit Committee of the

Company. Mr Goh Chee Wee is the Audit Committee Chairman and Dr Wong
Chiang Yin is presently the only other member of the Audit Committee.



APPENDIX | - FURTHER INFORMATION ON HLM

HLM is a consulting firm based in the PRC and Hong Kong. HLM was established in 2001 by Mr.
Clement Leung and Ms. Eliza Yuen. They are assisted by a team of professionals, including accountants
and engineers, as well as personnel with other specialized skills. HLM has a strong network in the PRC
and has close working relationships with affiliates in different parts of the PRC. Mr. Clement Leung, a
founder and director, has extensive working experience in the PRC ever since its “open-door” policy in
the 1970s including serving as an economic advisor to several provinces and cities in the PRC.

HLM specializes in the field of corporate finance and restructuring project management, mergers and
acquisitions, initial public offerings, fund raising, corporate restructuring, asset recovery, and other
consulting projects.

HLM has been directly involved with several asset recovery cases, including:

1. successfully assisting a major international gold mining company from Africa (“the Principal’) to
secure its investment in a gold mine in Gansu Province, the PRC. The investment deal involved
contribution of cash by the Principal and injection of mining assets by the PRC party to form a joint
venture. The Principal had invested money into the joint venture but the PRC party failed to inject
its mining asset. The HLM team represented the Principal to negotiate with the PRC party and
local government officials, which resulted in enforcement of the agreement and the mining assets
registered under the name of the joint venture.

2. advising a Hong Kong listed company which had provided a pre-listing loan of HKD200 million to a
PRC individual who was supposed to use the loan to acquire certain coal mine assets in Shanxi
Province, the PRC for injection into the Hong Kong listed company. The transaction was not
completed. HLM provided advice to the principal to recover the loan as the acquisition was not
successful.

On corporate restructuring, HLM (i) assists in rescuing companies in financial difficulties, (ii) assists in
business or debts restructuring, (iii) provides accounting support in the debt restructuring process, and
(iv) provides advice on liquidation procedures.

On mergers and acquisitions, HLM (i) identifies appropriate merger and acquisition targets for investors,
(i) assists clients to formulate proposals for optimum schemes of merger and acquisition, (iii) assists
clients in the merger and acquisition negotiation process, (iv) assists to resolve problems encountered in
the merger and acquisition process relating to financial, accounting or taxation aspects, (v) performs due
diligence on merger and acquisition targets, and (vi) provides accounting support in the merger and
acquisition process.
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